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Mr. LI Yang &5 % 4
Chairman and executive Director

=R ES

Dear Shareholders,

Over the past year, we have witnessed and experienced numerous
significant moments together. As the pandemic subsided and people’s
lives, including their work, gradually returned to normal, we observed
a steady economic recovery. At the same time, the beauty and
wellness industry is booming, and demand for beauty and healthcare
is growing by the day. We are seizing every opportunity to steadfastly
pursue our dreams while facing the challenges head-on and
shouldering the responsibility of leading the industry’s development.

2023 was a milestone year for Beauty Farm. We not only successfully
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange but also
celebrated the Company’s 30th anniversary, a deeply moving and
nostalgic event. Over the last 30 years, we have actively embraced
change, iterating our business model during turbulent times while
navigating through our second and third growth curves. Meanwhile,
we pioneered China’s leading “dual-beauty” business model,
propelled the ongoing expansion of our business scale, and grew our
Company from a single store in Haikou to China’s largest beauty and
health platform. What remains unchanged is our entrepreneurial spirit,
original aspirations, strategic ambitions, and brand values, as well as
our determination to achieve our 100th anniversary as a beauty
brand. In January 2023, Beauty Farm was officially listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, becoming the first public
company in China’s beauty industry that leverages the innovative
dual-beauty business model. This marks a new beginning as we enter
the wider capital markets arena and compete with other exceptional
companies. As always, we will remain humble, maintain our thirst for
knowledge to enhance our business, and continue to learn and grow.
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The industry hailed 2023 as “the inaugural year of the dual-beauty
business model.” As pioneers of this innovative model, we withstood
the tests of the four-year pandemic, demonstrating remarkable
resilience. In 2023, we once again overcame the challenges posed by
the macroeconomic environment. Our cornerstone beauty and health
businesses grew steadily while the penetration rate of our
value-added businesses continued to rise, propelling the dual-beauty
industry’s development. Against the backdrop of today’s ever-rising
user traffic costs, we have built a formidable brand moat.

Driving progress through internal growth and
external acquisition initiatives; rewarding

shareholders with long-term, high dividends
Over the past 30 years, our efforts have transformed Beauty Farm
from a single store into China’s leading “dual-beauty” brand with
hundreds of stores nationwide. Our group’s offerings cover beauty
and wellness services, aesthetic medical services, and subhealth

medical services. We manage a varied brand matrix comprising four
major brands and have built China’s most extensive beauty store
network with over 400 stores. In 2023, we served our customers over
one million times, targeting the most valuable customer group —
women. Furthermore, we have constructed a diverse business matrix
that caters to our mid-to-high-end female customers’ needs in China’s
high-tier cities. Our beauty business, the cornerstone of our overall
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business, has become the No.1 beauty chain in China. We officially
upgraded our traditional beauty services to beauty and wellness
services in 2023, marking our strategic expansion into the wellness
sector to meet customers’ more profound health needs. Also, in
2023, we successfully converted 25% of our beauty and wellness
members into aesthetic medical or subhealth medical members, up
four percentage points year-over-year. In the aesthetic medical
business segment, we embraced the concept of “Minor Tweaks,
Major Transformations” to develop Beauty Farm’s unique product
philosophy and strategy, offering customers differentiated premium
aesthetic medical experiences. In the subhealth medical area, we are
committed to promoting people’s awareness of the industry and
enriching our product system to meet customers’ anti-aging needs.
Looking ahead, we will continue to create value for our customers by
prioritizing their experience. Meanwhile, we will enhance customers’
lifetime value through a diversified growth matrix business model.

Since our inception, our business development strategy has leveraged
both internal growth and external acquisition initiatives to drive the
Company’s steady advancement. On March 26, 2024, we announced
the acquisition of a 70% equity interest in the core assets of
Naturade, China’s second-largest beauty brand, for a consideration of
RMB350 million, placing its 88 premium stores within our portfolio.
The acquisition will significantly enhance our presence in the wellness
segment, provide coverage of the Greater Bay Area to extend the
Company’s regional advantages, expand our membership base, and
add another substantial gateway for traffic growth within our
"tri-beauty” business model. It also allies Beauty Farm and Naturade,
the largest and second-largest players in China’s beauty industry,
forming a powerful combination of our respective strengths.
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Our rapid business development has also laid a solid foundation for
our financial standing. Despite various economic and market
uncertainties and challenges, we made great progress in terms of our
financial fundamentals last year. In 2023, we achieved a net income
of RMB230 million, up 108.2% year-over-year. Benefiting from our
unique dual-beauty business model, we generated net cash of
RMB626 million from operating activities during the year, representing
an increase of 64% year-over-year, and our cash and cash-like items
amounted to RMB1.57 billion as of December 31, 2023 (which
includes the Group’s cash and cash equivalent, term deposits with
initial terms of over three months and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss). Our abundant cash reserve will be utilized not
only for internal and external business expansion but also for
shareholder rewards. The Board has proposed a final dividend of
HK$111 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, representing
a dividend of HK$0.47 per share. The Company's steadfast execution
of dividend plan demonstrates the management’s full confidence in
the Company’s growth prospects and showcases our robust capability
to maintain an ample cash flow and stable financial condition.
Moving forward, we will continue to drive business development,
enhance shareholder returns, and share the benefits of our business
growth with investors.
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Adhering to the principles of ESG
development to create value for society

As the first listed “dual-beauty” company, we lead by example,
actively assuming the role of industry frontrunner and fully embodying
the responsibilities of a market leader. We deeply comprehend the
significant social responsibility we bear. As such, we remain
committed to empowering both customers and employees,
continuously enriching their satisfaction and sense of accomplishment.
Meanwhile, we proactively foster the industry’s healthy growth and
contribute to its sustainable development.

Throughout the pandemic, many of our peers were unable to fulfill
their contracts due to operational difficulties. Upholding our social
responsibility, we introduced the “Customer Care Plan” and
"Employee Care Plan” to take on more customers and employees in
the industry within our capacity, aiming to rebuild consumer
confidence in the beauty industry.

Moreover, we deeply respect the resilience and strength of women,
who represent the cornerstone of our business expansion. With
women making up over 80% of our customer base, we remain
dedicated to empowering them, tapping into their inner beauty and
potential, and inspiring them to shine with their unique brilliance,
fostering a culture where every women can confidently express
herself. Women account for up to 90% of our workforce, and we
have implemented a comprehensive promotion mechanism to assist
them in achieving their value and we are pleased in, witnessing
countless women employees evolve from new joiners in the workforce
to independent, powerful leaders.

In addition to pursuing industry advancement, we are committed to
setting industry benchmarks and expanding our industry influence.
Horizontally, we actively seek collaborative opportunities across
industries, forging strategic partnerships with fellow industry leaders
to facilitate resource sharing and collectively explore broader avenues
for development. Vertically, we collaborate closely with upstream
research and development institutions, serving as a liaison between
frontline customers and research institutions and driving continual
technological innovation and application iteration within the industry.
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Looking Ahead to the Future

After experiencing the ups and downs of thirty years, we profoundly
understand that there is neither a best era nor a worst era. What
truly matters is embracing change in every era while remaining
“customer-centric” in the long term to continuously create value for
employees and shareholders. We do not pursue short-term high
profits at the expense of customer value; rather, we view time as an
ally and revere and respect the power of taking a long-term
approach.

In his book "Anti-Diihring,” Friedrich Engels wrote that “nothing is
stable except instability, nothing is immovable except movement.”
Maintaining curiosity, a keen acumen, and an innovative spirit is
crucial for enterprises in an era of upward momentum and
opportunities. Beauty Farm will continue to adhere to its long-term
mission, create social value, and lead industry development. Standing
at the crossroads of our 30th anniversary, we are convinced that
“thirty is just the beginning, and the future is bright.”

Yours faithfully,
Mr. LI Yang
Chairman and executive Director
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Year ended December 31,

BZ12A318LLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20235 2022F 20214F 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Revenue WA 2,145,068  1,635414 1,780,740 1,503,296 1,404,752
Gross profit EF 977,102 717,842 833,786 700,024 708,341
Gross profit margin EF=E 45.6% 43.9% 46.8% 46.6% 50.4%
Net profit EFE 230,139 110,532 208,341 152,185 147,423
Net profit margin TR = 10.7% 6.8% 1.7% 10.1% 10.5%
Adjusted net profit AR FNE
(non-HKFRS measure) GEEBHBREERSE) 241,039 157,359 226,694 159,173 149,015
Adjusted net profit margin R FNEE
(non-HKFRS measure) GEEBHBREERE) 11.2% 9.6% 12.7% 10.6% 10.6%
Earnings per share BREAR
— Basic (RMB) — AR (AR®) 0.94 0.52 0.97 0.76 0.70
— Diluted (RMB) — #H (AR 0.94 0.52 0.97 0.76 0.70
As of December 31,
R12A318
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETRE ARETR
Total assets EEHEAE 3,302,006 2,495,389 2,477,312 2,103,188 1,818,627
Total equity RmETE 834,233 203,109 262,536 140,708 52,755
Total liabilities BRERE 2,467,773 2,292,280 2,214,776 1,962,480 1,765,872




NON-HKFRS MEASURES

To supplement the consolidated financial statements of the Group
presented in accordance with HKFRS, the Company has presented
adjusted net profit and adjusted net profit margin as non-HKFRS
measures, which are not required by or presented in accordance with
HKFRS. The Company believes that adjusted financial measures
provide useful information to the Shareholders and potential investors
to understand and evaluate the consolidated statement of profit and
loss of the Group and assist the management of the Company in its
decision making. The Company believes that by eliminating the
effects of items that it believes are not indicative of the Group's
operating performance, such adjusted financial measures assist the
management of the Company and investors to evaluate the financial
and operating performance of the Group for different periods on a
comparable basis. However, these non-HKFRS measures should not be
considered independently or as a substitute for financial information
prepared and presented in accordance with HKFRS. Shareholders and
potential investors should not independently evaluate such adjusted
results or regard it as a substitute for, or comparable to, performance
reported or forecasted by other companies, as they may use similar
terms with different meanings. In addition, these non-HKFRS measures
have their limitations as analytical tools and may differ from similar
measures used by other companies.

The Company provides the following additional information for
reconciliation with the adjusted net profit under non-HKFRS.

20235 % XBHEBREREZXZARAF 11
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Year ended December 31
BZ12A31HLLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBFTT

Profit for the year F A 230,139 110,532

Adjusted for: FE

Share-based compensation expenses LARR 19 32 155 9 5 B ) 2 10,900 14,178

Listing expenses WA — 32,649
Adjusted profit for the year 1R EEF AR

(non-HKFRS measure)( (FEB B S RE LR
GE)® 241,039 157,359
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The Board has resolved to recommend the distribution of a final
dividend of HK$0.47 per share (equivalent to RMB0.43) for the year
ended December 31, 2023 (a total of approximately HK$110.8
million) (2022: HK$0.39 per share), subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the AGM. The final dividend is expected to be paid to
the Shareholders on or before Wednesday, September 25, 2024. The
dividend will be paid to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
Company’s register of shareholders on Monday, July 8, 2024. The
Group is not aware of any arrangement by which any Shareholder
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

Notes:
)] Unless otherwise specified
ii) To better reflect the key performance of the Group’s current business
operations, the adjusted net profit under non-HKFRS is calculated based
on net profit, but does not include:
a) Share-based payment expenses, which are non-cash expenses
incurred for the grant of share awards to certain management
personnel and do not result in cash outflow.

b) Listing expenses related to the Listing and Global Offering.

iii) Being the official exchange rate of Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi
as quoted by the People’s Bank of China on March 18, 2024.

EFES0RAERREHZ2023F12A318EFE
HIARHIIR B ERR0.478 T GEE R ARK0.437T )
(AE£#110.8FEBT) (20224 : FM%0.39/87T)
HAFREARFBEF RS L - REAKRSTEH
15 7R2024F9 8258 (B8 =) sk 2 BIR B FARER
B B REE FR2024F7 A8 (B8 —) RIIA QA
REREZMERE - AEBEBTAMBEABREEHE
KRABERETMB S LHE -

B

) BRREEBN

iy AEHRRALERALBLENMRER &
B IEE B B R A O B RIS T AR 4O R 2
8 TR
A BOXNMIAETETERABRN D

FEENEREHT LW BRSAM «

b EPEXAEBELTREREEHHEY -

i) AREARBTR024%3 8 188 Al ARKILE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

2023 was an extraordinary year for Beauty Farm. It marked our
Beauty Farm brand’s 30th anniversary, making us one of the
longest-standing franchise brands in the industry. Furthermore, on
January 16, 2023, Beauty Farm was successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange, forging an illustrious legacy as China’s first public
“dual-beauty” company. This accomplishment not only remarkably
elevated our brand visibility, but also represented a pivotal milestone
in our journey.

Despite the challenging and shifting macroeconomic dynamics of
2023, the Company outperformed the market with robust growth and
once again hit record highs in both revenue and net profit. These
extraordinary achievements serve as yet another testament to our
“dual-beauty” business model’s superior resilience and strength. For
the full year of 2023, the Company’s revenue amounted to RMB2.15
billion, a significant increase of 31.2% vyear-over-year. Our
cornerstone beauty and wellness services? delivered solid growth with
full-year revenue of RMB1.19 billion, up 26.1% year-over-year. Our
value-added services experienced accelerated growth, with revenue
from aesthetic medical services reaching RMB850 million, up 37.1%
year-over-year. Revenue from subhealth medical™ services was
RMB101 million, up 47.6% vyear-over-year. These revenue gains,
coupled with our growing scale effect and ongoing enhancements to
organizational structure, propelled further improvements in our overall
profitability. The Group’s gross profit margin increased from 43.9% in
2022 to 45.6% in 2023. Net profit amounted to RMB230 million, up
108.2% year-over-year, with net profit margin increasing to 10.7%,
up 4.0 percentage points from 2022.
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2023F - BERBIRE M T kB EEH - QA
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BlEe e BAKGEBREETEX mEER
HMEBIE MR R EIM - 2023 FEEEFHLE WK
AEARBE2ISEIT ALER3I2% Hb o &
AEBERFMRERBOVEBREER  2FRAEA
R¥11.987T  RIBR26.1% ° $E{E R H0E 1%
R BEEZARBUNEARKESSEL AR
37.1% - TREEHERBVMAARE1.011ETT
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For the year ended December 31

BZN2A3MHLEE
2023 2022
2023% 20225
Revenue Gross Gross profit Revenue Gross  Gross profit
Revenue proportion profit margin Revenue  proportion profit margin
WA BAELE EA EES WA WAL 7 ElE
RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %
ARBTR % ARWTR % ARETRT % ARBTL %
Beauty and Wellness Services ERMRE R 1,193,675 556 472,163 396 946,746 579 348,648 368
— Direct stores —BEEE 1,079,866 50.3 405,978 37.6 835,609 51.1 280,141 335
— Franchisee and others — MBELREM 113,809 5.3 66,185 58.2 111,137 6.8 68,507 61.6
Aesthetic Medical Services — BEEARK 850,356 39.7 457,740 53.8 620,199 379 342,803 55.3
Subhealth Medical Services R4 B & R 75 101,037 4.7 47,199 46.7 68,469 42 26,391 38.5
Total &%t 2,145,068 100.0 977,102 456 1635414 100.0 717,842 43.9
Notes: B 5
i) Previously named traditional beauty services i) BEEHEBTRS

i) Previously named subhealth assessment and intervention services

ii) JR 35 i FE ATk B T IR ARF%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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We achieved these robust financial results through consistent
enhancements in brand influence, product offerings, service
competitiveness, and customer management proficiency, which drove
solid growth in our customer base. In 2023, Beauty Farm welcomed
1.26 million client visits at our direct stores, up 33.1% year-over-year.
With our enhanced service quality and continued product innovation,
we are increasingly converting walk-in customers into active members.
The number of active members at our direct stores reached 94,000 in
2023, an increase of 19.6% year-over-year. Even more notably, the
quality of our active members has continued to improve, reflected in
their ever-increasing purchasing power and brand loyalty. In 2023, the
average annual spending per active member at our direct stores was
RMB20,695, a net increase of RMB2,109 compared to 2022. Average
annual visits per active member amounted to 10.6, an increase of 1.1
visits year-over-year. Over the last 12 months, our active member
repurchase rate reached a remarkable 84.3%, up 1.1 percentage
points year-over-year. Furthermore, under our Dual Beauty Business
Model, we consistently converted our beauty and wellness members
into high-margin value-added customers. In 2023, 25.0% of our
beauty and wellness members purchased or received aesthetic medical
services or subhealth medical services, up 1.3 percentage points
year-over-year.

The rapid growth of business scale was mainly attributable to our
steadfast execution of the Company’s growth strategy leveraging both
internal and external initiatives. Internally, we actively expanded our
store network and realized substantial gains. As of December 31,
2023, we operated over 400 stores, comprising 201 direct stores and
199 franchised stores. Throughout the year, we added 50 new stores
through new store opening and acquisition, including 19 newly-
opened or acquired direct stores, and 31 new franchised stores. For
details on our external growth, please refer to the “Mergers and
Acquisitions & Strategic Investment” section below.

HHRBENBDERR  TEBZRNRMERETE
N ER BREHEFHARELEEE NN TEE
W ELARARE N  BETTEHENET Y
220235 - EEAREZMIEEFRER126.08 -
FLIER33.1% - EERMMBEENRANED
MIFERI - BIRBZMEERRE(CAEREE
203FHEERGEHEILIE ALHER19.6% °
FESHINE  FRSGENZEFEEL XR
BREPEBIKEMGEEBE TEEE - 20234
BREZMEEEF T EE ARK20,6957T ¥
2022 F R b /FI8 AR BE2,109T - JERE B FF
BRIE10.6%  REIEF1.1K - FREERERITI2
EAEEERSESL3%  RLEATIIEESE -
ERFNEEREEAT  RMBEREIFRE
CEHLASEMNBEEHTNEFS - 2023F ¢
25.0%MERFRESEBESIHEBREAUE
REEERYE  RLENTI3EEDE -

EERESRERTIZEANBRMARERITREM
ERENERFERTEBNERBE TANERRS
M ArEGERP @S RKREZE - 522023
F12A318  SEMESREEEFI0R @ £ FH
ZIE201R  IERJE199K : 2F ¥ KU EPIIES0
R HBHARKRBEENE19R - RFFAMEE
31K - BRIMEBRMFFE © Bar R T [ ptE R
BUREIGE |55 o

For the year ended
December 31, 2023
B Z2023F 128318 ILEE

Direct Franchised
stores stores
BEEE INEAJE
At the beginning of the period R ER ) 189 189
Opening of new stores PYJE F R 16 31
Acquisition of new stores W g ¥ P IE 3 —
Closure of stores ezl TN 7 21
Total st 201 199
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We continue to fortify our cash reserve advantage. As at December
31, 2023, the Group’s cash and cash-like items amounted to
RMB1.57 billion (which includes the Group’'s cash and cash
equivalent, term deposits with initial terms of over three months and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss), representing an
increase of RMB660 million as compared to the end of 2022. The
abundant cash reserve will not only be utilized for business
development, but also for the purpose of giving return to
shareholders. The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$110.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2023, representing a
dividend of HK$0.47 per share. We are willing to share the dividends
of corporate development with our shareholders in return for their
trust and support.

Beauty and Wellness Services

Beauty and wellness services are the cornerstone of our “dual-beauty”
model. This segment is devoted to providing Chinese women with
premium beauty and wellness treatments through leading beauty
products and equipment, cutting-edge tech-powered innovation, and
superb standardized offerings.

In 2023, our beauty and wellness services demonstrated solid growth.
The segment’s revenue reached RMB1.19 billion in 2023, an increase
of 26.1% year-over-year, with a gross profit margin of 39.6%, up
2.8 percentage points year-over-year. Throughout 2023, we
consistently expanded our store network. As of December 31, 2023,
our beauty and wellness services’ nationwide store network had
expanded to 171 direct stores and 199 franchised stores, including
the addition of 15 direct stores through new store opening and
acquisition, and the upgrade of 15 existing stores during the year.

Beauty and wellness services stand as a vital gateway for traffic
growth within our Dual Beauty Business Model. As such, we
strategically prioritize user growth to propel this segment’s overall
development, which is also a primary driver of revenue growth. In
2023, active members of beauty and wellness services at our direct
stores reached 90,468, up 19.4% year-over-year, with average annual
spending per member of RMB11,288, an increase of RMB905
compared to the same period of 2022. Average annual visits per
active member amounted to 10.0, an increase of 1.0 visit
year-over-year.

SR Lo T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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At Beauty Farm, we delve deeply into customer needs. By
continuously innovating our offerings, enriching product lines, and
consistently elevating service quality, we seek to craft a diverse
product matrix and refine the blueprint for our beauty and wellness
offerings. In 2023, we observed growing demand for health and
well-being from our customers and strategically prioritized our
wellness offerings. With the launch of a wider array of wellness
services, we drove growth of 36.3% year-over-year in wellness
revenue. Our diversified wellness lineup effectively enhanced customer
retention and led to increased purchase frequency, boosting this
sector’s robust growth momentum and future development potential.

At the same time, we also consistently optimized the efficiency of our
integrated marketing and meaningfully enhanced our brand influence.
As a result, the number of new members at our direct stores
increased by 43.0% year-over-year in 2023. We also revamped our
product marketing approach and implemented a new itemized
segmentation strategy. In terms of marketing channels, we expanded
our presence across major public and private domain channels and
actively ventured into livestreaming e-commerce. Fully leveraging the
Douyin platform, we hosted over 750 livestreaming sessions in 2023,
resulting in a six-fold increase in realised gross merchandise volume
(GMV) year-over-year. We also made significant progress in private
domain traffic operations. In 2023, we reinforced our customer
engagement experience through our WeChat mini program, WeCom,
and livestreaming via WeChat Channels, among others, and
continually optimized our digital marketing middleware. With these
synchronized endeavors, we successfully refined our customer
operations, effectively boosting customer acquisition efficiency while
significantly reducing its cost.

REERE  BRMUFARBRELFR - TEHERH
HOYUEEMRG UHEBERARERE  NEEZ
TAEMERER  EEEANEREAIEER - 2023
F - RMSSEBRITPHRET KNS ER
Hitt - FRPIBES MR A TREERENEE AL
WHERETEAEENRERSRIE - EmESNRE
WAER TRLER3I63%NES - EEHREE
BEERMREATELIE  RASEHEEBELN AX
RAFEIRBERIBEASINERE N -

RIES - WAIEREINRBA L HBEMMETEN
2023 - KREELPIEFEEHERLEER
43.0% ° FAIf - RPBHMIET RENEHEN -
BETEZHOIMEBANEHRR EZHREL
BHABETSAREMLEEHES S - WEBHGE
BEEER - 2023%F AME2EBHATHAERENE
2 2FERMEET750%  REKRRX S8 (GMV) [
BTAfE ELSREES L BHADETRBEE
[ °2023%F - LABBMENERF BEME R
RRERENAEEEFPEDER  WRBHFI(
LHEPENEL BREFPRBALESZ  TEAXK
BRI T MR - BAIEERE T B -

For the year ended December 31

BZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

Number of client visits ES 1,171,876 885,927

Number of active members served FTRERE B A 90,468 75,744
Annual average spending per active member BRERGENFTIIEE

(RMB) (AR¥TT) 11,288 10,383

Number of visits per active member BHRERGEIERH 10.0 9.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Aesthetic Medical Services

Aesthetic medical services, which represent the Company’s second
growth curve, surged this year, reflecting robust growth momentum.
In 2023, revenue from this segment reached RMB850 million, up
37.1% year-over-year. Meanwhile, we continue to expand the
aesthetic medical services sector’s store network. As of December 31,
2023, the number of our aesthetic medical clinics had expanded to
23, with the opening of 3 new clinics in Hefei, Tianjin, and
Guangzhou during the year, as well as the expansion and upgrade of
our clinics in Chengdu and Zhengzhou in 2023.

Our business model focuses on identifying in-depth beauty needs of
our beauty and wellness customers and delighting them with
high-quality and differentiated aesthetic medical services. We have
successfully attracted and converted a sizable cohort of members. In
2023, 25.0% of our beauty and wellness members purchased
aesthetic medical services or subhealth medical services, an increase of
1.3 percentage points year-over-year. In 2023, active members of our
aesthetic medical services reached 24,474, up 30.6% year-over-year,
with average annual spending per active member of RMB34,597, an
increase of RMB1,493 compared to 2022. Average annual visits per
active member amounted to 2.9, an increase of 0.2 visit
year-over-year. These accomplishments underscore customers’ strong
endorsement of and trust in our services.

Guided by the philosophy of “Minor Tweaks, Major Transformations,”
we have consistently refined our aesthetic medical product blueprint,
diversified our product matrix, and crafted aesthetic medical services
infused with Beauty Farm’s distinctive character. In 2023, we filed
applications for 11 national patents and obtained 10 patents. We
have curated a top-tier team of aesthetic physicians nationwide and
actively advanced our "Elite Physician Technical Training” initiative,
which has internally trained 18 dermatologists thus far, providing
powerful assurance of excellence in our medical services. Looking
ahead, we are poised to further expand our aesthetic medical brand’s
influence and disseminate CellCare (5 7] 5%2)'s unique aesthetic
medical concept and branding more broadly. Meanwhile, we will
optimize our algorithm prowess to gain deeper, more precise insights
into customer needs, enhance customer operations, and ultimately
drive revenue growth across our aesthetic medical business.

SR Lo T
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For the year ended December 31
BE12A31BLFE

2023 2022

2023 % 20224F

Number of client visits b= 71,814 50,735

Number of active members served RIS &R e B AH 24,474 18,735
Annual average spending per active member (RMB) & & /FBEEMNFFY

HE (ARET) 34,597 33,104

Number of visits per active member BEERE B HIERH 2.9 2.7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Subhealth Medical Services

Our subhealth medical services primarily focus on functional medicine
and our Women's Special Care Center offerings. This segment is
emerging as a pivotal component of the Company’s business
portfolio. Currently, the subhealth medical market in China is
experiencing rapid growth with significant supply gaps. We have
proactively leveraged this opportunity to fast-track our business
expansion. In 2023, revenue from our subhealth medical services
reached RMB100 million, up 47.6% year-over-year. During the year,
we opened a new clinic in Changchun, bringing the total number of
our Neology brand’s clinics to seven. Active members of our
subhealth medical services increased by 36.5% year-over-year to
4,191. Average annual visits per active member amounted to 4.0, an
increase of 0.5 visit year-over-year, and average annual spending per
active member reached RMB16,836, a net increase of RMB869
year-over-year.

Furthermore, we accurately pinpointed the demand-side gap in the
women'’s gynecological anti-aging market and launched our Women's
Special Care Center to meet women’s needs. Excitingly, we launched
these services across our Neology (#fJR) clinics nationwide in 2023,
driving revenue from our Women's Special Care Center up by over
200% vyear-over-year. In terms of know-how and expertise
enhancements, in 2023, we assembled a team of 11 outstanding
gynecologists, substantially boosting the professional capabilities of our
Women’s Special Care Center. Our Neology brand also became a
certified member of the China Maternal and Child Health Association,
underscoring our achievements in women’s gynecological anti-aging
and propelling our future advancement.

DREBRERS
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For the year ended December 31
BZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

Number of client visits =i 16,662 10,612

Number of active members served iR ERE 8 AH 4,191 3,070
Annual average spending per active member (RMB) SR ERESENFEFIHEE

(AR#T) 16,836 15,967

Number of visits per active member BRERGEIIERE 4.0 3.5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Digitalization

We firmly believe that digitalization is a crucial transformation and
offers profound opportunities for industry advancement. As an
industry pioneer embracing digital transformation, we have remained
ahead of the curve, championing innovation and progress across the
industry. In 2023, we consistently invested in iterating our digital
systems while enhancing our proficiency in algorithms, thereby
thoroughly integrating our online and offline operations. As of
December 31, 2023, we had successfully launched 33 pivotal
information management systems, among which 22 were
self-developed.

Our digital applications primarily manifest in three aspects: customer
digitalization, business digitalization, and organization digitalization.
Regarding customer digitalization, we meaningfully enhanced our
full-lifecycle customer management through digital tools, achieving
segmented customer management, structured store management and
categorized management of projects, effectively achieving refined
customer operations. Notably, we launched a diverse array of
products for private domain digital operations in 2023, and enriched
our member engagement, effectively improving member retention
while efficiently reducing customer acquisition costs. Additionally, we
have been ramping up our business digitalization and organization
digitalization capabilities, striving to enhance the Company’s
management efficiency and operational decision-making acumen.

Mergers and Acquisitions & Strategic Investment

In 2023, we reiterated our commitment to utilizing mergers and
acquisitions as a primary strategy for external growth. We are
dedicated to driving horizontal integration within the beauty and
wellness sector through merger and acquisition and strategic
investment, thereby expanding our member base and ultimately
boosting revenue growth across our “dual-beauty” businesses with
revenues from our value-added services.

SR Lo T
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By investing in and acquiring leading regional beauty brands, we
meaningfully elevated our market share across cities covered by our
direct stores. In May 2023, Beauty Farm entered into a strategic
agreement with Chengdu Youlan to strategically invest in their stores
in Chengdu region, increasing our market share in Chengdu’s beauty
and wellness market. In February 2024, we relocated, expanded and
reopened our CellCare clinic in Chengdu, and in March 2024, a
Neology clinic officially opened for business in Chengdu, resulting in
significant “dual-beauty” synergies that will enhance our revenue scale
in the region. In August 2023, Beauty Farm entered into an
acquisition agreement with Hangzhou Yanspa to acquire their stores,
further enhancing our revenue scale and brand influence across
Hangzhou. In parallel, we persistently pursued merger and acquisition
opportunities in high-performing franchised regions to augment our
direct store presence across more cities. In June 2023, we acquired
our Changsha franchisee, officially adding Changsha as our direct
operating city. Such transactions do not constitute disclosable
transactions under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Stepping into
2024, we plan to expand the capacity of CellCare clinics in Changsha
to maximize the synergy of our “dual-beauty” businesses across
Changsha.

Moving forward, we will resolutely execute our merger and
acquisition strategy to further grow our point-of-market access while
actively exploring potential wellness opportunities to expand our
business scope, catering to our valued customers’ holistic beauty and
wellness needs at every stage of life.

Outlook

As we strategize for the future amid current trends, we anticipate
continuous growth in customer demand for beauty and wellness
solutions, reflecting immense growth potential within the industry.
Despite the highly fragmented nature of existing market stakeholders,
we have every confidence in capitalizing on key opportunities to
further bolster our market share.

Against the backdrop of myriad macroeconomic uncertainties, our
sophisticated “dual-beauty” model has demonstrated excellence and
resilience. Empowered by its robust strength and scalability, we have
adeptly navigated economic cycles and outperformed the market with
solid growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We will remain firmly committed to propelling growth through a
dual-engine, internal and external growth strategy. Internally, we will
solidify our Dual Beauty Business Model’s advantages, broadening our
member community and seamlessly integrating both aesthetic medical
services and subhealth medical services to continuously enhance
customer lifetime value. In the meantime, we will further expand our
store network and increase our market dominance within core
regions.

Externally, we will actively pursue merger and acquisition
opportunities to broaden our store footprint horizontally and delve
into growth prospects in wellness and other sectors to diversify our
business portfolio. In terms of R&D of products and services, we are
dedicated to fulfilling customer demands, crafting industry-leading
product and service offerings, and exploring transformative wellness
solutions to reinforce our competitive edge.

Regarding digitalization, as we advance our “customer digitalization,
business digitalization, and organization digitalization” philosophy, we
will maintain our consistent investments in digital upgrades. We seek
to further empower our standardized operations management, boost
business scalability, and refine our management efficiency, operating
efficiency, and decision-making acumen. With respect to talent
management, our focus remains on recruiting, nurturing, and
retaining top-tier talents to foster a vibrant, cohesive team.

Moving forward, we will stay true to our “customer-centric”
philosophy and maximize our “dual-beauty” model’s advantages,
actively embracing industry dynamics and challenges as we diligently
pursue long-term sustainable growth. As always, we remain dedicated
to creating value for our customers, shareholders, employees, and the
wider society to achieve mutual benefits for all.
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Financial Review
Revenue

The Group generates revenue primarily from three service offerings: (i)
beauty and wellness services; (ii) aesthetic medical services; and (iii)
subhealth medical services. In addition, the Group earns cooperation
fee in relation to subhealth medical services. The Group provides
beauty and wellness services to individual customers at direct stores
and also generates revenue from sales of skincare products (including
product sales to consumers in direct stores, and to franchisee stores
and others). Additionally, the Group earns franchise fees from our
franchisees. The Group’s business has grown rapidly after recovering
from the negative impact of the pandemic. The Group’s revenue
increased by 31.2% from RMB1,635.4 million in 2022 to RMB2,145.1
million in 2023.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue by
service offerings for the periods indicated:

i % (51 8
LU

AEBNWAETERG =@ERBKEER : (VEBFR
RS (VBEEDRS  R(i)EREEEERS -
AN REEHR D RBEEEREHRRAIER - A%
EREEERAEAZFREETFRERS @ IRt
HELEEER(BERAESEEEEARAMBAE
MEMEEER) PEERA © I REBHKME
HMRDNEE AEEEFHCRIBAATERER
% EBERAR - AEENWRAR2022FHAR
W1,635.48 B T R31.2%E2023F M AR

e —

214518 &TT °

TREFIAEBRATTBEEREIER EDBA
R

Year ended December 31

BZ128318LLFE
2023 2022
2023F 20224

Revenue Revenue
Revenue proportion Revenue proportion
A WAL WA WG
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR % ARETT %
Beauty and wellness services ERMRE RS 1,193,675 55.6 946,746 57.9
— Direct stores — HEE 1,079,866 50.3 835,609 51.1
— Franchisee and others — MR K EA 113,809 5.3 111,137 6.8
Aesthetic medical services EEX 850,356 39.7 620,199 37.9
Subhealth medical services TiRRBERS 101,037 4.7 68,469 4.2
Total &% 2,145,068 100.0 1,635,414 100.0
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Beauty and Wellness Services — Direct Stores

The Group’s revenue from beauty and wellness services of direct
stores increased by 29.2% from RMB835.6 million in 2022 to
RMB1,079.9 million in 2023, which was primarily attributable to the
growing influence of the Company’s brands, the introduction of a
wide range of products and services to the needs of customers, and
the use of digital tools to enhance the efficiency of customer
acquisition, resulting in a significant increase in the number of
members and client visits.

Beauty and Wellness Services — Franchisee and Others

The revenue of beauty and wellness services of the Group generated
from franchised stores and others increased from RMB111.1 million in
2022 to RMB113.8 million in 2023, primarily due to the expansion of
franchisee network of the Group.

Aesthetic Medical Services

The Group’s revenue from aesthetic medical services increased by
37.1% from RMB620.2 million in 2022 to RMB850.4 million in 2023,
primarily due to the rapid growth in membership and client visits as
the Group realized an increase in member penetration from beauty
and wellness services to aesthetic medical services by providing a
comprehensive service portfolio that meets the needs of customers.

Subhealth Medical Services

The Group's revenue from subhealth medical services increased by
47.6% from RMB68.5 million in 2022 to RMB101.0 million in 2023,
primarily due to customers’ increasing concern on their own health in
the post-pandemic era and the increase in the number of members
served and client visits as we continue to observe customers’ needs
and introduced better services in line with their needs.
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COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

The cost of sales and services of the Group primarily consists of (i)
costs of products and consumables used and related costs,
representing the costs of procuring skincare products, injection
materials and other consumer services; (ii) staff costs, representing
wages, benefits and bonuses for our business operation personnel; (iii)
depreciation and amortization charges, which primarily include
depreciation and amortization of leased properties and beauty
equipment; and (iv) operation related expenses, which primarily
include property management fees, rental expenses for short-term
leases and costs for utilities. The following table sets forth a
breakdown of the Group’s cost of sales and services by nature for the
periods indicated:

$HE R AR % B A
AEENEEMRERAIEZEREONEHER &
R REERA  BREBEEER E5HMHERE
il H B MERB KA ¢ (DB ITRA - HEXRFHEE A
BMITE @RI (NrERBHER 2
BREHEEMEREIRRBONERER  RivEE
HERX  TEZREMEERE NHHEHSHA
X RARREKA - TREIIAEERFRHBR
MEE B D IHE MRS AR -

For the year ended December 31
BZE12A318LEFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT

Products, consumables used and related cost EHAER #BAMK
MR 419,365 280,981
Staff costs |= DN 327,555 292,161
Depreciation and amortization charges MEREHEER 293,547 263,484
Operation related expenses EiERBMAX 116,355 72,723
Others Hitb 11,144 8,223
Total et 1,167,966 917,572

The cost of sales and services of the Group increased from RMB917.6
million in 2022 to RMB1,168.0 million in 2023, mainly due to (i) the
increase in products, consumables used and related costs, reflecting
the business growth and the increase in service offerings; (ii) the
increase in staff costs, which was due to the increase in salaries and
staff headcount as a result of the business growth; (iii) the increase in
depreciation and amortisation charges which was due to the increase
in leased properties as a result of store network expansion and store
decoration and renovation; and (iv) the increase in operation-related
expenses, as a result of the increase in property management fees
and costs for utilities.

REBERHEERREKARB2022FH ARK917.6
BEIENE2023FMNARKE1,16808 8L - =2
BARNERER BAMREEEAARE N - R
IR LRBEEE M (DB TAREMN - REZ
HFe MBI ASAEKIERMIEM i) I E K #
BREEN RESHEWERPIERGERN RE
EEFmIG I Riv)2ERBRIEM - REEY
EERERAAREEALEN -



20235 ZEHEBERRREXERAR 25

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The gross profit increased from RMB717.8 million in 2022 to
RMB977.1 million in 2023, and the overall gross profit margin
increased from 43.9% in 2022 to 45.6% in 2023. The increase was
primarily attributable to (i) the increase in revenue due to the growth
in civil visits; (ii) the dilution of fixed charges such as depreciation and
amortization charges as a result of the scale effect; and (iii) the
further increase in the share of revenue from aesthetic medical
services and subhealth medical, which are high margin businesses.

SELLING EXPENSES

The selling expenses primarily consist of (i) staff costs, representing
wages, benefits and bonuses for our in-house sales and marketing
team; (ii) promotion and marketing expenses, primarily include service
fees paid to the third-party marketing service providers and celebrities
to promote brands and services of the Group; (iii) travelling and office
expenses incurred by our in-house sales and marketing team; (iv)
miscellaneous expenses incurred to greet customers; and (v) others,
primarily represent miscellaneous costs in relation to general sales and
marketing activities. The following table sets forth a breakdown of the
Group's selling expenses for the periods indicated:

LI o B A

EMREERE
EMA20202EMARKE717 8B E TIENE20234
MARKEII7TIEE L BEEMNEH2022FH
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For the year ended December 31

BHZ12A318LLEE

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Staff costs BIRA 225,475 162,335
Promotion and marketing related expenses HERZHABR X 44,140 36,547
Travelling and office expenses EREBARE 35,973 25,317
Miscellaneous expenses related to customer services & FARISHEBMER 31,564 26,335
Depreciation and amortization charges mEREH 17,346 14,144
Others H A, 23,674 22,550
Total et 378,172 287,228

The selling expenses of the Group increased from RMB287.2 million
in 2022 to RMB378.2 million in 2023, primarily due to (i) the
increase in staff costs, as a result of business growth and increase in
marketing staff to support business expansion; and (i) the increase in
promotion and marketing expenses, which was in line with our
promotion strategy.

RNEENEERTH2022FMARE28728E T
EINE2023FMARE3782HE T TERZMAR()
BIRAKEM RERAAEBERREHE T AHE
MMAXHFEBRE RS HRERER M - HE
179 B ¥ B — 2K o
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R&D EXPENSES

The R&D expenses primarily consist of (i) staff costs, representing
wages, benefits and bonuses for our R&D staff; and (ii) depreciation
and amortization charges. The R&D expenses increased from RMB31.2
million in 2022 to RMB34.1 million in 2023, primarily due to the
Group’s continuous increase in investment in R&D on digitization.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The general and administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) staff
costs, representing share-based compensation expenses, wages,
benefits and bonuses for our general and administrative staff; (ii)
consulting and management expenses incurred in relation to audit
services, legal services, IT and back office management system as well
as other evaluation services; (iii) depreciation and amortization charges
in relation to our properties and equipment; (iv) listing expenses; (v)
reorganization costs; and (vi) others. The following table sets forth a
breakdown of the Group’s general and administrative expenses for the
periods indicated:

R

MERATETZEFE - OEIRA  EREHEEINT
B RFRIA : RNVIMEREHEER - HEAX
M2022F M AR 2BE L LRE2023FMWAR
MM EBT TERHARAEERBENAEHT
LB IR A -

—RRTEREAX
—RETHAXEIZEREOBEIRA - H—R&IT
BETHUEND N EMAS - TE - B RE
AL (DBLBRTIRTS AR BRARMEREE
BRGUAREMFERBEENAZAREERX
(iEMERREREONEREHER © (v) LHHA
o WMEARA R EAM o TREFIAEB R
R — R RITHRFAAA

For the year ended December 31

HZ12A318LLEE

2023 2022

2023F 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Staff costs BIRA 272,877 214,438
Consulting and management expenses BHAREERZ 16,952 14,731
Depreciation and amortization mEREH 13,973 13,347
Listing expenses WA — 32,649
Reorganization costs ESFEN %N — 7,279
Others H At 14,550 12,988
Total et 318,352 295,432

The general and administrative expenses increased from RMB295.4
million in 2022 to RMB318.4 million in 2023, primarily due to the
increase in staff costs of approximately RMB58.4 million, partially
offset by the decrease in listing expenses of approximately RMB32.6
million.

— M RITHA S H2022F A RE295.45 & i
MEHE2023FHARKE31848E L £EZHR
BITRAEIMMARKSSABE T HH % LT
SRR ARE32.6E BT -
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OTHER INCOME

The other income primarily consists of (i) government grants,
representing short-term subsidies received from the local governments
in connection with the business development, rewards for financial
and employment contribution as well as tax refund; and (i) rental
income primarily derived from the owned properties in Hainan
province. The increase in other income from RMB29.1 million in 2022
to RMB30.4 million in 2023 was primarily due to an increase in rental
income.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The income tax expenses of the Group increased from RMB19.9
million in 2022 to RMB58.1 million in 2023, primarily due to the
increase in the profit before income tax resulting from the business
growth.

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

As a result of the above, net profit of the Group increased from
RMB110.5 million in 2022 to RMB230.1 million in 2023, representing
a year-on-year growth of 108.2%, and the net profit margin
increased from 6.8% in 2022 to 10.7% in 2023. Adjusted net profit
increased from RMB157.4 million in 2022 to RMB241.0 million in
2023, representing a year-on-year growth of 53.2%, and adjusted net
profit margin increased from 9.6% in 2022 to 11.2% in 2023.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group's principal use of cash was for working capital purposes as
well as for store expansion and acquisition. The main source of the
Group's liquidity was generated from cash flows from operations.
Going forward, the Group believes that its liquidity requirements will
be satisfied with a combination of cash flows generated from
operating activities, bank facilities and net proceeds from the Global
Offering. As of December 31, 2023, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of RMB224.3 million and term deposits with initial terms
of over three months of RMB384.9 million. A significant portion of
the Group's cash and cash equivalents and term deposits are held in
RMB and Hong Kong dollars.
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CASH FLOWS

The table below sets out specific figures from the Group's
consolidated cash flow statements for the years indicated:

BERE
TERRIFEERARFENFARSRBROKE
EBE

For the year ended December 31
BZE12A318LEFEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T
Net cash generated from operating activities KERFMBREFE 625,510 382,000
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities =& &EBETS,(FFF)
WEFRR (711,185) 53,626
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities B& &SNS, (FTF)
WEFRR 133,741 (432,820)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FYReERSFED
of the year 164,120 157,284
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRReERSEFED 224,277 164,120
INDEBTEDNESS &%

As of December 31, 2023, the indebtedness of the Group mainly
included lease liabilities. The Group did not have any material
mortgages, charges, debentures, loan capital, debt securities, loans,
bank overdrafts or other similar indebtedness, finance lease or hire
purchase commitments, liabilities under acceptances (other than
normal trade bills), acceptance credits, which are either guaranteed,
unguaranteed, secured or unsecured, or guarantees or other
contingent liabilities.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total bank loans and
other borrowings by the total equity as at the end of the year. As of
December 31, 2023, the Group's total cash and cash equivalents and
time deposits with initial terms of over three months are greater than
other interest-bearing liabilities and therefore gearing ratio is not
applicable (as of December 31, 2022: the gearing ratio of the Group
was 54%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had capital commitments of
RMB10.4 million, primarily in connection with leasehold
improvements.

#H1E2023F12A310 - AREENGEREIEREHEE
BE AEEWESAENIEE  KH - EEE-
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ASSETS PLEDGED

As of December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any major assets
pledged.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group did not make any
significant investments, acquisitions or disposals of any subsidiaries,
associated companies or joint ventures.

EXCHANGE RATES AND RELATED HEDGING

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from currency exposures with respect to U.S.
dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognized assets and liabilities. The Group does not
hedge against any fluctuation in foreign currency.

FUTURE PLAN OF SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
OR ACQUISITION OF ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended
December 31, 2023, the Group had no plans for any significant
investment or acquisition of capital assets in the future.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had a total of 3,941 full-time
employees. In 2023, the total employee welfare expenses amounted
to RMB854.4 million, higher than RMB697.1 million in 2022,
primarily in connection with the Group’s business growth. In 2023,
the Group’s equity-settled share-based compensation expenses
decreased to RMB10.9 million from RMB14.2 million in 2022.

The remuneration package of our employees includes basic salaries,
allowances and bonuses. In particular, our physicians, therapists and
other service personnel may be remunerated with a bonus that is
assessed mainly based on their performance. We have also adopted a
number of employee restricted share plans to provide long-term
incentives for our employees who have provided outstanding services
to us, in order to incentivize and reward the eligible persons who
have contributed to our success. Our employees are required to
participate pre-work training and will participate in another session
prior to their promotion or when we introduce new services. In
addition, our employee development model enables us to track the
career path of our employees and recognize staff talent through
comprehensive analysis generated from clients’ feedback.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. LI Yang (ZB3), aged 65, joined our Group in January 2003. He
was appointed as our Director in February 2022 and was
redesignated as our executive Director in March 2022, and as the
chairman of our Board in March 2022. Mr. Li is primarily responsible
for the overall management, business, and strategy of our Group and
oversight of the commercial suitability and sustainability of our
Group.

Prior to joining our Group, from April 1987 to March 1992, Mr. Li
was the deputy general manager at Hainan Development Construction
General Company (BFARE4 R F]). From April 1992 to August
1996, he was the general manager at Hainan Real Estate
Development General Company (&F& EHEZ A F]). Immediately
prior to joining the Group, he was the deputy director at the
State-owned Assets Management Office of Hainan Province (/%4 &
BEEBEBRRE).

Mr. Li has also served as a director for a number of our principal
subsidiaries. Since August 2006, he has been an executive director of
Shanghai Beauty Farm Development Co., Ltd. (E/&EERAEERNHRE
AR AA], "Shanghai Beauty Farm Development”) (PRC). Since April
2004, he has been the chairman of the board of Shanghai Beauty
Farm. Since July 2010, he has been an executive director of Shanghai
Yigao Industrial Co., Ltd. (E/B&2&mEZEBR AT, “Shanghai Yigao”).
Since November 2017, he has been an executive director of Shanghai
Xiukeer Clinic Co., Ltd. (L/BFAIZFIZEER AT, “Shanghai
Xiukeer”). In May 1987, Mr. Li obtained his master's degree in
engineering from the Department of Electronic Engineering of RWTH
Aachen University (Z2E T3 K &) in Aachen, Germany. Mr. Li is the
father of Ms. LI Fangyu, the non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. LIAN Songyong (ZE#JX), aged 53, joined our Group as our
director and general manager of Shanghai Beauty Farm in November
2015. Mr. Lian was appointed as our Director in February 2022 and
was redesignated as our executive Director in March 2022, and as
vice chairman of our Board in March 2022. He is primarily responsible
for the overall management of our Group, and decision-making in
respect of major matters such as overall strategies.

Mr. Lian has over twenty years of experience in the aesthetic medical
industry. Prior to joining our Group, from October 2004 to December
2008, Mr. Lian was the deputy general manager at Henan Plastic
Surgery Hospital Co., Ltd. CAFEEFERE AR AHF). From January
2009 to August 2015, he was the general manager at Beijing
Mansimei Medical Technology Co., Ltd. (Jt REBEZEBERMBR A
A)).
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Mr. Lian obtained his master’s degree in business management from
Tsinghua University (/& 2 X2 in Beijing, PRC in January 2003.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAI Feng (Z#£), aged 57, was appointed as our Director in
February 2022 and was redesignated as our non-executive Director
since March 2022. Mr. Zhai joined our Group in December 2013 as a
director of Shanghai Beauty Farm. In this capacity, he is primarily
responsible for formulating the Company’s strategies and supervising
the Company’s operations and development.

Mr. Zhai has over 30 years of experience in investment and
management industry. From July 1991 to November 2012, Mr. Zhai
worked at Procter & Gamble (China) Sales Co. Ltd. (B2 (FE) IR
2 A]) with his last position as a president of sales in Greater China.
Mr. Zhai was a managing director at Shanghai Panxin Mezzanine
Investment Management Company Limited (/B2 EREREEES
R A 7R]) from January 2013 to December 2018. From October 2014
to July 2019, he served as director of Weihai Guangwei Composites
Co., Ltd. (BUBXBEAMERMHDBR AR, which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300699). From December
2015 to March 2020, Mr. Zhai was a director of Shaanxi Tourism
Culture Industry Holding Co. Ltd. (PEPEIR# XL EERH B R AR
(“Shaanxi Tourism”), a company listed on the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations Co., Ltd. (stock code: 870432). From June
2018 to January 2020, he served as director of Beijing Hualian
Department Store Co., Ltd (3t FEEE:EEMRMD AR A a]), which is
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000882).
Mr. Zhai has served as a director of CIIC Guanaitong (Shanghai)
Technology Co., Ltd. (FEBE®E (L&) BERMHERAA) (stock
code: 871282), listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations Co., Ltd., since November 2016. Since August 2015,
Mr. Zhai has been a director of Manpowergroup Greater China
Limited, which is listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2180),
and was subsequently re-designated as a non-executive director in
January 2019. Mr. Zhai was a director of Yonghe Medical Group Co.,
Ltd. (EABEEEARAA]), a har transplant and treatment
healthcare service provider which is listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2279) between September 2020 and June 2022, during
this time, he was re-designated as a non-executive director in June
2021. Mr. Zhai has been employed by companies affiliated with CITIC
PE and does not participate in the day-to-day operations and
management of the Group.

Mr. Zhai obtained his bachelor’'s degree in environmental engineering
from Tongji University ([ XE), the PRC, in July 1991.
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Mr. GENG lJiaqi (BX& ), aged 53, joined our Group in December
2013 and was subsequently appointed as our Director in February
2022 and was redesignated as our non-executive Director in March
2022. He is primarily responsible for decision-making in respect of
major matters such as formulating overall strategies, advancing
mergers and acquisitions, as well as managing corporate financing.

Mr. Geng has over 20 years of experience in investment and
management industry. Since October 2020, Mr. Geng has been an
investment director of Beijing Panmao Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. (At REHEILEEEERAF]). In addition, since September 2020,
he has been a director of Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (ZEREE
EBEEMRAF]), a hair transplant and treatment healthcare service
provider which is listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2279),
and was subsequently re-designated as a non-executive director in
June 2021. Since September 2022, he has been a director of Inner
Mongolia Prairie Red Sun Food Co., Ltd. (AT ERLAAGE REH
ABR7A7F]), a company primarily engaged in the R&D, production, and
sale of condiments. Mr. Geng has been employed by companies
affiliated with CITIC PE and does not participate in the day-to-day
operations and management of the Group.

From April 2005 to August 2008, Mr. Geng was an investment
manager at Actis Investment Beijing Representative Office (HEfI%E
ERARERE). From September 2008 to March 2010, Mr. Geng was a
senior investment manager of Beijing Hony Future Investment Advisor
Ltd. (tRaLEREFILERBMBBRAF]). From December 2011 to
December 2018, he was an investment director of Shanghai Panxin
Equity Investment Management Limited (/B2 {ZBREREEEER
‘A@]). He was a director of Wangfujing Group Co., Ltd., Gt REfFH
BE(EE)BRMHAERRAT), a company listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600859), from December 2016 to December
2019. From January 2019 to September 2020, Mr. Geng has also
been an investment director of Tianjin Panmao Enterprise
Management Limited Liability Partnership (KZZEMEEERAB L%
(ER&R)).

Mr. Geng obtained his bachelor’s degree in accounting & finance and
business administration & management from Oxford Brookes
University, the United Kingdom, in 1996 and his master’s degree in
business administration from State University of New Jersey, the U.S.,
in January 2001.
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Ms. LI Fangyu (Z5 ) (with former name LI Fanggian (&35 %)),
aged 34, joined our Group as a business manager in May 2016. She
was appointed as our Director in February 2022 and was
redesignated as our non-executive Director in March 2022, and in this
capacity she is primarily responsible for the overall management,
business, and strategy of our Group and oversight of the commercial
suitability and sustainability of our Group.

Ms. Li obtained her undergraduate degree in science majoring in
management from the London School of Economics and Political
Science (fRZHEUALLEEPT) in London, United Kingdom in July 2012.

Ms. Li is the daughter of Mr. Li Yang, the Chairman of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FAN Mingchao (E#4i#), aged 46, was duly appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company since the Listing
in January 2023 and is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Fan has over 15 years of experience in arbitration and
management. Mr. Fan currently serves as a deputy director of the
Shanghai Arbitration Commission (/& %% B€), an arbitrator of
the Arbitration Commission of the Chinese Football Association (7 Ed
BB EHEZEZEE) and the Court of Arbitration for Sports (B 82
& fH£BT). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan was a lecturer and
associate professor for over 10 years and once served as the deputy
director of the International Affairs Office at Shanghai University of
Political Science and Law (_E/8EUEEPRT), the Director of Arbitration
and ADR for North Asia of the International Chamber of Commerce,
and was the chief representative of its Shanghai Representative
Office. Mr. Fan holds his bachelor’s degree in international law from
East China University of Politics and Law (FEERBUAKZ) in Shanghai,
and the master’s degree in international commercial law from the
University of Manchester in the United Kingdom.
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Mr. LIU Teng (2/B), aged 55, was duly appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company since the Listing
in January 2023 and is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Liu has extensive experience in financial management and
investment banking. He worked at China Ping An Insurance (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd. from June 1999 to September 2007. He worked at
Taikang Asset Management (Hong Kong) Company Limited from
August 2008 to October 2010. He then worked as an executive
director in China Orient International Asset Management Limited from
February 2012 to March 2015. From October 2015 to September
2018, he worked at China Universal Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Company Limited with his last position held as a deputy chief
executive officer. Since September 2018, he has been the chairman
and SFC licensed responsible officer at China Eagle Asset
Management Limited, primarily responsible for overall investment
research, compliance risk control, and financial operations.

Since December 2020, Mr. Liu has also been an independent
non-executive director at Raily Aesthetic Medicine International
Holdings, a medical beauty company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2135), where he is the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee.

Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Arts in Professional Accounting and
Information Systems from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 2004. He was admitted as a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in October 2006, and became a
certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in February 2007.

Mr. JIANG Hua (GI#), aged 62, was duly appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company since the Listing
in January 2023 and is primarily responsible for supervising and
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Jiang has over 30 years of experience in academics and plastic
surgery. Prior to joining the Group, he was the director of plastic
surgery at The Second Affiliated Hospital of the Second Military
Medical University (56 —E 8 K2 —KiBEFT) (currently known as
Shanghai Changzheng Hospital (/8 &KAEERT)). Since 2019, Mr. Jiang
has been a chief physician and professor at Shanghai East Hospital
(L8R ERR).
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Mr. Jiang received his bachelor’s degree in clinical medicine from the
Second Military Medical University of the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army (5 =FEKXZ) in Shanghai, PRC in July 1985. He further
received his postgraduate’s degree in medicine from the National
University of Singapore in Singapore in January 2000. Since May
1999, he has been certified as a qualified surgeon by the People’s
Liberation Army General Logistics Department.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Yang (ZB3), aged 65, is our executive Director and chairman
of the Board of Directors. For further details, please see the
paragraphs headed “Directors and Senior Management — Directors
— Executive Directors” in this section.

Mr. LIAN Songyong (E#JK), aged 53, is our executive Director,
vice chairman of the Board of Directors, and our chief executive
officer. For further details, please see the paragraphs headed
"Directors and Senior Management — Directors — Executive
Directors” in this section.

Ms. ZHOU Min (FA#), aged 55, joined our Group as our chief
financial officer since March 2015 and has served as a joint company
secretary since March 2021. She is primarily responsible for financial
management of our Group, including financial accounting, internal
audit, legal affairs, investment and merger and acquisitions, as well as
investor relations.

Ms. Zhou has over 30 years of experience in financial management of
chain enterprises, investment and acquisitions. Prior to joining our
Group, Ms. Zhou Min served in the supermarket business department
of Bailian Group Co., Ltd. as well as the head of the financial
department of Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd. for more than
15 years. Bailian Group Co., Ltd. was at the time listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (600827.SH), and Lianhua Supermarket
Holdings Co., Ltd. is listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 980).

Ms. Zhou obtained her master’s degree in business administration
from the Arizona State University W.P. Carey School of Business (o2
FIZ BN 2 KE2SIEEERe) in July 2013. Since December 2004, she
has been a certified public accountant, recognized by the Provincial
Department of Finance (& BfEEZ). Since April 2007, she has been
certified as a senior accountant by the Provincial Human Resources
and Social Security Department (& &% AtLEEFT). Since June 2009,
Ms. Zhou has been certified as a tax agent by the State
Administration of Taxation (Bl #7542 5).
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. ZHOU Min (F#), aged 55, was appointed as a joint company
secretary of our Company on March 24, 2022. Ms. Zhou is also a
member of the senior management of our Company. For further
details, please see the paragraphs headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Senior Management” in this section.

Ms. KWOK Siu Ying Sarah (28Jk#), aged 40, was appointed as a
joint company secretary of our Company on March 24, 2022.
Ms. Kwok is currently a manager of corporate services of Vistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited. She has over eight years of
experience in the corporate services industry.

Ms. Kwok obtained a bachelor's degree in Business Studies from
University College Dublin, National University of Ireland in June 2012
and a master’s degree in Corporate Governance from Hong Kong
Metropolitan University (/& #8€ X2) in November 2017. She has
been an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and an associate member of The Chartered Governance
Institute in the United Kingdom since 2018. She is also an affiliate
member of The Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners.

Ms. Kwok is currently the company secretary of NVC International
Holdings Limited, a Main Board listed company in Hong Kong (stock
code: 2222) and the joint company secretary of Shanghai Bio-heart
Biological Technology Co., Ltd., a Main Board listed company in Hong
Kong (stock code: 2185) and Shanghai HeartCare Medical Technology
Corporation Limited, a Main Board listed company in Hong Kong
(stock code: 6609).

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed herein, as of the date of this annual report, the
Directors confirm that no information is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

BEADWE

B &t 555% M2022F3A24BEZEAERR
RMEE A RMWE AL NARARGREEE
RE  -BHEFE RASMIEEREAEERE
BEBE|SE -

=

BRI E 2t - 405% * M2022F3A24REZ AR
NEVHE A B M E o 20 & B {FVistra Corporate
Services (HK) Limited /™3 RIFACIE o i 1% RIS
FEEBNFLRS -

BRER2012F6 AR E BB BE L ASZHMMAE
BRESHEMRZLIEMRN2017F 11 ARER
BERBESPEERBELTEM - MH2018FER
FRERBDREAS B REHAFHARAELSS
Bt iREREEREERIZSHEEE -

B+ AMEEFEEEIR ETARELERERSA
BRAR (B AREE : 2222) A BMEARBE LR
ERRBLEEBELREYRMBRD AR 2B (B
5% £ 2185) RE B LR LT AR LB LR ERR
B BR AT (RIDHREE - 6609) BIBERE N RIME -

EEEREE
MAEFEEEI  BEAFREY  SEHIM
E|EARBERE ETRANE1351BMNIET AR -



20235 ZEHEBERRREXERAR 37

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board firmly believes that corporate culture is the
foundation for the Group’s long-term business, economic
success, and sustainable growth. A strong culture enables the
Company to deliver sustained performance and fulfill its role as
a responsible corporate citizen. By promoting its operating
cornerstone, vision, and core values, the Company has
continuously strengthened its organizational capacity, providing
a robust organizational guarantee for its business development.

With the vision of “Leading the way in beauty and health”, the
Company has established its operating cornerstone and core
values on this basis, thus deriving the corporate strategy.

In 2023, the Company further interpreted and deepened the
connotation of corporate culture, and led the management of
the Company to carry out a “Beauty Farm Culture Journey”:

(1) Operating Cornerstone

The core values of Beauty Farm are continuously pursuing
the long-term growth of the Company and remaining
committed to fostering long-lasting relationships with its
valued customers.

On this basis, we have established the principle of
long-term growth, namely: (1) not to pursue profit
maximization, but to pursue a certain level of growth
maximization; and (2) not to be motivated by short-term
interests, but to always focus on the core competitiveness
of the Company.
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(2) Core Values (=) B EEE

The establishment of operating cornerstones lays the
foundation of the core values of Beauty Farm. The core
values of Beauty Farm revolve around the realisation of its
operating cornerstones, which are: (1) customer
orientation: it means that products, operations, and
services all focus on satisfying the needs of our
customers or users, and we can provide our customers
with customized and differentiated services. As a result,
we will be able to gain in-depth insight into customers’
needs, constantly innovate and enrich our product lines,
and construct the unique “dual-beauty” business model
and “tri-beauty” growth curve of Beauty Farm; (2)
continuous innovation: it includes innovation in products
and services, business model, organizational structure and
many other aspects. The practice of continuous
innovation has enabled Beauty Farm to continuously
adapt to and embrace the changes of the times, and
forged into the lead of the industry in terms of business
model, digital construction and other aspects, so as to
enhance its marketing efficiency and brand influence; (3)
synergy: it enables collaborative support among
businesses, headquarters, regions and stores, departments
and departments, without prevarication and internal
friction, achieving a 1+1>2 synergy effect. It provides
strong organizational support and guarantee for the
internal growth and external mergers and acquisitions of
Beauty Farm; (4) working and sharing together: it refers
to the struggler-oriented, and the Company allocates
resources to the outstanding employees and successful
teams with excellent performance. It provides institutional
support for the Company to establish a strong combat
team.

Business Philosophy

Derives from the operating cornerstone of Beauty Farm,
that is, continuously pursuing the long-term growth of
the Company and remaining committed to fostering
long-lasting relationships with its valued customers.
Customer-centric is the long-term business philosophy of
Beauty Farm. With the aids of digitalization, we are able
to capture the deep demand for beauty from beauty and
wellness customers, identify gaps in the subhealth
market, as to provide customers with high-quality and
differentiated services to strengthen our operating
cornerstone.
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Corporate Strategy

In order to achieve our corporate vision and consolidate
the operating cornerstone, we have formulated the following
corporate strategies under the guidance of our corporate
values: (1) the innovative growth through a combination
of “tri-beauty”; (2) provide comprehensive customer
solutions; (3) prioritise investment in digital construction;
(4) concentrate on investing in advantageous regions; and
(5) continuously enhance our organizational capabilities.

All of our new employees are required to attend
orientation and training programs so that they may better
understand our corporate culture, structure and policies,
learn relevant laws and regulations, and raise their quality
awareness. In order to better realize the Company’s
organizational management and decision-making
implementation through the above-mentioned corporate
culture, the Company will evaluate the employee’s
understanding of the corporate culture and his/her
fulfilment of the corporate culture at the time of
promotion.

In 2023, the Company arranged for all members of the
management team to study and further their understanding
on the corporate culture of Beauty Farm, and assessed
the learning outcomes after the study.

In addition, in order to ensure a dual way communication,
the Company’s senior management regularly visit the
front-line stores in various regions to communicate
face-to-face with its employees, understand their
thoughts, listen to their suggestions for the Company's
development, and encourage them to share ideas.
Employees who make actual achievements will be
rewarded to form a cyclical process of bottom-up
participation, improvement and continuous development.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the
operating cornerstone, vision, core values and strategy of
the Group are aligned.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. Guided by the above corporate culture, the
Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code as its own corporate governance practices.

In order to strengthen information disclosure and transparency,
the Company regularly publishes financial reports, operating
conditions and other information, fully discloses them to
Shareholders, employees, business partners and the public, as to
improve information transparency.

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on January 16, 2023, to the best knowledge of the
Board, the Company had complied with all applicable criteria
and code provisions set out in the CG Code since the Listing
Date and up to the end of the Reporting Period.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the
corresponding provisions.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding dealings by the Directors and the Group’s
senior management who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to
Company or its securities.

Having made specific enquiries of all the Directors, they have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code since
the Listing Date and up to the end of the Reporting Period. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of
the Model Code by the senior management of the Group since
the Listing Date and up to the end of the Reporting Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors, and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Yang (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. LIAN Songyong (Chief Executive Officer,
Vice Chairman of the Board)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAI Feng
Mr. GENG Jiaqgi
Ms. LI Fangyu

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FAN Mingchao
Mr. LIU Teng
Mr. JIANG Hua

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no any relationship
(including, financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) between the Board members.

Since the Listing Date and up to the end of the Reporting Period, the
Board at all times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise and the appointment of independent
non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
Among the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Liu Teng
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Since the Listing Date and
up to the end of the Reporting Period, Mr. Li Yang serves as the
chairman of the Company and Mr. Lian Songyong serves as the chief
executive officer of the Company. The Company had fully complied
with the principles and Code Provision C.2.1 as set out in the CG
Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for, and has general powers for, the
management and operations of the Company’s business. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established three Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. The Company plans to establish the Environmental,
Social, and Governance (“ESG"”) Committee under the Board to guide
and manage ESG related matters of the Company. The Board has
delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. All Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Company recognizes that Board independence is essential to
good corporate governance. The Company has in place effective
mechanisms that underpin an independent Board and independent
views. Since the Listing Date and up to the end of the Reporting
Period. The current composition of the Board, comprising more than
one third of the of the independent non-executive Directors and more
than two third of the members of the Audit Committee are
independent non-executive Directors, which comply with the
independence requirements under the Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are all
chaired by independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee of the Company must strictly abide by the
Nomination Policy and the independence assessment criteria for the
nomination and appointment of independent non-executive Directors
set out in the Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director
is also required to notify the Company as soon as possible of any
changes in his personal information that may have a material impact
on his independence. The Nomination Committee is authorized to
assess the independence of all independent non-executive Directors
annually in accordance with the independence criteria set out in the
Listing Rules to ensure that they can continue to make independent
judgments.
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The remuneration of independent non-executive Directors is subject to
a regular review to maintain competitiveness and commensurate with
their responsibilities and workload. The independence of each
independent non-executive Director is assessed upon his/her
appointment and annually.

Directors are requested to declare their possible direct or indirect
interests in proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at
the Board meetings and abstain from voting, where appropriate.
External independent professional advice is available to all Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, where necessary. The
independent non-executive Directors have consistently demonstrated
strong commitment and ability to devote sufficient time to discharge
their responsibilities at the Board.

The Company has also established channels through formal and
informal means whereby independent non-executive Directors can
express their views in an open manner, and in a confidential manner
when necessary.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in compliance with the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Since the Listing Date and up to the end of the Reporting Period, the
Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing over one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors and senior management of the Company for
their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, all Directors, namely Mr. Li Yang, Mr.
Lian Songyong, Mr. Zhai Feng, Mr. Geng lJiaqi, Ms. Li Fangyu, Mr. Fan
Mingchao, Mr. Liu Teng and Mr. Jiang Hua have completed the
relevant trainings provided by The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute. All Directors have been updated with the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the Company has entered into
a contract with the Company which contains provisions in relation to,
among other things, compliance of relevant laws and regulations,
observance of the Articles of Association and provisions on
arbitration.

The initial term for their respective appointment letters shall
commence from the Listing Date and continue for a period of three
years subject always to re-election as and when required under the
Articles of Association, until terminated in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the appointment letter or by either party giving to
the other not less than 30 days’ prior notice in writing.

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have entered into any
service contract with any member of the Group (excluding
agreements expiring or determinable by any member of the Group
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association and the requirements of
relevant laws and regulations, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself to the
Shareholders for election at the next following general meeting of the
Company after appointment and any new Director appointed as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself to the Shareholders
for re-election at the next following annual general meeting of the
Company after appointment. The procedures and process of
appointment, re-election and removal of directors are set out in detail
in the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-election
and succession planning of Directors, in particular the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors.
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Mr. Lian Songyong, Mr. Zhai Feng and Mr. Liu Teng will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract that is
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to various Board
committees. In accordance with the relevant applicable laws and
regulations, the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, we have
established an Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”), a
Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), and a
Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”), for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company's affairs. Each of these committees
is established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of each of these committees are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee consists of Mr. Liu Teng, Mr. Fan Mingchao and Ms. Li
Fangyu, with Mr. Liu Teng being the chairperson of the committee.

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to assist our Board in
providing an independent view of our financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management system, overseeing the audit
process and performing other duties and responsibilities as assigned
by our Board, including but not limited to:

o proposing to our Board the appointment and replacement of
external audit firms;

o supervising the implementation of internal audit system;

o Coordination between our internal audit department and external
auditors;

o reviewing our financial information and related disclosures; and

o other duties conferred by our Board.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s annual financial results and reports for the year ended 31
December 2022, the interim results and reports for the period ended
30 June 2023 and to review significant issues on the financial
reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems and internal audit
function, anti-corruption policy and whistle-blowing policy, re-
appointment of external auditor and engagement of non-audit
services and relevant scope of works connected transactions and
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties, as well as reviewing the corporate governance
compliance.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee also met the
external auditor twice. Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires the
Audit Committee to comprise a minimum of three members with
independent non-executive Directors in majority and at least one
member with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. During the Reporting Period,
the Company has complied with the composition requirement of the
Audit Committee under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules with written terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Fan Mingchao, Mr. lJiang
Hua and Mr. Zhai Feng with Mr. Fan Mingchao being the chairperson
of the committee.

The primary function of and work performed by the Remuneration
Committee is to develop remuneration policies of our Directors,
evaluate the performance, make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of our individual executive Directors and
senior management and evaluate and make recommendations on
employee benefit arrangements, including but not limited to:

o establishing, reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on our policy and structure concerning remuneration of
our Directors and senior management;

o determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of
each Director and senior management;

o reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration in
accordance with the corporate goals and objectives as
determined by the Board from time to time;
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o reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

o other duties conferred by our Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
and made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company, and the performance and the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management and review the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts and other related matters during the Reporting Period.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model set out in item (ii)
under the Code Provision E.1.2(c) of the CG Code that The
emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation
given by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
individual performance and comparable market statistics. The
emolument of each Director and senior management of the Group is
covered by their respective service contracts.

Details of the remuneration payable to each Director for the
Reporting Period are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Remuneration by band of the senior management (including the
executive Directors) of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out
below:

REMUNERATION BANDS (RMB)
FMER (AR T)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Our Company has formatted the written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee in compliance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Fan
Mingchao, Mr. Jiang Hua and Mr. Lian Songyong, with Mr. Fan
Mingchao being the chairperson of the committee.

REZEE

RRIERBCETRADORE - SIETREZES
WEMRERE - RRZEgheHBEE 1%
FEAEMBIKEEANR  HPestiBaEEEZRE
FES



48 Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. ANNUAL REPORT 2023

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1 58 3R

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to our Board in relation to the appointment and
removal of Directors which includes but not limited:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of our Board on
a regular basis and making recommendations to our Board
regarding any proposed changes;

o identifying, selecting or proposing to our Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

o assessing the independence of our independent non-executive
Directors;
o making recommendations to our Board on relevant matters

relating to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of our
Directors; and

o other duties conferred by our Board.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will
consider various aspects as well as factors set out in the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss and
agree on the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board and recommend to the Board for adoption when necessary. In
identifying and selecting suitable candidates to serve as Directors, the
Nomination Committee will consider the relevant criteria for
candidates that are complementary to corporate strategy and
necessary to achieve diversity on the Board, as set forth in the
Nomination Policy, and then make recommendations to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors, to consider the qualifications
of the retiring Directors standing for election at the annual general
meeting and other related matters. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is maintained.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has established a director nomination policy (the
“Director Nomination Policy”) in accordance with the relevant
requirements. The Director Nomination Policy sets out the selection
criteria, process and the Board succession planning considerations in
relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of the Company
and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience,
knowledge and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall identify, consider and recommend to
the Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors and to make
recommendations to the Shareholders. The ultimate responsibility for
the selection and appointment of Directors rests with the entire
Board.
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The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
nomination and appointment of new Directors in accordance with the
following procedures and process: (a) the Nomination Committee shall
first review and assess factors relating to the diversity of the Board,
including but not limited to professional experience, skill, knowledge
and length of service, gender, age, cultural and education
background, and give consideration to the candidate’s willingness to
devote adequate time to the Board and independence of each
independent non-executive directors based on the requirements of the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time; and (b) the Nomination
Committee shall then nominate suitable candidates to the Board
based on the then current and anticipated future leadership needs of
the Company, with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company.

For the re-election of Directors at the general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and
service to the Company of the retiring Directors, including its
attendance at Board meetings, Board committee meetings and general
meetings (if applicable), and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board. The Nominating Committee shall require
the nominee to submit updated biographical information and the
consent to be re-elected as a Director; and should review and
determine whether retiring Directors still meet the criteria for Director
selection.

The Nominating Committee shall then make recommendations to the
Board on the re-election of Directors. The Nomination Committee shall
also monitor and review the implementation of the nomination policy,
as appropriate from time to time, and will report to the Board
annually.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee (or the Board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of
board members, and shall disclose the policy on diversity or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report.

The Board seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a few factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. We have established a board
diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) to enhance the effectiveness of
our Board and to maintain a high standard of corporate governance.
Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, in reviewing and assessing
suitable candidates to serve as a Director of the Company, our
Nomination Committee will consider a range of diversity perspectives
with reference to our Company’s business model and specific needs,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background and professional experience and knowledge. Furthermore,
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our Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the diversity of
our Board, reviewing the Diversity Policy from time to time,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives for implementing the
Diversity Policy, and monitoring the progress on achieving these
measurable objectives to ensure that the Diversity Policy remains
effective. The Board Diversity Policy will be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee annually.

Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including

but not limited to overall business management, finance and
accounting, research and development, investment and industry
experience. They obtained degrees in various majors including

engineering, business management, science, accounting and finance,
international law, and clinical medicine.

As at the date of this annual report, our Board consists of seven male
members and one female member. Further, our Board consists of one
director aged between 31 and 40 years old, one director between 41
to 50 years old, five directors between 51 to 60 years old, and one
director between 61 to 70 years old. Our Company has reviewed the
membership, structure and composition of the Board, and is of the
opinion that the structure of the Board is reasonable, and the
experiences and skills of the Directors in various aspects and fields can
enable our Company to maintain a high standard of operation.

The Board targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation and will continue to take steps to promote gender
diversity at the Board of our Company. Our Group will identify and
select several female individuals with a diverse range of skills,
experience and knowledge in different fields from time to time, and
maintain a list of such female individuals who possess qualities to
become our Board members, which will be periodically reviewed by
our Nomination Committee in order to develop a pipeline of potential
successors to our Board to promote gender diversity of our Board.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group employed a total
of 3,941 employees, of which 3,722 were female and 219 were
male.

Due to the nature of the Company’s business, our employees who
provide services to customers in front-line stores are all composed of
women, resulting in a higher proportion of female employees in the
Company compared with companies in other industries.
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The Group has made continuous efforts to pursue equal
opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination, and is committed to
creating a fair, respectful and inclusive working environment. We
make decisions on hiring, training, opportunities for advancement,
dismissal and retirement policies without regard to the age, gender,
marital status, pregnancy, family status, disability, race, color,
ancestry, national or ethnic origin, national origin, religion or any
other non-work-related factors. Even though the nature of the
industry and the business scope of the Company generally employ
more female employees, gender does not affect how we treat our
employees. In our middle and back-office functions and management
teams, we give consideration to gender balance and gender does not
affect the way we treat our employees. Both male and female
employees are placed in appropriate positions and receive
corresponding treatment according to their rank, work experience and
performance. We value the ability and contribution of our employees,
and through a scientific and reasonable promotion system, every
employee should enjoy equal opportunities and fair treatment.

The construction of female leadership is a core issue for the
development and nurturing of employees at Beauty Farm. Through its
business growth, Beauty Farm continues to drive the development of
female employees, helping them to complete self-improvement and
build a sense of self-identity. Based on helping them achieve good
career development and economic independence, they can obtain
family and social status, delivering positive influence on wider female
group in the society. The Group will be committed to achieve gender
diversity in the workforce. For further details of gender ratio, please
refer to the disclosure in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed:

o the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance,
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors;

o the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report; and

o training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management including the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a company listed.
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BOARD MEETINGS, COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code stipulates that board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of the majority of the Directors,
either in person or through electronic means of communications.
Code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code requires that the Chairperson
should at least annually hold meetings with independent
non-executive directors without the presence of other directors.

The Company became listed on January 16, 2023. The Company
adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly, at least four
times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Both the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee shall meet
at least once every year; and the Audit Committee shall meet at least
twice a year. Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all
Board and committee meetings to provide all Directors or committee
members with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for a regular meeting. The agenda and accompanying board
papers are dispatched to the Directors or committee members at least
three days before the intended date of the meeting to ensure that
they have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meeting. When Directors or committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
chairperson of the board or the committee members prior to the
meeting.

Minutes of meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretaries with
copies circulated to relevant Board or Board Committee for comments
and records. Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Board or committee members and dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee
meeting are sent to the relevant board or committee members for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by Directors.

During the Reporting Period, four Board meetings;, two Audit
Committee meetings; one Remuneration Committee meetings; one
Nomination Committee meetings were held and the Chairperson held
one meeting with independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors.
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The Company expects to continue to convene at least four regular AN FFEHIEERIBE(EEEASTEN T RNEXE
meetings in each financial year at approximately quarterly intervals in  C5.1{§ REFHREEBZHELNAEHEE - K
accordance with code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, and to hold a #JBFE — X : WREBE(DEE AT SFANEX
meeting between the Chairperson and the independent non-executive ~ S$C2.71§  THFENTEEME EHFNB R T L5
Directors without the presence of other Directors in accordance with M IEHITESEM — e -

code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

A summary of the attendance record of the Directors at Board TERHINEENEZEGCENTECETENHERT
meetings and committee meetings is set out in the following table  £(#fZ :
below:
Number of meeting(s) attended/number of meeting(s) held
during the year ended December 31, 2023
HESBRAE BE2023F12831A L FEETHNERRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee
EEgE BEEg EREES yFWEESg REZEEE
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Li Yang kL N/A N/A N/A
4/4 T A TiE A TiE A
Mr. Lian Songyong AN A N/A N/A
4/4 3 A i A 171
Non-executive Directors: FHITES !
Mr. Zhai Feng Bk N/A N/A
4/4 i A il i A
Mr. Geng lJiagi MEmiE N/A N/A N/A
4/4 T A TiE A TiE A
Ms. Li Fangyu THMWETL N/A N/A
4/4 2/2 i A i A
Independent Non-executive B IHITESE
Directors:
Mr. Fan Mingchao SRS A 4/4 2/2 11 1/1
Mr. Liu Teng 2R % 4 N/A N/A
4/4 2/2 i A i A
Mr. Jiang Hua LIS E N/A
4/4 i A il 11

None of the board or committee meetings were attended by an ZBFE€HZECERZHEEETERAHE -
alternate of the Director.
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GENERAL MEETING

During the Reporting Period, one general meeting was held.

A summary of the attendance record of the Directors at general
meeting is set out in the following table below:

Name of Director

BREXE
RIS BT RRRAR -

TR EEWRRARENHFLEME -

Number of
meeting(s) attended/
number of meeting(s)

held during

the year ended
December 31, 2023

HESRRE

B E2023F12A318
EEHE LEERTHEBERE
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Li Yang FhHiE 1/1
Mr. Lian Songyong BRI A 1/1
Non-executive Directors: FHITES:
Mr. Zhai Feng BEEs 1/1
Mr. Geng Jiagi BEmEE 1/1
Ms. Li Fangyu FHELZ T 11
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYEYITES:
Mr. Fan Mingchao BRI E A 1/1
Mr. Liu Teng 20 k£ 1/1
Mr. Jiang Hua TTEESAE 0/1




INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that the
Group maintains sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems, and make annual review on the effectiveness of such
systems during the year, in order to safeguard he Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets at all times. The Audit Committee
assists the Board of Directors in leading management and supervising
the design, implementation, and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The Company has established a clearly defined organizational
structure for its risk management and internal control systems, with
appropriate division of responsibilities, authority limits, reporting
mechanisms, and accountability to identify and manage potential risks
and safeguard the assets of the Group. The Company has established
and adopted various risk management procedures and guidelines. In
2023, the Group issued a business strategy with the purpose of
“maintaining perseverance and making breakthrough by innovation”,
which analyzes the basic form of the industry, determines the
Company’s operation plan, takes into account both short- and
long-term development strategies, manages and controls the strategy
risks. The Group has devised a “Risk Management System”
comprising of a three-tiered risk management process that
encompasses risk identification, assessment, and response. This system
outlines well-defined risk management protocols and standardizes
relevant workflows.

The Company has also established an “Internal Audit Management
System” that adheres to national audit regulations and formulates
internal audit implementation guidelines suitable for the Group to
safequard shareholders investments and the Group’s assets.
Meanwhile, the system also conducts regular checks, evaluations, and
feedback on the soundness, reasonableness, and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control system. Each year, the internal audit
department develops an annual internal audit plan for the Group and
its subsidiaries based on the annual work plan of the Group. The
department conducts checks, evaluations, and feedback on the
soundness, reasonableness, and effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and its subsidiaries and submits an annual
internal audit report to the Board and the Audit Committee.
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In 2023, the Company has conducted a self-assessment in the
following aspects:

1.

Internal environment

The Company has established a relatively sound corporate
governance structure in compliance with the requirements of
the Stock Exchange on corporate governance for listed
companies, as well as the requirements of the Company Law
and other relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. The
Company has formed a governance structure based on the
general meeting, the Board of Directors and the management:
the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee established under the Board ensures the standard
and effective operation of the Company’s general meeting, the
Board of Directors and other institutions, and safeguards the
interests of investors and the Company.

Risk assessment

The Company has not set up a risk management department to
manage risks, but it has conducted internal and external risk
identification for strategy risk, operational risk, financial risk,
legal risk, market risk, information risk and others in
accordance with the Company’s strategy planning, operational
plans and operational budget during the actual execution of
internal controls. The Company will link these risk factors with
business activities, analyze the impact and loss on the
Company, establish a risk list, and report to the management.
The Company evaluates and monitors major business processes
and risk points to avoid risks as much as possible and reduce
losses caused by risk events.

Controlling activities

The Company identified and evaluated the effectiveness of the
Company’s controlling activities in accordance with the
requirements of the Basic Standards for Enterprise Internal
Controland based on the contents of the application guidelines
in relation to funding activities, procurement business, asset
management, sales business, engineering projects and budget
management.
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Funding activities

The Company has formulated the “Fund Management
Regulations” (K& &£ E®EME)) and the “Financial
Reimbursement System”, etc., and established a solid
approval process for payment applications and expense
reimbursement applications in the BPM system,
confirming that the Company has regulated the scope of
matters for which expenses can be reimbursed as well as
the deadlines for reimbursement of expenses, and clearly
defined the standards for reimbursement of expenses. At
the same time, we will establish more stringent
authorization review procedures and a joint signature
system to ensure the safe and effective operation of
funding activities.

Procurement business

The main aspects of the procurement process all basically
realize online recording through the ERP system, which
achieves high efficiency, transparency and traceability. In
terms of procurement methods, through centralized
procurement, we integrate internal demand and external
resources to maximize the advantages of procurement
volume and achieve economies of scale. We continuously
improve the supplier management system and tender
management system, improve the standardized version of
the procurement contract, strengthen the integrity and
honesty of procurement management, adopt the
tendering method for important procurement items, and
establish a sound procurement and tendering
management process, to effectively carry out the
procurement costs control.

Asset management

The Company’s inventory is managed through the ERP
system, and the Inventory Management System ({EFE&
EHIE)) has been formulated, which stipulates the
procedures for the activities related to the inspection and
receipt of materials and products into the inventory,
scanning out of the inventory, stocktaking and inventory
checking, and disposal of the inventory. The Company
has formulated a fixed asset management system, which
regulates the acquisition, daily management, use and
disposal of fixed assets, and specifies the workflow and
operational details.
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Sales business

The Company has formulated corresponding management
systems, such as “Membership Rights and Benefits” ({(&
SiEmE)), "Policies On Regulating Store Operations —
Billing Rules and Cash Management “({B8 M 3R &0 P9 /5 48
Z FEMRAINMIESERRE)), “Management and Control
of Sales and Collections” ({88 £ UK A B 12 B2 1)),
which specify the procedures for membership renewal
recharges, the sales care (treatment), the collection of
products, sales, deliveries, refunds, and membership
withdrawal, and segregation of duties and responsibilities
of employees in incompatible positions in the sales and
collections process.

Engineering projects control

The Company has formulated the “Engineering Projects
Procedure Management System” to identify the possible
risk points in each aspect, clarified the duties and
responsibilities of the relevant departments, and separated
incompatible duties such as feasibility research and
decision-making, budget preparation and audit, and the
completion of final accounts from each other.

Budget management

The Company’'s budget preparation and budget
management are centrally managed by the Budget
Management Department. The chief executive officer
("CEQ") releases the strategic development plan for the
next year in the fourth quarter of each year, forming a
management mode of “from strategy to execution”,
through decoding strategy step by step, specifying the
key tasks and performance assessment, and promoting
the steady achievement of the Company’s strategic goals.
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3. Information and Communication
(1) Internal communication

The Company makes use of official website, WeChat
public account and other channel and mechanisms to
maintain smooth communication and liaison with
investors, media and regulatory agencies, makes regular
and irregular disclosure of relevant reports and accepts
inquiries from and checks by various regulatory agencies.

Internally, the Company has established information
channels for upward and downward communication and
feedback through corporate WeChat, corporate
mailboxes, announcements, telephones, videos and other
media platforms for the communication and delivery of
information; in the daily management, information and
communication channels such as regular meetings and
report have been established to facilitate the Company’s
employees at all levels to understand the information
relating to the Company’s operation and management in
a timely and efficient manner; and various unreasonable
and irregular behaviors have been supervised through
channels such as whistleblowing hotline and
whistleblowing mailbox; through continuous use of
information technology, the management decisions and
operational effectiveness have been continuously
improved.

(2)  Information system

Combining information system control framework
together with its actual conditions, the Company has
established the information control system, covering the
IT assets and important IT business procedures so as to
ensure the security of the information system of the
Company.

4. Internal Supervision

The Audit Committee was established under the Board of the
Company and is mainly responsible for the communication,
supervision and verification of the Company’s internal and
external audits. The audit department was established under the
Audit Committee as the Company’s internal audit and
supervisory organization, with full-time employees engaged in
internal audit and supervisory work. Internal control deficiencies
identified during audits or inspections are reported to the Audit
Committee or the management according to the severity of the
problem, and the relevant departments are urged to take active
measures to rectify the deficiencies, and the rectification
situation is followed up continuously to achieve closed-loop
management.
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The Company has been committed to the construction and
continuous improvement of the internal control system. In
2024, the Company will strengthen the system construction of
key businesses and procedures to meet the management
requirements and development needs of the Company. The
Company establishes a risk assessment mechanism and risk
analysis procedures continuously to identify risks in a
comprehensive and systematic manner. Strengthening the
execution of the internal control system, giving full play to the
supervisory functions of the Audit Committee and the internal
audit department, conducting inspections of the Company’s
various internal control systems, and following up on the
problems identified to ensure that rectifications are in place to
ensure the effective implementation of the various systems.

The existing internal control system of the Company is capable
of adapting to the requirements of the Company’s management
and the needs of its development, providing reasonable
guarantee on preparation of true financial statements, and
healthy operation of the company’s business activities as well as
implementation of the related national laws and regulations,
and the unit’s internal rules and regulations. The Company’s
internal control activities and the establishment of various
sound and comprehensive internal control systems are in
compliance with the relevant national laws and regulations and
the requirements of the regulatory authorities, and the systems
have been effectively implemented, which have played a
positive role in promoting the Company’'s standardized
operation and risks prevention, and have guaranteed the
sustainable, healthy and steady development of the Company's
business. At the same time, the Company will continue to
widely publicize the internal control system and raise the
internal control awareness of its employees, so as to promote
its consistency in operation and management as well as daily
work, thereby further enhancing the execution and effectiveness
of the internal control system.

As a result of the above, as of the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee has reviewed and confirmed to he Board
that the Group's risk management and internal control systems
are effective and sufficient. The Board, with the support of the
Audit Committee and its report, considers its risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended December 31,
2023 are effective and adequate.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

In respect of anti-corruption, we have formulated specific policies and
procedures. The management and Audit Committee oversees the
design and implementation of anti-corruption policies and procedures.
Relevant policies are set out in the Employee Handbook and Code of
Conduct. We do not tolerate bribery of any kind. We have also
established whistleblower procedures, dedicated hotlines and email
addresses to receive named or anonymous corruption reports and
rigorous investigation procedures. If employees are found to violate
relevant anti-corruption policies, their employment will be terminated.
Further details on our anti-corruption and whistleblower policies are
disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”. All
such discussions form part of this report.

In respect of process control, we will further improve the store
opening, new franchisee selection, franchisee exit, information data
acquisition, transfer and use process, and control the above processes
through the information system, and make timely adjustments.

In respect of organizational construction, we will further optimize the
organizational structure. By adjusting the functions and structures of
the established Medical Quality Department, Medical Development
Support Department, Franchise Operation, Franchise Integration and
Data Support Center, we will strengthen our internal management
and risk control while maintaining stable business growth.

Our Directors are of the view that our enhanced internal control
system is adequate and effective for our current operations. As at
December 31, 2023, the Company was not subject to any
government investigation or litigation with respect to claims or
allegations of monetary and non-monetary bribery activities, and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, none of our employees were
involved in any bribery or kickback arrangements.

The Company has designated responsible personnel to monitor our
ongoing compliance with relevant laws and regulations that govern
our business operations, and to oversee the implementation of any
necessary measures. Meanwhile, we plan to provide our Directors,
senior management and relevant employees with continuing training
programs and updates regarding the relevant laws and regulations on
a regular basis, with a view to proactively identifying any issues or
concerns relating to any potential non-compliance. We believe that we
have established adequate internal procedures, systems and controls
as to ensure anti-corruption and anti-bribery law compliance.
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DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to internal procedures and policy so as to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure and
publication of such information is appropriately approved, and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently made.

The Board is responsible for approving the policy on disclosure of
inside information which aims at providing guiding principles,
practices and procedures to assist employees and officers of the
Group in (i) relaying inside information to the Board to enable it to
make timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary; and (ii)
communicating with the Group’s stakeholders, in ways which are in
compliance with the SFO and the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for reviewing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Reporting
Period.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

The Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants and Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor as the auditors
for the Reporting Period. A statement by PricewaterhouseCoopers
about their reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is
included in the Independent Auditors’ Report of this annual report.
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Details of the fees paid or payable to the Company’s auditors, in REREHAE BT MIFBA RS EMGEEA

respect of the audit and non-audit services for the Reporting Period — RIX A E ABAME N T X ¢
are set out in the table below:

Service category RMB’000
PR Rl AR¥T T
Audit services: BT R

— Annual audit service — FEFETRS 3,006

Permissible audit related and non-audit services: E A FFTABEMIESHRE

— Audit related services — EETRBERK 106

— Non-audit services — JEEEARTE 46
Total FEE 3,158
COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY RATLARERTEBREA

CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

The Company engaged Ms. Kwok Siu Ying, Sarah, the manager of ZNA&HEEE Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited
Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited (@ (—RAAIMERGHER) WD ERBEBLIZIIK

AN

company secretarial service provider), as a joint company secretary of X+t AKXAFNEFERARWE - BT AAR

the Company. Ms. Zhou Min, is another joint company secretary of AR —{IHBsfE R RIFUE -
the Company.

Ms. Zhou, the chief financial officer and a joint company secretary of ARFEFEVHERBFEARMERZL AL L

the Company, is the primary corporate contact person of Ms. Kwok AR AIMEZHEBEA o
at the Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Ms. Zhou  A&&sF EHRAIFE3. 2915 - RREHE - AL+
Min and Ms. Kwok Siu Ying, Sarah undertook not less than 15 hours R EFK& L +HE R EA D15/ B A HRIH 25T

of relevant professional training to update their skills and knowledge 3l * A #¥ S &9 5 pe 2 203 o
during the Reporting Period.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed by the chairman of that meeting for each
substantially separate issue at Shareholder meetings, including
nomination and election of individual directors. All resolutions put
forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each
Shareholder meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of
any one or more members deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General
meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s))
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from
the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. However, Shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a
resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of
Article 12.3 are set out above.

For proposal of a person for election as Director, pursuant to Article
16.4 of the Articles of Association, no person shall, unless
recommended by the Board, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting unless during the period, which shall
be at least seven days, commencing no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election
and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting, there has been given to the Secretary notice in writing by a
member of the Company (not being the person to be proposed),
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is
given, of his intention to propose such person for election and also
notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected.

Inquiries to the Board

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to
the Company as follows:

Address: Unit 1206, 12th Floor, No. 1089 Dongdaming Road,
Hongkou District, Shanghai, PRC

Email: ir@beautyfarm.com.cn

Telephone: 021-60953299

Enquiries will be dealt with in a timely and informative manner.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and
investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The Company adopted the shareholders communication policy, which
set out the framework the Company has put in place to promote
effective communication with Shareholders so as to enable them to
engage actively with the Company and exercise their rights as
Shareholders in an informed manner. The shareholders
communication policy has been reviewed on a regular basis by the
Board of the Company.

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
These include (i) the publication of interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements; (i) the
annual general meeting or extraordinary general meeting providing a
forum for Shareholders to raise comments and exchanging views with
the Board; (iii) updated and key information of the Group available on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website; (iv) the
Company’s website offering communication channel between the
Company and its stakeholders; (v) the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong serving the Shareholders in respect of all share
registration matters; and (vi) convening investor meeting and/or
analyst briefings, which led by our investor relations team with
existing and potential investors.

During the Reporting Period, the Company convened one annual
general meeting on June 19, 2023.

The Company considers that the shareholders’ communication policy
was effectively conducted during the Reporting Period.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We currently do not have a formal dividend policy or a fixed dividend
payout ratio. Our Board may declare dividends in the future after
taking into account our results of operations, financial condition, cash
requirements and availability and other factors as it may deem
relevant at such time. Any declaration and payment as well as the
amount of dividends will be subject to our constitutional documents
and the Cayman Companies Law. In addition, our Directors may from
time to time pay such interim dividends as our Board considers to be
justified by our profits and overall financial requirements, or special
dividends of such amounts and on such dates as they deem
appropriate. No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of
our profits, retained earnings or share premium, subject to a solvency
test being satisfied.

Future dividend payments will also depend upon the availability of
dividends received from our subsidiaries in China. PRC laws require
that dividends be paid only out of net profits calculated according to
PRC accounting principles, which differ in many aspects from
generally accepted accounting principles in other jurisdictions,
including HKFRS. PRC laws also require enterprises incorporated in the
PRC to set aside at least 10% of their after-tax profits based on the
relevant accounting standards set out by the PRC regulatory
authorities at the end of each year to fund certain statutory reserves
until the statutory reserves reach and remain at or above 50% of the
relevant PRC entity’s registered capital. Distributions from our
subsidiaries may also be restricted if they incur debt or losses, or in
accordance with any restrictive covenants in bank credit facilities or
other agreements that we or our subsidiaries may enter into in the
future.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the Company’s annual
general meeting on February 20, 2024, the Company resolved to
amend the articles of association of the Company for the purpose of
updating and bringing the Articles of Association in line with the
amendments to Listing Rules’” which mandate the electronic
dissemination of corporate communications by listed issuers to their
securities holders from December 31, 2023 onwards, as well as other
housekeeping amendments.

There is no other change in the Articles of Association during the
Reporting Period upon the Company's listing. The currently valid
Articles of Association is available on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The board of directors is pleased to submit this report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended December 31,
2023 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Yang (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. LIAN Songyong
(Chief Executive Officer, Vice Chairman of the Board)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAI Feng
Mr. GENG lJiag
Ms. LI Fangyu

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FAN Mingchao
Mr. LIU Teng
Mr. JIANG Hua

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

The Company has received written confirmation from all independent
non-executive Directors regarding their independence. The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on February
10, 2022, as an exempted limited liability company under the laws of
the Cayman Islands. The Company’s Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on January 16, 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Beauty Farm is a leading beauty and wellness service brand in the
PRC. We are committed to providing high-quality beauty and wellness
services, aesthetic medical services as well as subhealth medical
services according to the individual needs of customers. The activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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An analysis of the Company’s revenue and operating profit for the
year by principal activities is set out in the section headed
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required under
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), comprising a discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year, a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year, and an indication of likely future development in the business of
the Group are provided in the section headed “Chairperson’s
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Report of
the Directors” of this annual report. All such discussions form part of
this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain key risks and uncertainties we face include: (i) any negative
public perception of our brand or reputation will have a material
adverse effect on our business; (i) we face customer complaints,
claims and legal proceedings in the course of our daily operations; (iii)
we may not be able to obtain, hold or renew all permits, licenses,
certificates and other regulatory filings; (iv) China’s ongoing regulatory
reform of the beauty and health management services industry is
unpredictable, and we may be subject to new or more stringent
regulations, which may result in significant additional expenses for
which we may be subject to penalties; (v) the market of the beauty
and health management services may not grow as expected, which
may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition; (vi) our business performance may
be adversely affected by the negative public perception of the beauty
and health management services industry as a whole; and (vii) we are
exposed to the risk of impairment losses related to goodwill
recognized on acquisitions, whereas impairment losses related to
intangible assets could have a material impact on our profitability.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company is committed to operating its business in compliance
with applicable environmental protection laws and regulations and has
implemented relevant environmental protection measures in
compliance with the required standards under applicable PRC laws
and regulations.

The Company does not involve in factory operations or consumes any
hazardous chemicals in its business process. As a result, we believe
that there will be no significant impact on the environment and
natural resources in the business operation of the Group. The main
impact is mainly the greenhouse gas generated when the stores and
offices use electricity. As certain beauty equipment and product
suppliers are located outside China, the greenhouse gas may be
generated during the transportation and certain waste packaging
generated from the Group’s operation and suppliers’ products may
not be effectively sorted and recycled, leading to inappropriate
disposal, which may aggravate global warming.

Therefore, the Company not only aims to reduce energy consumption,
water consumption, greenhouse gas emissions and waste disposal, but
also plans to explore innovative technologies in the market and
cooperate with suppliers to carry out emission and waste reduction
projects, so as to develop its business in a more environmentally
sustainable way.

Further details of the Company’s environmental policies and
performance are disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”. All such discussions form part of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year ended December 31, 2023, there was no
material breach of, or non-compliance with, applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

A review of the employees and remuneration policies of the Group
for the Reporting Period are set out in “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group does not have any employee who is required to
participate in the Mandatory Provident Fund in Hong Kong. Full-time
employees in the PRC participate in various government-funded
defined contribution pension schemes, whereby employees are entitled
to monthly pensions calculated according to certain formulas. Relevant
government agencies are responsible for paying pensions to such
retired employees. The Group makes monthly contributions to such
pension schemes. Under such plans, the Group has no further
payment obligations for post-retirement benefits other than the
contributions made. Contributions to such plans are expensed as
incurred and contributions paid to such defined contribution pension
plans for an employee cannot be used to reduce the Group’s future
liability to such defined contribution pension plans (even if the related
employee leaves).

Details of the contributions to the pension schemes of the Company
are set out in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of
this Annual Report.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

In 2023, the purchases from the top five suppliers amounted to
RMB220.3 million, accounting for approximately 42.7% of our total
purchases. In 2023, the purchase from the largest supplier amounted
to RMB69.3 million, accounting for approximately 13.4% of our total
purchases. During the Reporting Period, we did not encounter any
supply disruptions, supply shortages, early termination of supply
agreements or inability to obtain sufficient supplies that would have
any material adverse impact on our business or results of operations.
None of the Directors, their respective close associates or any
Shareholder of the Company (who, to the knowledge of our
Directors, owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) has any interest in any of five largest suppliers of the
Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Reporting Period, our customers mainly consisted of
individual clients and franchisees. Sales to the top five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for less than 1.0% of our total
revenue during the Reporting Period.
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KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Details of our relationship with various stakeholders are disclosed in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company is not aware of
any changes in Directors’ information that is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors of the Company has entered into
a contract with the Company which contains provisions in relation to,
among other things, compliance of relevant laws and regulations,
observance of the Articles of Association and provisions on
arbitration.

The initial term for their respective appointment letters shall
commence from the Listing Date and continue for a period of three
years subject always to re-election as and when required under the
Articles of Association, until terminated in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the appointment letter or by either party giving to
the other not less than 30 days’ prior notice in writing.

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have entered into any
service contract with any member of the Group (excluding
agreements expiring or determinable by any member of the Group
within one vyear without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended December 31, 2023 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and none
of the Directors, or any of their spouse or children under the age of
18, had any right to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any such
right.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The aggregate amount of remuneration and benefits in kind
(including any possible payment of discretionary bonus and
equity-settled share-based compensation expense) which were paid by
the Group to our five highest paid individual (including both
employees and Directors) for the years ended December 31, 2021,
2022 and 2023 were RMB26,133,000, RMB23,141,000 and
RMB29,881,000, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the year ended December 31,
2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions
and Connected Transactions” below, during the Reporting Period,
there were no transactions, arrangements or contracts in which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries were a party
and which were material to the business of the Group and the
Directors directly or indirectly have material interest.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions
and Connected Transactions” below, during the Reporting Period,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries entered into any
material contract with its controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries in respect of the provision of any services.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Li, Ms. Li, Mr. Lian, Niu Guifen, Cui Yuanjun and Yuan Huimin
(each being the controlling shareholder of the Company) have
entered into a non-competition undertaking for the benefit of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholder Non-Competition
Undertaking”). Pursuant to the Controlling Shareholder Non-
Competition Undertaking, the above-mentioned controlling
shareholders undertake that they will not and will use their best
efforts to procure that their respective associates (except any member
companies of the Group) will not, directly or indirectly or as principal
or agent on their own account or jointly with or on behalf of any
person, firm, company or entity, conduct, engage in, invest in,
participate in, attempt to participate in any competing business or
investment activities which is the same or similar to any of our core
business (i.e. provision of beauty and health management services (i.e.
beauty and wellness services, aesthetic medical services, and subhealth
medical services)) (the “Restricted Business(es)”), hold any rights or
have any financial interests in or otherwise participate in or have an
interest (financial or otherwise) in such business(es) (whether alone or
jointly with other persons, whether directly or indirectly or on behalf
of or assisting or acting in concert with any other person).
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Hainan Qiyan Stem Cell Anti-aging Hospital Co., Ltd. (“Hainan
Qiyan”) has also entered into a non-competition undertaking for the
benefit of the Company (the “Hainan Qiyan Non-Competition
Undertaking”). Pursuant to the Hainan Qiyan Non-Competition
Undertaking, Hainan Qiyan undertakes that it will not and will use its
best efforts to procure that its associates (except any member
companies of the Group) will not, directly or indirectly or as principal
or agent on their own account or jointly with or on behalf of any
person, firm, company or entity, conduct, engage in, invest in,
participate in, attempt to participate in any competing business or
investment activities which is the same or similar to the Restricted
Business(es), hold any rights or have any financial interests in or
otherwise participate in or have an interest (financial or otherwise) in
such business(es) (whether alone or jointly with other persons,
whether directly or indirectly or on behalf of or assisting or acting in
concert with any other person).

According to the annual statement on compliance with the above
non-competition undertakings provided by each party in the
Controlling Shareholder Non-Competition Undertaking and Hainan
Qiyan Non-Competition Undertaking, which is dated March 11, 2024,
they confirmed that they have complied with the undertakings made
in the above non-competition undertakings during the period from
January 1 to December 31, 2023 (the “Relevant Period”). The
independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
them in the annual review. In summary, the independent non-
executive Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain,
the above-mentioned persons have not violated their non-competition
undertakings. Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is
interested in any business which competes, or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly with the Company’s business.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions
and Connected Transactions” below, no contracts relating to
management and administrative affairs of all or any major part of the
businesses of the Company were entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group had entered into
certain non-exempt continuing connected transactions as set out
below. Other material related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended December 31, 2023, which do not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, during the year ended December 31, 2023 the
Company had not entered into any connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions which were required to be
disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1. The Contractual Arrangements

The Special Administrative Measures for the Access of Foreign
Investment (Negative List) (2021) (SME#RE AR BIE R
(BMEE) (20214 k) (the “Negative List”) promulgated jointly
by the MOFCOM and the NDRC, the Negative List stipulates
industries in which foreign investments is restricted and
prohibited. According to the Negative List, the operation of
medical institutions falls within the “restricted category”, and
therefore may not be held 100% by foreign investors.
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According to the Provisional Measures for the Administration on
Sino-Foreign Equity and Cooperative Medical Institutions (/)
BB AERERIBETIEETIE), foreign investors are not
allowed to hold more than 70% equity interest in a medical
institution. As part of our business, our Group operates medical
institutions which offer medical services including aesthetic
medical services (including a limited amount of surgical
aesthetic medical services that are classified as low-risk Grade |
medical procedures according to the applicable laws and
regulations) and subhealth assessment and intervention services
(the “Relevant Businesses”). The operation of such medical
institutions fall into the scope of the “restricted” category of
the Negative List. As such, Relevant Businesses are operated in
accordance with above-mentioned restrictions by the Group.

Shanghai Liernuo and the Contractual Arrangements are
therefore necessary for us to hold part of our interest in the
Relevant Business. During the Reporting Period, we generated
approximately RMB239.80 million in revenue from the
Contractual Arrangement, representing approximately 11.18%
of our revenue during the Reporting Period, and the net asset
subject to the Contractual Arrangement was approximately
RMB38.77 million, representing approximately 4.65% of our net
asset during the Reporting Period. Please refer to note 2.1.4 to
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report for further details of the Restricted Medical
Institutions which are partially held by Shanghai Liernuo.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no other new contractual
arrangements entered into, renewed and/or reproduced
between the Group, Mr. Li and/or Shanghai Liernuo during the
Reporting Period. There was no material change in the
Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances under
which they were adopted during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Contractual
Arrangements had been unwound on the basis that none of
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements had been removed. As of the end of the
Reporting Period, the Company had not encountered
interference or encumbrance from any PRC governing bodies in
operating its businesses under the Contractual Arrangements.
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The Contractual Arrangements applies to the equity interest of
Shanghai Liernuo, which in turn holds minority interest in the
Group’s Restricted Medical Institutions.

The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow of
economic benefits from our Restricted Medical Institutions to
our Group as stipulated under the Contractual Arrangements:
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Notes: Bz

(1) Mr. Li is the registered shareholder of Shanghai Liernuo.

2) "4—»" denotes direct legal and beneficial ownership in the
equity interest.

3) "4 - " denotes contractual relationship.
(4) R " denotes the entities that are subject to the Contractual
Arrangements.

A brief description of the specific agreements that comprise the
Contractual Arrangements is set out below.
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Exclusive Operation Services Agreements

Mr. Li, Shanghai Beauty Farm and the Restricted Medical
Institutions have entered into exclusive operation services
agreements with Shanghai Liernuo on April 13, 2022 and
on November 4, 2022 and various dates during 2023, to
ensure that both the existing and new medical
institutions that require VIE arrangements are covered by
the contract, pursuant to which, the Restricted Medical
Institutions, Mr. Li and Shanghai Liernuo agreed to
engage Shanghai Beauty Farm as their exclusive provider
of technical support, consulting services and other
services in exchange for a service fee.

Under the agreement, the services to be provided include
but are not limited to (i) business, financing and
investment, (ii) medical technology related consultation,
medical resources sharing and medical professionals
training, (iii) human resources management, (iv) market
research, (v) strategies for marketing and business
expansion, (vi) supplier and inventory management, (vii)
operation and marketing strategy formulation and
monitoring, (viii) medical service quality control, (ix)
internal management and (x) other services relating to
management and operation of medical institutions.
Shanghai Beauty Farm has proprietary rights to all the
intellectual properties developed or created by itself from
the performance of these services. During the term of the
exclusive operation service agreement, Shanghai Beauty
Farm may use the intellectual property rights owned by
Shanghai Liernuo and the Restricted Medical Institutions
free of charge and without any conditions.

The service fee payable shall be an amount equal to the
distributable net profit of the Restricted Medical
Institutions of a given audited financial year, after
deducting losses from the previous financial years (if any)
and any statutory provident fund (if applicable). Apart
from the service fees, Shanghai Liernuo and the
Restricted Medical Institutions shall reimburse all
reasonable costs, reimbursed payments and out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by Shanghai Beauty Farm in connection
with the performance of the exclusive operation services
agreement and provision of services.
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Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements

On April 13, 2022 and on November 4, 2022 and
various dates during 2023, Shanghai Beauty Farm, Mr. Li,
Shanghai Liernuo, and the Restricted Medical Institutions
entered into exclusive purchase option agreements to
ensure that both the existing and new medical
institutions that require VIE arrangements are covered by
the contract.

Pursuant to the agreements, (i) Mr. Li irrevocably and
unconditionally grants an exclusive option to Shanghai
Beauty Farm which entitles Shanghai Beauty Farm to elect
to purchase at any time, when permitted by the then
applicable PRC laws, all or any part of the equity interest
in Shanghai Liernuo itself or through its designated
person(s), (ii) Shanghai Liernuo irrevocably and
unconditionally grants an exclusive option to Shanghai
Beauty Farm which entitles Shanghai Beauty Farm to elect
to purchase at any time, when permitted by the then
applicable PRC laws, all or part of the assets of Shanghai
Liernuo itself or through its designated person(s), (iii)
Shanghai Liernuo irrevocably and unconditionally grants
an exclusive option to Shanghai Beauty Farm which
entitles Shanghai Beauty Farm or its designated person to
elect to purchase at any time, when permitted by the
then applicable PRC laws, all or any part of the equity
interests held by Shanghai Liernuo in the Restricted
Medical Institutions from Shanghai Liernuo itself or
through Shanghai Beauty Farm’s designated person(s), (iv)
the Restricted Medical Institutions irrevocably and
unconditionally grants an exclusive option to Shanghai
Beauty Farm which entitles Shanghai Beauty Farm to elect
to purchase at any time, when permitted by the then
applicable PRC laws, all or any part of the equity
interests of the Restricted Medical Institutions, and (v) the
Restricted Medical Institutions irrevocably and
unconditionally grant an exclusive option to Shanghai
Beauty Farm which entitles Shanghai Beauty Farm to elect
to purchase at any time, when permitted by the then
applicable PRC laws, all or part of the assets of the
Restricted Medical Institutions from the Restricted Medical
Institutions directly or indirectly attributable to Shanghai
Liernuo themselves or through Shanghai Beauty Farm'’s
designated person(s), Shanghai Beauty Farm may appoint
designated person(s) in its sole discretion when exercising
its option. The transfer price of the relevant equity
interests and assets shall be the minimum purchase price
permitted under PRC law, and each of Mr. Li, Shanghai
Liernuo and the Restricted Medical Institutions will
undertake that he/it will, subject to applicable PRC laws,
return in full the consideration received in relation to
such transfer of equity interests or assets to Shanghai
Beauty Farm and/or its designated person(s).
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iii)

Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements

On April 13, 2022 and on November 4, 2022 and
various dates during 2023, Shanghai Beauty Farm, Mr. Li,
Shanghai Liernuo and the Restricted Medical Institutions
entered into the shareholders’ rights entrustment
agreements to ensure that both the existing and new
medical institutions that require VIE arrangements are
covered by the contract. Pursuant to the agreements, (i)
Mr. Li irrevocably agree to authorize Shanghai Beauty
Farm (and its successors or liquidators) or a natural
person designated by Shanghai Beauty Farm to exercise
all of its rights and powers as a shareholder of Shanghai
Liernuo, including the rights to vote at a shareholders’
meeting, sign minutes, and file documents with the
relevant companies registry, (ii) Shanghai Liernuo
irrevocably agrees to authorize Shanghai Beauty Farm
(and its successors or liquidators) or a natural person
designated by Shanghai Beauty Farm to exercise all of its
rights and powers as a shareholder of the Restricted
Medical Institutions (as applicable), including the rights to
vote at a shareholders’ meeting, sign minutes, and file
documents with the relevant companies registry. Pursuant
to the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements, the
power of attorney granted in favor of Shanghai Beauty
Farm and actions it takes in relation to the Contractual
Arrangement will only be decided by officers or Directors
other than Mr. Li (being a registered holder). As
Shanghai Beauty Farm is a subsidiary of the Company,
the terms of the shareholders’ rights entrustment
agreements will give the Company control over all
corporate decisions of the Restricted Medical Institutions
and 100% equity interests of Shanghai Liernuo.

Equity Pledge Agreements

On April 13, 2022 and on November 4, 2022 and
various dates during 2023, Shanghai Liernuo, Mr. Li,
Shanghai Beauty Farm and the Restricted Medical
Institutions entered into equity pledge agreements to
ensure that both the existing and new medical
institutions that require VIE arrangements are covered by
the contract. Pursuant to the agreements, (i) Mr. Li agree
to pledge all of his equity interests in Shanghai Liernuo,
and (ii) Shanghai Liernuo agrees to pledge all of its
equity interests in the Restricted Medical Institutions to
Shanghai Beauty Farm to secure performance of all their
obligations and the obligations of Mr. Li, Shanghai
Liernuo and the Restricted Medical Institutions under the
agreements underlying the Contractual Arrangements.
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Spousal Undertakings

The spouse of Mr. Li has signed an undertaking to the
effect that she has no right to or control over such
interests of the respective persons and will not have any
claim on such interests under the Contractual
Arrangements.

Risk Relating to the Contractual Arrangements

There are the certain risks that are associated with the
Contractual Arrangements, including:

if the PRC government deems our Contractual
Arrangements does not comply with PRC regulatory
restrictions on foreign investment in the relevant
industries, we could be subject to penalties or be forced
to relinquish our interests in those operations.

we rely on Contractual Arrangements to exercise control
over Shanghai Liernuo and Restricted Medical Institutions,
which may not be as effective as direct ownership in
providing operational control.

contractual Arrangements we have entered into may be
subject to scrutiny by the PRC tax authorities and may
adversely affect our tax liabilities.

Shaihai Liernuo or its shareholder may fail to perform their
obligation and/or might have conflicts of interest with the
Group in relation to the Contractual Arrangements.

substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the
interpretation and implementation of foreign investment
law in the PRC.

Our Group has adopted the following measures to ensure the
effective operation of our Group with the implementation and
compliance of the Contractual Arrangements:

major issues arising from the implementation and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements or any
regulatory enquiries from government authorities will be
submitted to our Board, if necessary, for review and
discussion on an occurrence basis;

our Board will review the overall performance of and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements at least
once a year;
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o our Company will disclose the overall performance and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements in its
annual reports and interim reports to update our
Shareholders and potential investors; and

o our Company will engage external legal advisers or other
professional advisers, if necessary, to assist the Board to
review the implementation of the Contractual
Arrangements and the legal compliance of Shanghai
Beauty Farm, Shanghai Liernuo and the Restricted Medical
Institutions to deal with specific issues or matters arising
from the Contractual Arrangements.

The Hainan Qiyan Cooperation Agreement

Shanghai Beauty Farm has entered into a cooperation
agreement dated January 1, 2022 with Hainan Qiyan (the
“Cooperation Agreement”), pursuant to which we will
recommend and refer our clients to Hainan Qiyan based on our
clients’ needs and suitability for Hainan Qiyan’s services in
return for a cooperation fee. Shanghai Beauty Farm s
responsible for providing consultations to our clients,
coordinating and scheduling of meeting between the client and
Hainan Qiyan, client relationship maintenance and other
administrative tasks required to facilitate the cooperation.
Shanghai Beauty Farm will only provide clients’ information and
refer them to Hainan Qiyan with the client’s consent. In
addition, Hainan Qiyan will also exclusively refer its patients in
need of diagnostic services (including functional assessment and
sub-health assessment services for overall health conditions,
chronic disease, mental health screening and electrical
impedance analysis on the digestive system) to the Group (the
“Diagnostic Service Referral”).
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Pricing and Annual Cap

Shanghai Beauty Farm shall receive a cooperation fee which will
be equal to 60% of a referred client’'s actual spending with
Hainan Qiyan in exchange for the services provided by the
Group and Hainan Qiyan shall charge such referred clients fees
in accordance with the price list applicable to all clients. We
shall charge such referred clients no other fees in relation to
services provided by Hainan Qiyan and to the extent the clients
are referred through our franchised stores that provide services
to them, part of the cooperation fee will be paid directly to the
franchised stores. The cooperation fee will be invoiced and
settled between Shanghai Beauty Farm and Hainan Qiyan on a
monthly basis. The calculation of the cooperation fee was
determined through arm’s length negotiation between Hainan
Qiyan and Shanghai Beauty Farm with reference to similar.
cooperation arrangements and is no less favorable to our
Group than cooperation fee that our Group charges
independent third parties who sought similar services from our
Group. Hainan Qiyan will not charge any referral fee for the
Diagnostic Service Referral and the Group will directly charge
Hainan Qiyan’s referred patients in accordance with the Group’s
standard rates for the relevant diagnostic services.

Pursuant to the supplemental agreement entered into between
Shanghai Beauty Farm and Hainan Qiyan on December 22,
2023, the total amount payable by Hainan Qiyan to our Group
for the years ending December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024,
should not exceed RMB24.50 million, RMB32.60 million and
RMB44.10 million, respectively. During the Report Period, the
amount of cooperation fees payable pursuant to the
cooperation agreement was RMB32.30 million (including VAT).

The Hainan Qiyan Property Lease Agreement

Hainan Meirui entered into a property lease agreement dated
January 1, 2022 with Hainan Qiyan (the “Property Lease
Agreement”), pursuant to which Hainan Qiyan leases from
Hainan Meirui for business operation and dormitory space in
Bo'Ao, Hainan province with an aggregate area of 4,618 sq.m.

Pricing and Annual Cap

The rent to be charged is RMB6.40 million, RMB6.72 million
and RMB7.06 million per annum for the year 2022, 2023 and
2024, respectively. The rent was determined by Hainan Qiyan
and our Group through arm’s length negotiation based on a
number of factors including but not limited to the prevailing
market rent of similar property located in the vicinity and the
terms of the lease and the rent payable is exclusive of utilities
usage which Hainan Qiyan pays directly to the relevant utilities
service provider.
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During the Report Period, the amount of rent payable pursuant
to the lease agreement was RMB6.72 million (including VAT).

Mr. Li is directly interested in 0.01% of Hainan Qiyan's
registered share capital and the remaining 99.99% of Hainan
Qiyan’s registered share capital are held by Shanghai Qishi
Commercial Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) (/&
MEHEERARLE (BRE%)), a limited partnership that
is in turn controlled by Mr. Li and Ms. Li. Hainan Qiyan is
therefore regarded as a connected person of our Company.
Therefore, the aforementioned transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of our Company upon Listing
as Mr. Li and Ms. Li our controlling shareholder and are
connected persons of the Group.

We have applied to the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock
Exchange has granted, (i) a waiver from strict compliance with
the announcement requirement under Rule 14A.105 of the
Listing Rules in relation to the Cooperation Agreement and
Property Lease Agreement, and (i) a waiver from strict
compliance with the announcement, circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.105, the
requirement of setting an annual cap under Rule 14A.53 and
the requirement limiting the term of the transaction to three
years or less under Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules in relation
to the Contractual Arrangement (together, the “Waivers”). The
waiver in relation to the Contractual Arrangement is subject to
the following conditions:

o no change without independent non-executive Directors’
approval;

o no change without independent Shareholders’ approval;

o the Contractual Arrangements shall continue to enable our

Group to receive the entire economic benefits derived by
the Restricted Medical Institutions and Shanghai Liernuo;

o the Contractual Arrangements may be renewed and/or
reproduce (i) upon expiry or (i) in relation to any
existing, newly established or acquired wholly foreign
invested enterprise or operating company (including a
branch company) engaging in the same business as that
of our Group which the Group might wish to establish
when justified by business expediency, without obtaining
Shareholders’ approval, on substantially the same terms
and conditions as the Contractual Arrangements; and

o our Group will disclose details relating to the Contractual
Arrangements on an on-going basis.
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The Auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions as set out in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of these continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in the Annual Report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors, upon review of the
overall performance of and compliance with the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that (other
than the Contractual Arrangements), the non-exempt continuing
connected transaction for the Reporting Period were: (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of the Company’s business; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better to the Company; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. In relation to the
Contractual Arrangements, the independent non-executive
Director confirmed that: (i) the transactions carried out during
the Reporting Period have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Contractual Arrangements; (i) no
dividends or other distributions have been made by Shanghai
Liernuo which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to our Group; and (iii) saved as disclosed herein, no
new contract has been entered into, renewed or reproduced
between the Group and Shanghai Liernuo during the Reporting
Period during the Reporting Period.

The Company has complied with the disclosure and other
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and the Waivers (if applicable) in respect of the
aforementioned transactions.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of December 31, 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of our Company in any of the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of our Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including any interest or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code were as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of issued share
Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest Shares held™ capital®
HEBITRE
BEEHR B REEME FERGHEBAM BHARETES?
Li Yang Interest in a controlled corporation® 2,000,000 0.85%
=5 REZ LR R
Adviser of a trust® 35,560,000 15.04%
EETEEfE@
Interest jointly held with another person® 77,427,000 32.75%
BB —fATH Hhﬁ%%*“
Interest of your spouse® 27,000 0.01%
BBz R ©
Li Fangyu Beneficial owner 7,000 0.00%
FHE EmEA A
Adviser of a trust? 42,200,000 17.85%
ERERAMRO
Interest jointly held with another person® 72,580,000 30.70%
HE—AATHAEZFENERC
Lian Songyong Adviser of a trust® 35,020,000 14.81%
EIRIK EETEEfE®
Interest jointly held with another person® 79,967,000 33.83%
HE—ZATHERAOERC
Notes: P 5E
(1) Unless otherwise indicated, shareholding set forth herein are long (1) BB EBRBEN  AREAYIERAEE2023F12A
positions as at December 31, 2023. 31TAMFE -
(2)  The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s  (2) &L HIRE E 2023412 A31 BAQT S BTN

236,405,568 Shares in issue as at December 31, 2023.

236,405,568 5t & ©
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(3) Mr. Li is interested in the entire share capital of LIY Holdings Limited
which holds 2,000,000 Shares in the Company.

(4) Mr. Li is the power holder of Tiantian Trust and is able to exercise the
voting rights of 35,560,000 Shares held by LIY Management Holdings
Limited, which is in turn owned as to 99.99% by LYBF Management
Holdings Limited and is wholly owned by Tiantian Trust.

(5) Mr. Li, Ms. Li, Mr. Lian Niu Guifen, Cui Yuanjun and Yuan Huimin have
entered into a concert party agreement to confirm that they have acted
in concert in the management, decision-making and all major decisions
of our Group, as such, each of them are deemed to be interested in
the Shares each other is interested in. They are collectively interested in
the voting rights of 114,980,000 Shares.

(6) Mr. Li's spouse, Ms. Chen Xiaomei, beneficially owns 27,000 Shares in
the Company.

(7) Ms. Li is the power holder of Meimei Trust and is able to exercise the
voting rights of 42,400,000 Shares held by LIFY Management Holdings
Limited, which is in turn owned as to 99.99% by LFYE Management
Holdings Limited and is wholly owned by Meimei Trust.

(8) Mr. Lian is the power holder of EffieA Trust and is able to exercise the
voting rights of 35,020,000 Shares held by Meiyao Holdings Limited,
which is in turn owned as to 69.63% by LIANSY Family Holdings
Limited and is wholly owned by EffieA Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2023, so far as it was
known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As of December 31, 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had or were deemed or taken to have interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

(3)  FHAMLY Holdings Limited ) 2 4B I A & #E A 1
%= B4R RSB ARAA)2,000,00088 B8 45 ©

(4)  ZE4LH4E ATiantian TrustlEHEHA A - BESTTEELY
Management Holdings Limited f7$5 35,560,000 0% %
P EYIZHE - LY Management Holdings Limited
FLYBF Management Holdings Limited % 99.99%
# 25 - YA Tiantian Trust2 & A ©

(5) FEE Frt EEE FES ETEREER
FEFL—RITBHALHZE  BRESHAEED

%?EE RERFIBERARPHEDN—BTEH B

BESERRBREBES ARMEAERORG
Wﬁﬁﬁs/\ o 11 55 R A 114,980,000 A% A% 17 B9 5%
FhEEm o

6) FhRAEMEE:
BB o

PREEIG 22 - E e ¥ A A 7]27,000

(7)  FLZERMeimei TrustfIENEFE A - BEMTTELIFY
Management Holdings Limited fT#342,400,000 % %
B I ZERE - MLIFY Management Holdings Limited
HLFYE Management Holdings Limited# % 99.99%
#E2E - A AMeimel Trust2 & A ©

(8) % & REffieA TrustWiENH B A - BESITE
Meiyao Holdings Limited FfT#535,020,000A% A% 15 &9
% Z # 0 fMeiyao Holdings Limited F1LIANSY

Family Holdings Limited# 569.63% # z + I £
EffieA Trust2 & A °
B EXTREESN  BE2023F12A31H - BEF

FARARBITRAEMA  BEEEIARF R
BITRABRARRREMEEBE RN - HER
o RIEHEE P HE BT AREE S LB RGIF352
BATHFENECLMANBEIORE  IREEE
SRIBHERRAB R RO ERIOXER

EERFNS QARG RABRE Y
EaRXE

HE2023F12A318  BESHMM - TIAL(E
ERA DR ERITERABRIN RARQE MG AE
RO HERFREREEREEREESNPE
1EBISEXVEBE 2 X 535 BME A M AN A &) KB R A
BEOERIAR KO LALRRRIREEF R
EIEFIE336IEBFENECMANERIAR
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Long positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the

Company

Number of Shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
issued share

Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest held® capital®
HEBITRE
TERRHE BB B RRMHE FEROGEY BAREBEI L@
Chen Xiaomei Beneficial owner 27,000 0.01%
RiE1E EnBEEA
Interest of your spouse® 114,987,000 48.64%
Bz #ERY
Niu Guifen Interest jointly held with another person® 114,987,000 48.64%
TS EE - ATHABENERY
Cui Yuanjun Interest jointly held with another person® 114,987,000 48.64%
Bk R - ATHABENERY
Yuan Huimin Interest jointly held with another person® 114,987,000 48.64%
B HE - ATHABENERY
LIY Management Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 35,560,000 15.04%
EnEBA
LIFY Management Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 42,400,000 17.94%
EnBEEA
Meiyao Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 35,020,000 14.81%
EanlEEA
Trident Trust Company (HK) Limited Interest in a controlled corporation® 112,980,000 47.79%
BREX(EE)BRRA REZEENERS
THE CORE TRUST COMPANY LIMITED Trustee® 13,485,568 5.70%
ERETEERLA XEEA®
Beijing Xinyu Meiye Holdings Limited Beneficial owner?” 57,939,000 24.51%
EnEBA
Shanghai Xinzhi Yuyuan Enterprise Interest in a controlled corporation®”
Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership), (“Shanghai Xinzhi
Yuyuan”) 57,939,000 24.51%
FEEBERCEERARAE REEEENER?
(BRE®) ([ LEEBEER])
Shanghai Panxin Yanzhao Investment Interest in a controlled corporation®
Consulting Co., Ltd. (“ Shangha| Panxin") 57,939,000 24.51%
EPEBEEHRARAERA REEEENERD
([ EBEED
Beijing Xinyu Investment Center (Limited  Interest in a controlled corporation®”
Partnership), (“Beijing Xinyu") 57,939,000 24.51%
EREZRETL(AREE) REREBNERD
(MExmfEED)
Beijing Youde Investment Management Interest in a controlled corporation®”
Center (Limited Partnership) (“Beijing
Youde") 57,939,000 24.51%
TREEREEERL(BEREH) REZEENER?
(MEREED
Shanghai Youde Equity Investment Center Interest in a controlled corporation®”
(Limited Partnership) (“Shanghai
Youde") 57,939,000 24.51%
PEEERERER L (ERER) REEEENES
(=3 3))
Shanghai Panxin Mezzanine Investment Interest in a controlled corporation®”
Management Company Limited (“Panxin
Mezzanine") 57,939,000 24.51%
FBEEREREEEARAA REEEENERD

(&R
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of Shares issued share

Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest held™® capital®@
HEBITRE

TERRHUE BB 54/ RRME FERGEY BOREBEIL®
Shanghai Pannuo Corporate Management Interest in a controlled corporation”

Service Company Limited (“Shanghai

Pannuo”) 57,939,000 24.51%
PEERCEERRBEERLA REFEEENER

([ EBEHE]D
CITIC Private Equity Funds Management Interest in a controlled corporation”

Co., Ltd. ("CITIC PE") 57,939,000 24.51%
HEEFREECEEERAA REEEE N ERT

(fcmc pel)
CITIC Securities Company Limited Interest in a controlled corporation” 58,019,500 24.54%
FEEFRHERAT REEEENERY 80,500 (5) 0.03%

Notes:

(1

(2)

3)

)

(5)

6)

Unless otherwise indicated, shareholding set forth herein are long
positions held as at December 31, 2023. Short positions are denoted as

“(S)".

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s
236,405,568 Shares in issue as at December 31, 2023.

Ms. Chen Xiaomei spouse, Mr. Li, held interests in 114,987,000 Shares
of the Company through beneficial ownership, interest in a controlled
corporation, and interests held jointly with other persons.

Mr. Li, Ms. Li, Mr. Lian Niu Guifen, Cui Yuanjun and Yuan Huimin have
entered into a concert party agreement to confirm that they have acted
in concert in the management, decision-making and all major decisions
of our Group, as such, each of them are deemed to be interested in
the Shares each other is interested in. They are collectively interested in
the voting rights of 114,987,000 Shares.

Trident Trust Company (HK) Limited is interested in the Shares beneficially
held by LIY Management Holdings Limited (through their control of
LYBF Management Holdings Limited), LIFY Management Holdings
Limited (through their control of LFYE Management Holdings Limited)
and MeiYao Holdings Limited (through their control of LIANSY Family
Holdings Limited).

THE CORE TRUST COMPANY LIMITED, as a trustee of two trusts, held
(a) 7,300,000 Shares through Crest Sail Limited, which is owned as to
99% by Vantage Star Global Limited; and (b) 6,185,568 Shares through
Thriving Team Limited. Vantage Star Global Limited and Thriving Team
Limited are wholly-owned by TCT (BVI) Limited, which, in turn, is
wholly-owned by The Core Trust Company Limited.

MIeE -

(M

(5)

(6)

BRBHBIN  AREAMIIER SEE20235F12A
BTHMFR < KBIEI(GS)]) »

BRI PR E = 2023412 A31 B AR F B #HITRGD
236,405,568 % 5t & o

RESLITNEETLERBERES  <EAE
Mg kBEEMARRBIENER BEAAF
114,987,0000% f& 1% °

ThE Tt ERE FES ETERER
PFEAV—BITHATHZE  BRESHREALEN
B RERAMBEAREFPRRN—BITH
I BHESARRAERESS AT A ERSORG
hiEAER - HEERFEAR 114,987,000 I D K%

TS -

EHREL(FHB)BRAQARLY Management
Holdings Limited (3% i81% % Hl#ILYBF Management
Holdings Limited) * LIFY Management Holdings
Limited (B i@ % ST HAULFYE Management Holdings
Limited) & MeiYao Holdings Limited (3% 38 1% 242 %I
BILIANSY Family Holdings Limited) & 25355 B A% (9
REEERER -

ERETBRAR (EAMERGETENZEA) Q)RR
Crest Sail Limited#s 57,300,000 f% 1 * i Crest
Sail Limited fiVantage Star Global Limited %5 99%
ez R(b)@Bi#BThriving Team Limited$§ &
6,185,568 %% 5 ° Vantage Star Global Limited &%
Thriving Team Limited@TCT (BVI) Limited
2EWA - MTCT BVI) Limited AEFEEH R A A
2EEE -



(7) Beijing Xinyu Meiye Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Shanghai Xinzhi
Yuyuan, the general partner of which is Shanghai Panxin, a company
directly owned as to 90% by Beijing Xinyu. Beijing Xinyu is also
interested in more than 33.33% limited partnership interest in Shanghai
Xinzhi Yuyuan. The general partner of Beijing Xinyu is Beijing Youde,
whose general partner is Shanghai Pannuo. Shanghai Youde is
interested in more than 33.33% limited partnership interest in Beijing
Youde and is controlled by Shanghai Pannuo as its general partner.
Panxin Mezzanine is interested in more than 33.33% limited partnership
interest in Shanghai Youde. Each of Panxin Mezzanine and Shanghai
Pannuo is wholly-owned by CITIC PE, which is in turn owned as to
35% by CITIC Securities Company Limited, a company listed on both
the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2023, the Company has
not been notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the issued share capital of the Company, other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

2022 SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

The Company has adopted a 2022 share incentive plan (the “Share
Incentive Plan” or “Scheme”) by a board resolution on March 24,
2022. The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Incentive Plan.

(@) Purposes of the Share Incentive Plan

The purposes of this Share Incentive Plan is to recognize and
motivate the contributions by the eligible persons and give
incentives thereto in order to retain them, as well as to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

(b) Share Incentive Plan Participants

Persons eligible to receive grants under the Share Incentive Plan
(the “Grant”) are employees or officers (excluding any Directors
or any other core connected person of the Company) of the
Group, including any prospective employees (who receives a
grant as an inducement to join the Group) (the “Participants”).
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(7)  Beijing Xinyu Meiye Holdings Limitedd1 /5= 2k
BRREBMAE MESEREENERABAALS
B ZATAILRERZEERAFIO%ESZ - bR
EZNR LB ERERBIB33.33% ERAEEET
HAEER R EENEBERARLRERE H
LTBEBARLEER - LEEERIELREERB
3BBREREEEPHARER  UZ LEEH
(ERHEBRARA) LG - BERER LEBEEHR
iB33.33% BRABRE T AR - BERERL
BEREZBHCATIC PEREHEE - MCTIC PERFE
EERMDAERAREEI%ER  TEEERNHE
RARA—RRBRIME EEEHFRXSMETHR
=

B EXFREES  HE2023F12A8310 - BES
RARNBESITBABIN  RARWEEME AR
BB BT A A H b B K IR B 5 R B &)
EXVEE2 REID BB MAR RH B AR
KB - KRB AR R RIAKIBEE R KHAE G336
BFENECMA LR AEREIAER -

2022 F R BB 5T &
RNATER2022F3 024 EABEES REZTEN
2022 FE IR D ET B ([ BRI EhET 21 Sk (5121 )) o
AT ARG SBEEOEZEINE -

(a) Kt AEE S A/
AEOHEEEERATLABAEERAL
ERERL - WL SRR AR BT - AR
BAKENE - TERRSIGEOAR

(b) Mty AENE &2 EE
REBER DSBS EREERE T (TRT)
WMALTRAEENBETIRERBE (TREE
MEBFXAARNEAEBZOBEAL) -
BIEEAARKE T (WEERIMAREEH R
METOALI(T2EE]) -
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Share Incentive Plan Grants

Any Participant who accepts a Share Incentive Plan Grant in
accordance with the terms of this Scheme, or (where the
context so permits) any person who is entitled to any award in
consequence of the death of the original grantee (the
“Grantee(s)”) will obtain a conditional right (the “Share Units"”)
whereby the Grantee shall be entitled to obtain either Shares or
an equivalent value in cash with reference to the market value
of the Shares on or about the date of exercise of the Share
Units, less any tax, stamp duty and other charges applicable, as
determined by the committee authorized by the Board (the
“Committee”) in its absolute discretion.

Term of the Share Incentive Plan

Subject to the termination provisions therein, the Share
Incentive Plan shall be valid and effective for the period of ten
(10) years commencing on the 16 January 2023 (the “Term”),
after which period no further awards will be granted, but the
provisions of the Share Incentive Plan shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect and awards that are granted
during the Term may continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of issue.

Grant of Award

On and subject to the terms of the Share Incentive Plan and
the terms and conditions that the Committee imposes pursuant
thereto, the Committee shall be entitled at any time during the
life of the Share Incentive Plan to make a grant to any
Participant, as the Committee may in its absolute discretion
determine (an “Award"”).

Awards may be granted on such terms and conditions (e.g. by
linking the vesting of their Share Units to the attainment or
performance of milestones by any member of the Group, the
Grantee or any group of Participants) as the Committee may
determine, provided such terms and conditions shall not be
inconsistent with any other terms and conditions of the Share
Incentive Plan. A Grant shall be made to a Participant by a
letter and/or any such notice or document in such form as the
Committee may from time to time determine (the “Notice of
Grant”) and such Grant shall be subject to the terms as
specified in the Share Incentive Plan and the Notice of Grant
shall be substantially in the form prescribed in the Share
Incentive Plan. By accepting the Award, the Participant shall
undertake to hold the Award on the terms on which it is
granted and be bound by the provisions of the Share Incentive
Plan.

To the extent that the Award is not accepted within the period
determined by the Committee, it will be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined and shall immediately lapse.

(d)

W0 A Bt 2R 3R T

EAAR B AT 8100 R BIR B BB A 813R
TE2EE - ok (X &M A ) E R ERA
BAG A RESEMNERN AL ((HEER
ADBES—BAGRENEN ([BHE
f2l) - Bt AR ARBREREN XS E
Betn BALTTEE A Ak AT IR B M A FER
& BEANE - EEHREFTERENEZE
g((ZE8g]) 2ENBRENEHLERRE -

110 2 BT 81 HABR

FEAIR & T8 M0 AR LE I SUE R 12 0 IR0 B
=21 B 20231 B16 B #£ 5 H(10)F ([H7
RDAREBRED  HEBHEBI IR T E
— U R B EMEXRAE R
HESNE RS RMA  mMRERA
B A R B T B AR IR LB A TIR IR T LATTEE -

i gungg)

RFE O AB AT BB IR - WHEZ B & 6N
VIR R IR RIR T - ZE S AR A
B FHABRRNEE e 2 NIEETE
MEMSEEERE T ((EE)) -

REN PR Z B & ] BEE E MO IR R R R
(Bl D BB r0 SR B L A SR B E KB 2
Al AEAREMN - H2RENKFEREKRIR
BRREHN)  EABGREGEHTRERK
10 AL B AT &Y & 1 7 B b 15R SR AR - BT
BB R/ REEGTREETAFANGE
MEERMEXXG(RTEMN]) M2EE
tEL - BZE TASBRR BN BB 8588
iR B TEAEREE LRARMD A
AEIRENTR - BRRNEE  2EERA
AR TRORBOIGTTERE XAR
Bt BB AT BURSTATAI SR

HEBMANZESEENHRABER  H
TR AE A RE IR - RIS KR o



Acceptance of Award

If the Participant accepts the offer of grant of Share Units by
signing the Notice of Grant, he is required to sign the
acceptance notice and return it to the Company within the
period specified and in a manner prescribed in the Notice of
Grant. Upon the receipt from the Participant of a duly executed
acceptance notice, the Share Incentive Plan is deemed granted
to such Participant from the date of the Notice of Grant, and
the Participant becomes a Grantee in the Share Incentive Plan.
Unless otherwise required under the Notice of Grant, no
amount is payable by the Grantee upon the acceptance of the
Award.

Restrictions on Grants

The Committee may not grant any Awards to any Participants
(the "Excluded Participants”) in any of the following
circumstances:

(@  the requisite approvals for that grant from any applicable
regulatory authorities have not been obtained;

(b)  the securities laws or regulations require that a prospectus
or other offering documents be issued in respect of the
grant of the Awards or in respect the Share Incentive
Plan unless the Committee determines otherwise;

() where granting the Award would result in a breach by the
Company, its subsidiaries or any of the directors of any
applicable securities laws, rules or regulations; or

(d)  where such grant of Award would result in a breach of
the limits of the Share Incentive Plan. No Grant shall be
made to, nor shall any Grant be capable of acceptance
by, any Participant at a time when the Participant would
or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by any
applicable rules, regulations or laws. Further, a Grant
must not be made after inside information has come to
the Company’s knowledge until such inside information
has been announced in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. In particular, during the
period commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of:

(@  the date of the meeting of the Board (as such date
is first notified to the Stock Exchange in
accordance with the Listing Rules) for the approval
of the Company’s results for any year, half-year,
quarterly or any other interim period (whether or
not required under the Listing Rules); and
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(o)  FBFHEBISAR IR E AR H 2B L
BB ST ERRERREMEE
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(0 HRHEHBBBIEHEALR HHMBARHK
TREFEREMERERER - HAI
FOEMR ¢ 3K

d)  HRHEBERKETE KD MBS
BREE - IMEEARR ORRIOER
BERITH AR 2RETERND
o ARABTNEREMBEEELER
T AEM2EERISERRT - B
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(b)  the deadline for the Company to publish an
announcement of its results for any vyear or
half-year under the Listing Rules, or quarterly or
any other interim period (whether or not required
under the Listing Rules), and ending on the date of
the results announcement; no Award may be
granted. Such period will cover any period of delay
in the publication of a results announcement.

Vesting

Subject to compliance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules, the Committee has the sole discretion to determine the
vesting period and vesting conditions (if any) for any grant of
Award(s) to any Grantee, which may also be adjusted and
redetermined by the Committee from time to time. Upon
fulfillment or waiver of the vesting period and vesting
conditions (if any) applicable to the Awards granted to each of
the Grantees, a vesting notice (the “Vesting Notice”) will be
sent to the Grantee and the independent trustee(s) appointed
by the Committee to assist with the administrating and vesting
of the Awards (the “Trustee”) by the Committee or by any
other means as determined by the Committee in its sole
discretion from time to time confirming (a) the extent to which
the vesting period and vesting conditions (if any) have been
fulfilled or waived, and (b) the number of Shares (and, if
applicable, the Share Unit Income) or the amount of cash
equivalent that the Grantee will receive.

The Grantee is required to execute, after receiving the Vesting
Notice, certain documents set out in the Vesting Notice that the
Committee considers necessary (which may include, without
limitation, a certification to the Company that he has complied
with all the applicable terms and conditions set out in this
Scheme and the Notice of Grant). If all or any of the vesting
conditions are not satisfied and no waiver of such condition is
granted, the Share Unit under the Award, to the extent that
such vesting conditions relate, shall be cancelled in a manner to
be determined by the Committee in its absolute discretion.

General and Maximum Limit

The maximum number of Shares which may be granted under
the Share Incentive Plan is 6,185,568 representing 2.62% of
the number of Shares in issue as of the date of this annual
report. The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights attached
to Shares under the Share Incentive Plan. The Company shall
comply with the relevant Listing Rules requirements on the
maximum entitlement of each participant under the scheme.

The Share Incentive Plan was adopted on 24 March 2022 and
Awards were only available for grant thereafter. As of
31 December 2022, Awards for up to the maximum limit of
Shares for which the Trustee may acquire has been granted and
therefore no Awards were available for further grants. Future
grants may be made in compliance with the scheme rule of the
Share Incentive Plan in the event that any Awards lapses and
results in the number of Shares underlying granted falling
below the maximum number of Shares which may be granted
under the Share Incentive Plan.

(i)

(b)  ARBRIE LR TIBEAEATF
BRFFEXENELFTE LN
Higrp BB R E (Mam ET AR
BERE) R ERE - B2%E
RNEBH MR RE - AR
HESRETETEHEEREDN
EMHIR

iy

= =2
E/’/::E

BT ETRANRET  ZEEUEER
15 7 TE A el AR A ER B ) 55 88 1 X% R
BT (E) - EARBNRABREZEGTE
ELRBEREBHETE - RERARE TS AR
AEERED ) 53 B H K BR B AR (N ) EE K
SEHRE ZEERRAARARZESEZME
A B E 32 MR T B M B XA ([R5E
ADBEZXEBBAM((REAM])  HAEE
N2 BB E e E AT AR ()
BEARBEGRG (B BEERKHREN
BE ¢ R(o)E R A UCERH B n 28 B (B (40
ER) RO BARA) RBEEEMDRE -

AR AR T BB MR - AR5 BE
MBZEERRVENE T XM (KR e
EUERERR) AARRRREED E A
N 3% T 3B A P E R B A R R R AR A0
BR) o fisl BT A ST MR 55 B8 AR (F RIS Ak AR J&
e AINARBEBEMTEREE BRI ER
ATENEM BAZEE2RNIBTEEN

—REENESRE
RIBBRDBBAEITETNRZROEE A
6,185,568%  (hE Z AR FH AL 17D
HER2.62% ° TFEATESITERS BEEE
HETIBROBEMHEEZEE - AARAEBET LN
BABMAS2EEEZTE TSR REEN
RIE °

A% BB ET 2R 2022 -3 A 24 HERA - 1L18
FE B TR - 8520229128318 2@
THEABRTFLHAEAJREESHRDORSR
RHAEE) - R BEE — SR T IEE - T
B 2K R 8 B H A AR B AR D B B E R IR &
B SBErEATREOESBROEE @ A%
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The following table summarizes the number of Share Units
under the Share Incentive Plan granted to employees of the
Company as of the date of this annual report:

The date of grant
(the exercise and
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TRE A = AN F A IR EE O BB 2
AARARBBEITRHEOBNEMEE -

Participant vesting period)’ Number of awards
RT¥AH
2RE (TERBES) REYA
Vested/
Granted exercised Cancelled Lapsed
As of  during the  during the  during the  during the As of
January 1, Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting December
2023 Period Period Period Period 31, 2023
HZ2023F REHR HEHAR REHR BREMR  BE2023F
1818 Bt BE/TE B % 12A31A
Senior management and November 21,
other employees of the 2022 (Note 2)
Company 6,185,568 — - — — 6,185,568
BRERBRAAFAMAM 2022911 A21H
BT (M3E2)
Sub-total 6,185,568 — - — — 6,185,568
it
Notes: P 5

(1

(2)

As all Shares underlying the Share Incentive Plan has already been
issued to Thriving Team Limited and no additional Shares may be
issued in respect of the Share Incentive Plan, the outstanding
Share Units did not have any dilutive effect on the shareholding
of the Company upon Listing. The Awards were granted prior
the Company’s Listing and its fair value was RMB38.4 million.
Details on the basis for fair value measurement is set for in note
2.14 and 20 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

None of the grantees were the five highest paid employees during
the Reporting Period. The Awards will be vested to the grantee
in 4 tranches on the first, second, third and fourth vyear
following the Award grant date, provided that certain Group
level performance goals are met at such time (targeted net profit
for the year) and the relevant grantee elects to make an award
payment of RMB24.25 per Share Unit (equivalent to RMB12.125
per Share Unit following the share subdivision by listing dated
16 January 2023) after the vesting date. The payment price for
Awards was determined based on the Board's determination of
the value of the Awards as of the time of the grant, and the
incentive effect that was intended to be achieved with the
Awards. If the vesting conditions are not met for any given
tranche of the Award, the Share Units exercisable under such
tranche will be voided, and will no longer be exercisable (even if
the vesting conditions of subsequent tranches are fulfilled). The
four tranches of the Awards are therefore exercisable by the
relevant grantee (through payment of the aforementioned Award
price) from 31 December 2023, 31 December 2024,
31 December 2025 and 31 December 2026 respectively and will
all cease to be exercisable on 31 December 2027.

HRBRYEBDAEEFNTEROER
Thriving Team Limited 317 17 5L 8 gt A% 17 2B
FTEIBITRESMNERG > R ETIR - MAREEA
B 17 BB AL T & YT AR R R IR E AR B &2
ZoBWEHHEARRF WMz ARE - AQR
BEAARKIBIAET - ARAEBETER
ERF BN G S M REAMT2.14%20 ¢

REHANAMEBEABRAADERSHE L - 8
BN ERREASREE— F= - FE=RK
BEMNEDIMEBRARA  FIREETA
EEEENENE ZEREHEERETH
FREEZ - BAREARAEEREERH
B REFIESERNDBEMAR24.25
7L (2023F1A16B LWHFkE - T4 &
AR BRI ARKE12.1257T) © #EEIH T & F
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group did not enter
into or have any equity-linked agreements in existence.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

The Group was not involved in any material litigation or arbitration
during the year ended December 31, 2023. The Directors are also not
aware of any material litigation or claims that are pending or
threatened against the Group during the year ended December 31,
2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, the Company bought back a total of
865,500 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange with the
aggregate consideration paid (before expenses) amounting to
approximately HK$13.0 million. The repurchases were effected
because the Board considered that the trading price of the Shares
does not reflect their intrinsic value and actual business prospects of
the Group, this is therefore a good opportunity for the Company to
repurchase the Shares, thereby enhancing the value of Shares and
improving return to shareholders of the Company. Particulars of the
shares of the Company bought back are as follows:

PR #E £ 54 15 55
AEBNRHEZE2023F12 A31 B IEFEWEFT 517
B ER R -

B KR

AEEREZE2023F12 A31HIEFEIES MM
BAFAE - REZE2023F12A31BIEFE -
EENMU A ABEAEF RS EAREBAEKRFA
AR -

BE HEIEEIARR EHREEF

RIS - A RREE 2 FTEE [0 & 2£865,500 % 7K
REEG  BENEEE(HBRRAXA)AOR13.088
AL -ERBERONRADESTERA/ROHNTER
BERMENEBERAEENERERIS A
ARATERIRME R - ARG EELRA
AR TR ERE)E R o A2 7 0 B D & 15 10
T~

Number of Highest per Lowest Aggregate

Shares share per share consideration

RHBE BRE&ESE ER&EE B E

(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

(B 7T) (% 7T) (BT)

June 2023 202346 H 185,500 23.70 22.95 4,390,800.70
July 2023 2023%7H 70,000 18.40 17.00 1,233,710.35
August 2023 202348 H 243,500 13.32 13.00 3,211,059.60
September 2023 2023%F9H 299,000 12.04 9.80 3,412,439.65
October 2023 20234 10H 31,000 9.96 9.75 305,346.30
November 2023 2023%F11H 36,500 13.40 12.66 483,430.25

On August 31, 2023, an aggregate of 255,500 Shares repurchased by
the Company from June 2023 to July 2023 were cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2023 and details of the Shares issued
during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in Note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MR2023F8H31H » AN A AlR2023F6 A £20234F
7 A EARS BB @ A $£255, 500 A% 1D B s sE 8l o
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DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debentures for the year ended
31 December 2023.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

We have historically been able to obtain bank borrowings when
required. We do not foresee any obstacles to doing so in the future.
In addition, if we obtain bank loans and financing in the future, we
plan to negotiate with banks to restructure our bank borrowings by
obtaining loans with better terms, and to take systematic steps to
restructure the composition of short-term and long-term borrowings,
such as refinancing certain portions of our short-term bank
borrowings with long-term Bank borrowings. As of December 31,
2023, our unutilized bank facilities amounted to RMB100 million.

The Directors confirm that we have not defaulted in repayment of
bank loans and other borrowings during the Reporting Period. The
Directors confirmed that as of the date of this annual report, there
were no material covenants of outstanding debts and no covenants
had been breached during the Track Record Period and up to the
Latest Practicable Date. During the Track Record Period and up to the
Latest Practicable Date, to the best knowledge of our Directors, we
have not encountered any difficulty in obtaining bank loans.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Group did not issue any convertible bonds for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to recommend the distribution of a final
dividend of HK$0.47 per Share (equivalent to RMBO0.43) for the year
ended December 31, 2023 (a total of approximately HK$110.8
million), subject to approval by the Shareholders at the AGM. The
final dividend is expected to be paid to the Shareholders on or before
September 25, 2024 (Wednesday). The dividend will be paid to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the Company's register of
shareholders on July 8, 2024 (Monday). The Group is not aware of
any arrangement by which any shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividend.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to applicable laws
and regulations, each Director, auditor or other officer of the
Company is entitled to an indemnity from the assets of the Company
to indemnify all losses or liabilities incurred or suffered by them as a
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company in the defense of
any civil or criminal legal proceeding in which they are successful or
exonerated.

The above permitted indemnity provisions took effect for the year
ended December 31, 2023. The Company has purchased liability
insurance to provide appropriate protection for its Directors.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note
27 to the financial statements and in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, respectively.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

For specific information on charitable donations, please refer to
Social, Environmental and Governance Report issued by the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The valuation of the investment property as at December 31, 2023
was RMB92,640,000.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING AND
PLACING

On January 16, 2023, the Company was successfully listed on the
Stock Exchange. The net proceeds received by the Group from the
Global Offering (including proceeds from the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option) after deducting underwriting fee and relevant
expenses amounted to approximately HK$558.5 million. The Company
issued an aggregate of 30,475,500 Shares at the offer price of
HK$19.32 per Share in connection to the Global Offering. The
Company intends to apply such net proceeds in accordance with the
purposes as set out in the Prospectus. As of December 31, 2023,
such net proceeds from Placing were utilized as follows:
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1R2023F 18168 « "R BIKINTER AT £ © &
MBREEEAREBERSIE  AEEAZIREER
SHERETEBELRKREMERE) FEOA
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Actual utilized Expected

% of total Net proceeds

proceeds Unutilized timetable for
during the amount as of full utilization of

Use of proceeds as disclosed net from Global Reporting December 31, the remaining
in the Prospectus proceeds Offering Period 2023™ proceeds®?
5B EHRBE WEA BZE2023F EHHAKT
MR Fri8RRE BN A 12A318 FiBERIEN
BRERTPHEENFAESREAZ BEADL R F8RIE KRBASE" FEHRER?
HKD HKD HKD
(in millions) (in millions) (in millions)
BT BT BT
(A&7T) (B&T) (B&T)
Expand and upgrade our service 67.6% 377.5 80.3 297.2 December 31, 2026
network
&R S T R AR A8 4% 2026%F12 A31H
Strategic mergers and acquisitions of 10.2% 57.0 7.8 49.2 December 31, 2026
franchised stores
HEATERE GHIB N AR R 202612 A31H
Further invest in our IT systems 12.3% 68.7 8.5 60.2 December 31, 2026
HE—TRENREMNEBRMAES 2026%F12 A318
For working capital and other 9.9% 55.3 16.7 38.6 December 31, 2026

general corporate purposes
LEEeREM—KEERSE

Notes:

1. As of December 31, 2023, the unused net proceeds were deposited with
certain licensed banks and financial institutions in Hong Kong or the
PRC.

2. The expected timeline to use the remaining proceeds is prepared based

on the best estimate made by the Group, which is subject to change
according to the current and future development of the market
condition.

2026912 A31H
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On February 21, 2024, an aggregate of 610,000 Shares repurchased
by the Company from August 2023 and November 2023 were
cancelled.

On March 26, 2024, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
Purchaser), entered into the Investment Agreement with Naturade
Health Technology Co., Ltd. (PRC)* (the “Seller”), pursuant to which,
among others, the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire the Target Equity,
representing 70% of the entire equity interest of the Target
Company at a consideration of RMB350.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$385.9 million). Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated March 26, 2024 and April 17, 2024 for further
details.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, June 24, 2024 to Thursday, June 27, 2024 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s)
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Friday, June 21,
2024.

For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, July 4, 2024 to Monday, July 8, 2024 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfers of Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, which
is subject to approval of the shareholders at the AGM, all transfers
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, July 3, 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report.

¥ /8 2 =]
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained the prescribed
public float as required under the Listing Rules as of the date of this
annual report.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management
team and external auditors the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Company, the audited consolidated financial
statements for the Reporting Period, interim results for the six months
ended June 30, 2023, and the related reports of the Company, and
discussed internal control, risk management, the effectiveness of the
internal audit system and financial reporting matters.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under
Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this report
form part of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc.
Mr. LI Yang

Chairman and executive Director

Shanghai, PRC, March 26, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the Shareholders of Beauty Farm Medical and Health
Industry Inc.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Beauty Farm Medical and
Health Industry Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”), which are set out on pages 110 to 252, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
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o Revenue recognition for the sale of services
o Impairment assessment of goodwill

Key Audit Matter
HREESSEE

. AR 75 35 & B A FERR
. B R E R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESNAEERRERITEE

Revenue recognition for the sales of services

BR % 88 &5 B9 W A RERE

Refer to Notes 2.15, 4(b) and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
B2 EMIERERIMEE2.15 « 4b) &6 °

The Group generates revenue mainly from beauty and
wellness services, aesthetic medical services and subhealth
medical services. Revenue from the sales of services
amounted to approximately RMB1,945 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, representing approximately 91%
of the total revenues of the Group.
SEREBENRAFZREETNRERT  BEETRBE LG
EFREBR - 822023F12A31 A ILFE - RFHEER
HIRAHBARK1945B T - 15 ESEHBALELD
91% °

We have performed the following procedures to address this

key audit matter:
HIETTUTRER  RIEMREEEE

(i) We understood, evaluated and tested management’s
internal controls over the revenue recognition for the
sales of services;

(i) FHMTHE FEIFHERBHEHSENWAERBEENON
BBy

(ii) We discussed with management and evaluated their
judgements made in determining the method and timing
of revenue recognition and calculation;

(i) FHMEEEENw WTBHABETRAERLTER
V5 N R R O B
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Key Audit Matter
BREETEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWESTNAEERRETSEE

Revenue recognition for the sales of services

BR % 8% 55 B W A RERR

Refer to Notes 2.15, 4(b) and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
B2BRE VB RRMEE2.15 « 4(b) 6 o

The Group sells prepaid cards to end customers and the
total consideration received from end customers is allocated
to multiple services under prepaid card based on their
relative stand-alone selling prices. Revenue from the sales of
services is recognised when the services have been rendered
to end customers.

EXRBEMKREPHERANRT  BRmEPKENEEER
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We focused on this area as significant efforts were spent on
auditing the revenue recognised for the sales of services due
to the magnitude of the revenue amount and the huge
volume of revenue transactions.

BRI IR - EARBASELMELERAR S SREX
At HPEREEENRABERRAT RENETIIE-

(iii)

(iii)

(iv)

(iv)

We tested the general control environment and
automated controls of the information technology
systems used in the transaction processes, including the
automatic allocation of the total consideration to
multiple services in business system. We tested the
mathematical accuracy and the completeness of the
system generated reports that summarized the key
inputs for the calculation of revenue by using computer-
assisted audit techniques;
HAAABEERNRERERZSIEFPMAE SRR
HmEBEEY BEEBRGHAHEEZERE TH
BB HPEBEMAFTEREBNER R - AR
REBPTAERKGT EWAABRE A BENFEARENR
FREEERTE

We tested, on a sample basis, cash receipts from
customers during the year by comparing such receipts
with relevant details in system generated report; and
BB BRHMEREAATEFEFONRS U TERSG
IR IR B 78 BA ST B R A A AR R R B AR R AR R E T
b &

We tested, on a sample basis, revenue transactions by
comparing the key attributes on system generated
reports with the underlying data from the system, and
recalculated the revenue amount recognised.

BB BHMERENARS  HERBEREXNNRE
TR E M ERGAERBURETHL R - BENGEE
RHWA S

Based on the above, we considered that revenue recognition
for the sales of services were supportable by the evidence
obtained and procedures performed.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTNNEEARENSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB R E

Refer to Notes 2.5, 2.6, 4(a) and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
B2HRE VB mERME25 2.6 4a) k21 -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had goodwill with net
carrying amount of RMB218 million.
M2023F12A318 - EXEREFREFERARK2.18E
T o

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the brand, city or region of business that goodwill is
attributable to. The Group performed goodwill impairment
assessment annually or whenever there is an indication that
a CGU to which goodwill has been allocated may be
impaired.
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The Group assessed the impairment of goodwill by
determining the recoverable amount of CGUs based on
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections. The
Group engaged an independent external valuer to provide
technical support and assistance in determining the
recoverable amount of CGUs when needed.
ERENEEERENTEZEERVBEACREBETHE
THenERAAETEEARSELAENNATRE S
e BEEECEFEUIISTEERGEN NHEER AR
FEEMARSELASBUNAT RS EIEHEENRE -

We have performed the following procedures to address this
key audit matter:

BPETTATER  EEMRETEH

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iii)

(iii)

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s
internal control over the impairment assessment of
goodwill. We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud. We evaluated the outcome
of prior period impairment assessment of goodwill to
assess the effectiveness of the management’s estimation
process.

BT R RS EERER AN ERENE
2 e WAVEEEAREROEFRERE - ZE T k&t
THEEEMIZEMEMES R EZE  flnfhatmEs
M EBN A RERENRRSKEEAE R
W BURNE o IR SR A B E AT (R VA
ARHE BB EMAHIEFARIE -

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent external valuer engaged by the
Group;

RPYEEEBFENB LI BEEMOERNE  BiEse
NAREBME#TT T 5 E

We involved our internal valuation experts in assessing
the appropriateness of the methodology adopted by
management in the goodwill impairment assessment and
the significant assumptions such as long-term growth
rate and pre-tax discount rate adopted in the valuation
models;

HPEEAMBEEZEROF T FhHEEEHEREN
AT EREEER P EANEANRE - BRAERERMN
TATRAIR R EE 1
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Key Audit Matter
BREETEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWESTNAEERRETSEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB R E G

Refer to Notes 2.5, 2.6, 4(a) and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
B2HRE T BmRME25 2.6 4a) k21 -

The inherent risk in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill is considered relatively higher due to the complexity
of the models, subjectivity of significant assumptions used,
and significant judgements involved in selecting data, such
as annual revenue growth rate within the forecast period,

EBIT/Revenue rate, long-term growth rate and pre-tax
discount rate.
BERENEAANESRBREEREN  REBERED

BN - TAERBRROETBMEARRESIEMS RANEKR
HE - PINTER B E R AR E - BRAAEEX - R
BRERFAEE -

We focused on this area due to (a) the magnitude of the
carrying amount of goodwill; and (b) the estimation of
recoverable amount is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty.

BRI SR - RN @BEEREAEREK  kb)rlkEe
mHET S ke EA T RE -

(iv)

(iv)

(vi)

(vi)

Based on the above,
judgements and assumptions applied

We assessed the key assumptions adopted including
annual revenue growth rate within the forecast period
and EBIT/Revenue rate by examining the approved
financial budgets, and comparing actual results for the
year against the previous period taking into
consideration of our industry knowledge;
EEHMOTEMNBR  HAFERANERRR £
FBIEAMNFERAEBREREBANEE - HERSE
EOENTBEE RO ANFEEREER FESRLL
B

We assessed the sensitivity analysis performed by
management with potential impacts on the above key
assumptions to further understand the extent to which
adverse changes, either individually or in aggregate,
would result in impairment of goodwill; and

HPRFMEEEETEEERERRE ?/E.E’J@SIWJ*
i PAHE— 2 T AR B (E 5 B E8) #S G 2 B
BENREE Rk

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
impairment assessment of goodwill in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework.

B EERM B REERFEBENETLRENT
/'\/Iﬁg °

we considered that management’s
in the impairment

assessment of goodwill were supportable by the evidence
obtained and procedures performed.

ERA LRt - $F97

RAREBBEMAMAITHREFAIHERE
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

20235 EHEBERRREFXERARF

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%é%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%mﬁ
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

A iH AR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2023  #{Z2023F12A318 L F &

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR T AREF T
Revenue A 6 2,145,068 1,635,414
Cost of sales and services $HE R AR A 9 (1,167,966) (917,572)
Gross profit EF 977,102 717,842
Selling expenses HER X 9 (378,172) (287,228)
Research and development expenses EER X 9 (34,071) (31,187)
General and administrative expenses —MRITHAX 9 (318,352) (295,432)
Other income E A 7 30,393 29,080
Other expenses EaA 7 (3,390) (3,393)
Other gains e 8 18,580 22,567
Provision for impairment losses on PHEAERBEERE
financial assets 25 (796) (155)
Operating profit mERHE 291,294 152,094
Finance income B RS U 11 21,837 3,094
Finance costs B FE R AR 11 (24,811) (24,713)
Finance costs — net BT TS A AN F 5 1M (2,974) (21,619)
Share of loss of an associate Eih— B L R R M &R (51) —
Profit before income tax B P 15 B4 A1 AU 8 288,269 130,475
Income tax expenses FriSfif 12 (58,130) (19,943)
Profit for the year FRFE 230,139 110,532
Profit attributable to: AT & GRS
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIEF SN 215,657 103,109
Non-controlling interests e IR = 14,482 7,423
230,139 110,532
Earnings per share for profit ARAREEAEGRBER
attributable to owners of the ZF
Company
— Basic earnings per share (RMB) — BREXRBF (AREBT) 13 0.94 0.52
— Diluted earnings per share (RMB) — BREERZN(AREBT) 13 0.94 0.52
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Ak 7 4 T W3 AR

For the year ended 31 December 2023  #{£2023F 128318 IEF &

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR T AREETF T
Profit for the year FRAFE 230,139 110,532
Other comprehensive income/(loss) H 2 E WK (EiE)
Items that will not be reclassified to T EEH I BIE w4y
profit or loss EHH
Changes in the fair value of equity BARBEFAEMEEI
investments at fair value through AR E N EEEE
other comprehensive income 28 (1) 27)
Exchange differences on translation of & /54075 & A HYIE 5
foreign operations =H 27,172 —
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEEWE (FE)
for the year, net of tax (MBRFLIE) 27,171 27)
Total comprehensive income for FRE2EKREHE
the year 257,310 110,505
Total comprehensive income ATEFEEEZENREE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRREAA 242,828 103,082
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR A 14,482 7,423
257,310 110,505

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

=
g

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be — _Eift4r

o)

M A 7R SRR PN M R — OFBIAE -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Ao EERMEE

As at 31 December 2023 7202349128318

2023 2022
20235 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® TR ARBEF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE R YL 15 370,973 307,704
Investment properties wEME 16 67,755 71,145
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 515,531 481,019
Intangible assets mLAE 18 79,978 83,294
Goodwill [ 21 217,527 196,286
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFIE - e REAER
receivables I8 25 69,573 61,201
Other non-current assets HM3EmBEE 19 2,356 2,745
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEFTAEMEEI
other comprehensive income mHEREE 46 47
Investments in associates REERRNRE 249 —
Deferred income tax assets BESHEE 31 42,114 44,165
Total non-current assets ERBEEMAE 1,366,102 1,247,606
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 24 187,588 142,287
Trade receivables “ 5 e E 25 31,011 37,356
Prepayments, deposits and other AR RIE - e REAMER
receivables I 25 132,675 147,226
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEFAERNSH
profit or loss AE 22 964,973 626,864
Restricted cash XBRHBEE 26 10,451 10,284
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEED 26 224,277 164,120
Term deposits with initial terms of over %4 &8 i1E =18 A & & &8
three months TR 26 384,929 119,646
Total current assets MEBEERE 1,935,904 1,247,783
Total assets EEHAE 3,302,006 2,495,389
EQUITY s
Share capital A% 27 8 7
Treasury stock EFER 27 (6,816) —
Share premium AR 1 5 (8 27 467,769 84,358
Other reserves H A f#E 28 22,994 2,098
Retained earnings REE & 317,941 102,284
Equity attributable to owners of the RATHEE ANELER
Company 801,896 188,747
Non-controlling interests e AR = 32,337 14,362
Total equity HRER 834,233 203,109
* Less than RMB1,000 LR AR #1,0007T
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
e EEARE

As at 31 December 2023 720234 12831H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
M 7 ARE TR ARET T
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAR 17 393,777 374,523
Deferred tax liabilities REMIEEE 31 21,984 8,647
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERTE 415,761 383,170
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables g 5 ERMRIE 30 21,421 7,857
Other payables and accruals HEibENRIERETER 30 224,662 224,061
Contract liabilities EHEE 6 1,492,514 1,408,119
Current income tax liabilities mEEHAasE 48,527 33,974
Lease liabilities HE&E 17 169,343 150,979
Other current liabilities EmisaE 29 95,545 84,120
Total current liabilities mEAEES 2,052,012 1,909,110
Total liabilities EEHAE 2,467,773 2,292,280
Total equity and liabilities EnkBEEHE 3,302,006 2,495,389
Net current liabilities RBEEFE 116,108 661,327
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERABERS 1,249,994 586,279

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction  Fii4rA BE G ERBEREHMH F—HRIE -
with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to 252, were £ 110E252 BMiRE MIEREE R 2024F3 A26H
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and were &E&EZEHfE  THATHRERESE -
signed on its behalf.

Mr. Li Yang Mr. Lian Songyong FHEE EMkEE
Chairman Director EY EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YL EL L

m 5‘ i\

For the year ended 31 December 2023  #{Z2023F12A318 L F &

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ANEERABEER
Non-
Share Treasury Other Share Retained controlling Total
capital stock reserves  premium eamings Total interests equity
R ERk HtBE RHEE  REEA @at JeEEE B
Note RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
i ARMTT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARSTn ARETR ARETT AR¥TT
(Note 27) (Note 28)  (Note 27)
(K&k27) (Frzk28)  (MiEk27)
Balance at 1 January 2022 R2022F1 818 Kkt — — 65,439 — 191,924 257,363 5173 262,536
Profit for the year FRFE - - - — 103,109 103,109 7423 110,532
Other comprehensive loss 2 EER - - (27) - - 27) - 27
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EREHAE — — (27) — 103,109 103,082 7423 110,505
Transactions with owners HEEARS
Transfer of gain on disposal of B HERAAEEF AL
equity investments at fair value PEMNEORARE fax
through other comprehensive ERZRDRF
income to retained earnings — — 825 — (825) — — —
Issuance of ordinary shares to MREETEER
shareholders 27 —* —* 3,971 — — 3,971 — 3,971
Capital injection from FERERIE
non-controlling interests — — — — — — 8,708 8,708
Share-based payment expenses  BARR {3 32 (0T R B 20 — — 14,136 — — 14,136 4 14,178
Transactions with non-controlling 32 RHERT 5
interests 28 — — 2,119 — — 2,119 (166) 1,953
Dividends declared BERRE 14 — — - - (191,924)  (191,924) (6,818)  (198,742)
Completion of reorganisation TREAR 28 7 — (84,365) 84,358 — — — —
7 —* (63,314) 84,358 (192,749)  (171,698) 1,766 (169,932)
Balance at 31 December 2022 #2022 12831 fi4 8 7 —* 2,098 84,358 102,284 188,747 14,362 203,109
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
& H 35 5 ) %

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & £2023F 12 A318 It FE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

n‘/]?

ADNEERAEEER
Non-
Share  Treasury Other Share  Retained controlling Total
capital stock  reserves  premium  earnings Total interests equity
e EfR HttRE KROERE KREEA At FERES s
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
M AR¥TR ARETR ARETR AR%TR AR¥TR ARETrn ARETRT AR%TR
(Note 27) (Note 28)  (Note 27)
(HE27) (H&E28)  (M&E27)
Balance at 1 January 2023 R2023F15 18048 7 = 2,098 84,358 102,284 188,747 14,362 203,109
Profit for the year ERFE = = = — 215657 215657 14,482 230,139
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 EE = = 27,171 = = 27,171 = 27171
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE = = 27,111 = 215,657 242,828 14,482 257,310
Transactions with owners HEEARS
Issuance of ordinary shares upon R EIREERBETLEER
global offering 13 1 - - 506,544 = 506,545 = 506,545
Listing fees through equity BALTER = = = (33,928) — (33,928) — (33,928)
Capital injection of RS E
non-controlling interests = = = = = = 4,361 4,361
Share-based payment expenses  JARR ﬁiﬁﬁ’]ﬁ Fx 20 = — 10,823 = = 10,823 7 10,900
Transactions with non-controlling ~ £23E#2 [ #E %
interests 28 — — (17,098) — — (17,098) 1,359 (15,739)
Treasury shares purchased DEEEFR 27(h) — (12,012) — — — (12,012) — (12,012)
Treasury shares cancelled B EERR 27(h) = 5,196 — (5,196) — — — —
Dividends declared BEERRE 14 — - - (84,009) — (84,009) (2,304) (86,313)
1 (6,816) (6,275) 383,411 = 370,321 3,493 373,814
Balance at 31 December 2023  WM2023E12A31H &% 8 (6,816) 22,99 467,769 317,941 801,896 32,337 834,233
* Less than RMB1,000 * L AR#1,0007T
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be — LFili4RAfEzs &SR /BEREMM E—GiHE -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RS AR T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023F 12 A318 IEF[E

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARBTT
Cash flows from operating activities REEEIHNESHE
Cash generated from operations KEMEBIRS 32(a) 653,699 409,092
Income tax paid EFTE R (28,189) (27,092)
Net cash inflow from operating RETBMBRERAFE
activities 625,510 382,000
Cash flows from investing activities REBREITHNESHE
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, U BT 8 A 73 (F0BR B Uk
net of cash acquired BIEe) 35(b) (7,496) (4,202)
Purchases of property, plant and BEWME BRERBHEAR
equipment and other non-current HM3ERBEE
assets (159,237) (140,789)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant HEWE  BBRREBEAR
and equipment and other non-current  H M IERBNE E TS HIAE
assets 597 219
Payment for disposal of a business, net % ZEBE R
of cash disposed (HBREEHERS) 21 — (2,125)
Proceeds from redemption of financial EEIIZ AL EET AEBZEAN
assets at FVPL TREEEPS IR 33 1,297,282 1,488,319
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL BERARBESAEBERZN
TREE 33 (1,606,854) (1,168,150)
Purchase of term deposits with initial BE MR AER=EAHN
terms of over three months TFHGF R 26 (545,685) (190,677)
Maturity of term deposits with initial R R AR R =8 A 7 E 5
terms of over three months 173 5 51 26 304,346 71,031
Interest received 2 U FE 6,062 —
Payments for acquisition of investment WER —M#E QARMNKE
into an associate EORNEAN (200) —

Net cash (used in)/generated from R&EEE (FTA) FiERE
investing activities FEE (711,185) 53,626
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e
A5

AR BN ER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & £2023F 12 A318 It FE

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR® TR ARBTT
Cash flows from financing activities REBMETHNESARE
Dividends paid EARE 32(0) (86,999) (204,263)
Payment of lease liabilities MEAaRMNK 17(b) (232,075) (231,430)
Transactions with non-controlling BIEIERER D
interests 28 (15,739) 1,953
Payment for listing expenses through [N =4 NN
equity (30,340) (3,485)
Capital injection from a shareholder —HBREEE 27(b) — 3,976
Gross proceeds from issuance of REREFERBFTERR
ordinary shares upon global offering FrissRIB 458 506,545 —
Capital injection from non-controlling  JFIEfRiEZ T &
interests 4,361 7,708
Proceeds from the owners of Shanghai KER EL/EEXEBHEES A
Beauty Farm FRIE 1.2 = 191,529
Capital deduction from the owners of  F/EEEMREHA ARE
Shanghai Beauty Farm 1.2 = (198,808)
Payments for repurchase of ordinary 5] 8 3 AR A R
shares 27 (12,012) —
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEHHRE (FTA)ER
financing activities bR 133,741 (432,820)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRkBReESEWEMBER
equivalents 48,066 2,806
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HES MRS EEY
of the year 164,120 157,284
Exchange gains on cash and cash RekReFEWELKE
equivalents 12,091 4,030
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRNRERESEEY
of the year 26 224,277 164,120
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  Fii4Ra MERBEBEMM T —HE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B 205 R M

1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

1.1

1.2

General information

Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. (the
"Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
10 February 2022. The address of its registered office is
Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman,
KY1-9010, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in providing beauty and health management
service, including beauty and wellness services, aesthetic
medical services as well as subhealth medical services (the
“Listing Business”) in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"). The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are
Mr. Li Yang (“Mr Li”), Ms. Li Fangyu (“Ms Li"), Mr. Lian
Songyong, Ms. Niu Guifen, Mr. Cui Yuanjun and
Mr. Yuan Huimin (together as the “Controlling
Shareholders”), who are parties acting in concert and
have been collectively controlling the Group.

Reorganisation

Immediately prior to the Reorganisation (as defined
below) and during the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Listing Business was operated by Shanghai Beauty
Farm Healthcare Industry Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Beauty
Farm”, previously named as Hainan Beauty Farm
Healthcare Industry Co., Ltd.) and its subsidiaries in the
PRC (the “Operating Companies”). The Listing Business is
controlled by the Controlling Shareholders throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

In preparation for the initial public offering (“IPO") and
listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) was undertaken
pursuant to which the Operating Companies engaged in
the Listing Business were transferred to the Company.
The Reorganisation involves the following major steps:

(@)  Establishment of contractual arrangement

As part of Reorganisation, Shanghai Beauty Farm
transferred part of its equity interest in medical
institutions, being businesses subject to foreign
investment restrictions in the PRC, to Shanghai
Liernuo Industry Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Liernuo”). The interest was transferred to ensure
that Shanghai Liernuo and other onshore
shareholders of such Restricted Medical Institutions
will hold at least 30% of the equity interest in
each of the Medical Institutions.

On 13 April 2022, in order to comply with relevant
foreign investment restrictions in the PRC and
maintain effective control over the operation of
Shanghai Liernuo, Shanghai Beauty Farm, Shanghai
Liernuo, Mr. Li and the operating companies of the
foreign investment restricted business entered into
a series of contractual arrangement (collectively the
“Contractual Arrangements”), providing the Group
with effective control over, and to consolidate all
economic benefits arising from Shanghai Liernuo
into the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R P AR A R

1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP, 1 ZXEERN—RER -BEHARES

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF B ()
PRESENTATION (Continued)
1.2 Reorganisation (Continued) 1.2 E#HEG@E)

(b) WRIBINABRERFALEEE

(b)  Establishment of offshore corporate structure and

introduction of foreign investor to Shanghai Beauty
Farm

On 10 February 2022, the Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Company then
established Beauty Farm Medical and Health
Industry Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on
22 February 2022 and Aiyumei (Shanghai)
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Aiyumei”), a wholly foreign owned enterprise and a
subsidiary of the Company in the PRC on
10 March 2022.

After incorporation of the Company, on
23 February 2022, Mr. Zang Ye, an independent
third party who is independent from the Company
and its connected persons, subscribed for
RMB2,041,000 in the registered capital of Shanghai
Beauty Farm (representing 0.2% of Shanghai
Beauty Farm’s equity interest) at a consideration of
RMB3,971,000 (“Pre-IPO Investment”). Upon
completion of the Pre-IPO Investment, Shanghai
Beauty Farm was converted into a sino-foreign joint
venture entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

(@

Injection of Shanghai Beauty Farm into the listing
Group

On 10 March 2022, the then shareholders of
Shanghai Beauty Farm transferred their equity
interest in Shanghai Beauty Farm to Shanghai
Aiyumei for a cash consideration of
RMB198,808,000.

On 11 March 2022, ZYLot Holdings Limited
completed a RMB3,976,000 investment in the
Company for 0.2% of the Company’s issued share
capital and the Company accounted for the surplus
amounted to RMB3,971,000 on capital contribution
from ZYLot Holdings Limited in other reserves.

As part of the reorganisation and upon receiving
the cash consideration, the certain then
shareholders of Shanghai Beauty Farm injected the
cash to the Group amounted to RMB191,529,000
after deduction of reorganisation cost of
RMB7,279,000 (Note 9) for the year ended
31 December 2022.

On 21 April 2022, CITIC PE, one of the
shareholders of Shanghai Beauty Farm, through
Beijing Xinyu Meiye Holdings Limited, was issued
and allotted 37,040,000 preferred shares in the
Company at a consideration of RMB72,294,000
upon obtaining its overseas direct investment
regulatory approval and the Company accounted
for the surplus amounted to RMB72,292,000 on
capital contribution from CITIC PE in other
reserves.

After the completion of Reorganisation steps as
described above, the Company became the holding
company of the subsidiaries now comprising the
Group. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group are set out in Note 37.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R P AR A R

1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP, 1 XEEHN—RER -ZAHARZY

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF HE )

PRESENTATION (Continued)

1.3 Initial Public Offering 1.3 BRALHEE
On 16 January 2023, the Company completed its listing 720231 A168 » 2D F) FE H R B
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and offered RATERK LT - HER19.32F TH
24,395,500 new Shares and 16,141,000 Sale Shares at BE B E24,395 500D K&
the Offer Price of HK$19.32 per Share. The net proceeds 16,141,000 5 & IR0 ° AN QA RIH 2 IR
of the Company from the Global Offering were BEMBRBEFENRIMMTIABES
approximately HK$447.4 million. On 3 February 2023, JC e BA2023%2A3H  RAAE -
the Company announced that the Over-allotment Option BEEHEFERNNBERREDES
granted under the Global Offering had been fully AT NEBRERRKRKH 19328 T
exercised and the Group allotted 6,080,000 Shares at a B (B 4% i 346,080,000 % f% 15 » A A &)
price of HK$19.32 per Share. The Company received [ R R i AR R M 1T (R W B BB ANFT 1S FIR
additional net proceeds of approximately HK$111.1 HEMIAABETT o
million from the exercise of the Over-allotment Option.

1.4 Basis of presentation 1.4 Zy|EAE

Immediately prior to and after the Reorganisation, the
Listing Business is conducted through Operating
Companies which were all ultimately controlled by
Controlling Shareholders. Pursuant to the Reorganisation,
the Listing Business was transferred to and held by the
Company. The Company has not been involved in any
other business prior to the Reorganisation and do not
meet the definition of a business. The Reorganisation is
merely a recapitalisation of the Listing Business with no
change in management of such business and the ultimate
owners of the Listing Business remained the same.
Accordingly, the Group resulting from the Reorganisation
is regarded as a continuation of the Listing Business
under Shanghai Beauty Farm and, for the purpose of this
report, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are presented using the carrying values of the
Listing Business for all periods presented.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains/losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated on combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied throughout the
Year, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS) as issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Going concern

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB116,108,000. The net current liabilities position
was mainly due to the contract liabilities of
RMB1,492,514,000 classified under current
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.
These contract liabilities will be redeemed by
providing services and selling products rather than
repayment of cash. Taking into account the stable
operating cash inflows to be generated from the
provision of services and the sale of products, the
directors of the Company consider the Group will
have adequate resources to meet its liabilities,
commitments and funding requirements as and
when they fall due within one year from the end
of the reporting period. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023

A5 A B R T AR

2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2

2.1.3

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
or annual improvements for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2023:

° Insurance Contracts — HKFRS 17

o Disclosure of Accounting Policy — HKAS 1
(Amendment) and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 (Amendment)

o Definition of Accounting Estimate —
Amendments to HKAS 8

o Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction —
Amendments to HKAS 12, and

. International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model
Rules — Amendments to HKAS 12

The adoption of the new standards and
amendments listed above did not have material
impact on the Group’s accounting policies and
consolidated financial statements.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for the reporting
period and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards, amendments or
interpretations are not expected to have material
impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.3 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A5 A B TR I AR

=113

FESHEBERHME @)

2.1 REEAE(E)

2.1.3 HARRMAF R EA R RE (B)

(Continued)

The following new standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted:

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after

RUTEHMR 2 RFEHEDN

FEHABER

PAT #aT 2 Al R IR A EANHERT AR
RERMERARER - BXEE
PR

Amendments to HKAS 1
BB G ERIE 19 (1BETA)

Amendments to HKAS 1
BB GETERIE 19 (1BETA)

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BEMEREENE 1698 (BETA)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

BB EBNBTRRBEEM G RE
HRIFET75% (BFTA)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)
Presentation of Financial
Statements

BERBEST (RER]) M mE

2%
Amendments to HKAS 21
BB GRTERIE 215 (BETA)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

BV BREEANF10RLE LG
#ERIFE 2858 (BFTA)

Classification of Liabilities as current
or non-current

BELSBEARBNIERD

Non-current liabilities with covenants

M RENFRBD AR

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
ERMAEANEERE

Supplier finance arrangements

HERRE LB

Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (HK
Int 5 (Revised))

BRAHHEREKEZERZEH
BERz B (EBRBEST (K&
1))

Lack of Exchangeability
R Z AT

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

HEEMRABERNASEERE M
WEEHESTE

1 January 2024

202451 A1H

1 January 2024
202451 A1H

1 January 2024

202451 A1H

1 January 2024

202451 A1H

1 January 2024

202451 A1H

1 January 2025
202541 A1H

To be determined

fF3E
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2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.4 Contractual Arrangements

Due to the restrictions imposed by the relevant
laws and regulatory regime of the PRC on foreign
ownership of companies engaged in the aesthetic
medical services and subhealth medical services
carried out by 23 subsidiaries of the Group
(together as the “Medical Institutions”) including:

1.

10.

Shanghai Xiukeer Clinic Co., Ltd.* (E/&FA]
TPIZEERAR)

Ningbo Jiangbei Yongjiang Xiukeer Medical
Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.* (ZER)LILAIIFHA]
RERED2MAERRA)

Nanjing Xiukeer Medical Beauty Clinic Co.,
Ltd* (ARFAIREBREXDZLAARAA)

Shenzhen Xiukeer General Outpatient
Department* (RYIF A R4R& P12 80)

Hangzhou Liyan Medical Beauty Clinic Co.,
Ltd.* (MNBIHRBEEETZHMERAA)

Zhengzhou Liyan Medical Beauty Service Co.,
Ltd.* (BINBHABFEEERBER D A)

Beijing Hexin Medical Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.*
(JERRMEERERFIZ A BR D F)

Beijing Yanyuan Clinic Co., Ltd.* (It =RHIR
2P AR A

Chengdu Gaoxin Xiukeer Medical Beauty
Clinic Co., Ltd.* (K#BRH BRI TBBEERD
FREBR 2 A])

Chongqging Xiukeer Comprehensive
Outpatient Department Co., Ltd.* (EEFHA]
RiEaPI2 AR A A)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.4 Contractual Arrangements (Continued)

11.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Xi'an Meiju Medical Technology Development
Co, Ltd* (ARERBEMEERAERAA)

Wuhan Qiyan Comprehensive Outpatient
Department Co., Ltd.* (EUERU4AR & P92 26
BRAA]

Beijing Meishu Laser Medical Clinic Co., Ltd.*
(ERERBNBED AR RDA)

Changchun Meiju Medical Technology
Development Co., Ltd.* (REEBEERE
EERAR DA

Qingdao Aimei Medical Beauty Co., Ltd.* (¥
BNEBEXTARAA)

Haikou Xiukeer Medical Beauty Clinic Co.,
Ltd.* (BRF A RERERMIZ2MBER R E])

Xian Beilin Xiukeer Comprehensive Outpatient
Department Co., Ltd.* (FALZEMFET] B4RE
FIZ & B R A A])

Haikou Yanyuan Clinic Co., Ltd.* (/8 Q&R
PP AR A

Hefei Xiukeer Medical Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.*
(GIEFFREREEXDLABER AT

Tianjin Heping Xiukeer Medical Beauty Clinic
Co., Ltd* (REMFEANREBREREDLHA
R~ A])

Zhengzhou Xiukeer Medical Beauty Clinic Co.,
Ltd.* (BINFAI REEXRPFIZERAA)

Chengdu Gaoxin Meicheng Medical Beauty
Clinic Co., Ltd.* (&= ERBRERERFIZ
HABR QTR

Chengdu Gaoxin Yanyuan Clinic Co., Ltd.*
(B EEFHIRZ AR QF])

A5 A B TR I AR
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
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Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. ANNUAL REPORT 2023

A B i 3% B EE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.4 Contractual Arrangements (Continued)

Shanghai Beauty Farm and Mr Li entered into the
contractual arrangements (the “Contractual
Arrangements”) with Shanghai Liernuo and its
registered shareholders who hold 30% equity
interests of the Medical Institutions on 13 April
2022, which enable the Group to:

expose, or have rights, to variable returns
from their involvement with the investee and
have ability to affect those returns through
its power over Shanghai Liernuo;

exercise equity holders’ voting rights of
Shanghai Liernuo and the Medical
Institutions; receive the economic interest
returns generated by Medical Institutions in
consideration for the technical support,
consulting services and other services
provided by Shanghai Liernuo;

obtain an irrevocable and unconditional right
to purchase all or part of equity interests in
Medical Institutions from Shanghai Liernuo
itself or its designated person(s) at minimum
purchase price permitted under PRC law.
Shanghai Beauty Farm or its designated
person may exercise such options at any time
until it has acquired all equity interests and/
or all assets of the Medical Institutions; and

obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest
of the Shanghai Liernuo from Mr. Li and the
equity interest of the Medical Institutions
held by Shanghai Liernuo as collateral
security to guarantee performance of their
contractual obligations under the Contractual
Arrangements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.4 Contractual Arrangements (Continued)

The Group does not have any legal equity interest
in Shanghai Liernuo. However, as a result of the
Contractual Arrangements, the Group has power
over Shanghai Liernuo, has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with Shanghai Liernuo
and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over Shanghai Liernuo and is considered
to have control over Shanghai Liernuo.
Consequently, the Company regards Shanghai
Liernuo as controlled structure entities and
consolidated the financial position and result of
operations of Shanghai Liernuo upon the execution
of the Contractual Agreements.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group and are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
not under common control (Note 41.1).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(ii) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has
significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting - after initially
being recognised at cost.

(i)~ Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in other reserves
within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M R

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 FTESTHEREEw)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.3 W% - s Rk @)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values of 0%
to 5% over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Electronic equipment and 5 years
vehicles
Beauty equipment 5 years
Office furniture 5 years
Long-term leasehold Shorter of the lease

improvement term and the
estimated useful life

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.6).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in profit or loss.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. This includes cost of construction and
other direct costs. Construction-in-progress is not
depreciated until such time as the assets are completed
and are ready for operational use.
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2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. One of the trademarks has an
infinite useful life and is subsequently carried at
cost less impairment losses. Those trademarks with
finite useful life are subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring the specific software into usage. These costs
are amortised using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships, which are acquired during
business combinations, are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Customer relationships are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected useful lives.

Research and Development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and developing of new or
improved products and processes) are recognised as
intangible assets when it is probable that the
project will be a success considering its commercial
and technical feasibility and its costs can be
measured reliably. Other development expenditures
that do not meet these criteria are recognised as
an expense when incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M R

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Intangible assets (Continued)
(v)  Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with limited
useful life using the straight-line method over the
following periods:

Trademarks with finite 10 years
useful life

Software 5-10 years

Customer relationships 7-8 years

Management estimated the useful life of the
trademarks and software based on license period,
expected technical obsolescence and innovations.
Management estimated the useful life of customer
relationships based on their industry knowledge,
experience and judgement and took into account
the historical customers renewal pattern of the
acquired subsidiary. Thus the useful life for the
customer relationships are 7 to 8 years.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 41.1.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the brand, city or region of business that goodwill
is attributable to.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

Investments and other financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss),
and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

2

A5 A B TR I AR

FESHEBERHME @)

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

2.7 ®’E

— -2
W)

b E

30|
TN

&
HH ()
RRAAEEFENEEMS
Hirm kBB ABRmg e
EH s - A FEFIEEENBRA
TAREMS  EHBURRAE
B SRR EE A BEHE
BESRARERAABETA
Hth2mE s ([RAREERFA
Ht2HE KD AR -

=

e

EHEEREERFEENEHE
ANBEE  AREHEEHFIE
BEHERE -

FERR AR L TERR
ERMEENEREENI S HE
R AAEEAGBELLESR
ENAH - E8REERIR
ERENEND EHNSEE
EASEEKEREARNRBA
o Rk EmER SEEENK
LEFER

se
KA RRE  ARBIED S
BHECWAE  HOBAEY
SEIRA R BEFA RS (TR %
BE AR AR KD
B 2 LI IR 5 52 B 12
DA BB A RSN S BAED
2 HRARBEL S -

EEReRERTMABERIMNA
ERAEE  MERATETR
MEREEFABREE -

135



136 Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit
or loss.

o FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
OCl, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M R

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

FESHEBERHME @)

27 WENHEMBESREE (@)

EE)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued) (iii)

Debt instruments (Continued)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.
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A5 A B R T AR

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(iv)  Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables (Note 25).
Expected credit losses of trade receivables from
related parties are assessed individually.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Costs of purchased inventory comprise
the purchase price (net off discounts), freight charges,
duty and other miscellaneous charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M R

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and
other receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. See Note 3.1 for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade and other receivable and
Note 2.7 for a description of the Group's impairment
policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank
deposits which are restricted to use are included in
“restricted cash” of the consolidated balance sheet.
Restricted cash is excluded from cash and cash
equivalents.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 90 days of recognition. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
regions where the Company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation, and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

(i) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also

2.13 Employee benefits

(i)

recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including

non-monetary benefits and accumulating annual
leave that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service, are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Pension obligations

Full-time employees in the PRC are covered by
various government-sponsored defined contribution
pension plans under which the employees are
entitled to a monthly pension based on certain
formulae. The relevant government agencies are
responsible for the pension liability to these retired
employees. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these pension plans. Under these plans, the
Group has no further payment obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions
made. Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred and contributions paid to the
defined-contribution pension plans for an employee
are not available to reduce the Group's future
obligations to such defined contribution pension
plans even if the employee leaves.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurance plan. The Group contributes on a
monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees,
subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability in
respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each year. Contributions to
the housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances are expensed as incurred.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present
contractual or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 FTESTHEREEw)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Share-based payments 2.14 LARRA AT YRR

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the employee share award scheme and
share option scheme. Information relating to these
schemes is set out in Note 20.

The fair value of awarded shares granted to employees
under the employee share award and option schemes less
amount paid by employees is recognised as an employee
benefits expense over the relevant service period, being
the vesting period of the shares, and the credit is
recognised in equity in the share-based payment reserves.
The fair value of the shares is measured at the grant
date.

(i) Share award scheme

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Award Scheme”),
under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments
(shares) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the shares or share options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
shares or share options granted:

— including any market performance conditions;
—  excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions;

and

—  excluding the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Share-based payments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Share award scheme (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of shares that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of shares that
are expected to vest based on the non-market
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Share awards given by the Group’s subsidiaries

Shares of subsidiaries of the Group are awarded to
certain registered practitioners, including store
directors, regional managers, senior operation
managers, in respect of their future services for the
Group. The fair value of such shares less
consideration paid by registered practitioners is
recognised as registered practitioner expenses with
a corresponding increase in non-controlling interests
within equity.

The fair value of such share awards is spread into
expense over the vesting periods after the grant
date.

2.15 Revenue recognition

The Group is principally engaged in provision of beauty

and wellness services,

aesthetic medical services and

subhealth medical services. Revenue comprises the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable for the
sales of products and services rendered in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of

value-added tax,

returns, refunds discounts and after

eliminating sales within the Group.

2 FESHHEEME®

2.14 PARR ) SS9 ST R (48)

(i)

(ii)

B tn 22 @58 (&)
ISR B IR ABBRES
&R BB M RER - BRI
BHER  BEHAMERSE
JB 15 A S E R ) HA R ©

O RO ROC
S S

REREHRR - AREEREZEIFED
LRBIRTETEEENERK
BB MES - ERNBETER
ETREMNEZE (WE) kY
RS -

AR ER [ B 8 2 R MF A B ) B2 8
AEERBARCHE TEMK
¥5 (PHEER BEHLE S8
BERIE) RRAREBIRHRS
RERERD - ZFERMHOD AR
EBEMEMIEEE 0 H (B R
REEMNEERS  BEEN
HIFPR R s AR BB AN

BB REH AR BEERRD
AHMREBHIBRMX -

2.15 WA TER

AEETENEREXTNRERS
BRI MR R ER - A
BRAEASBEATEEBBIETHEER
REEHREHNC W EKREENRAE

B WARMRIZER  RE

RFI

MRBHEAEEANHEREIIT -



20235 EHEBERRREFXERARF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition policies
are as follows:

(i)

Sales of services

The Group sells prepaid cards to end customers,
which gives the right to end customers to redeem
multiple services. Contract liabilities are recognised
when the Group receives cash consideration from
end customers. The total consideration is allocated
to multiple services under the prepaid cards based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Revenue is recognised when the services have been
rendered to end customers or the likelihood of the
end customers exercising the remaining rights
under the prepaid cards becomes remote.

When there is a modification to the contract, for
example, provision of additional distinct services to
the end customer without any additional charge,
the Group accounts for the modification
prospectively. The contract consideration, which is
the unrecognised consideration initially included in
the transaction price of the contract before the
modification, is allocated to the remaining
performance obligations after the modification,
including any unsatisfied performance obligations
from the original contract.

The Group also pays sales commission to salesmen,
which are treated as acquisition cost to obtain a
contract. The Group applies the practical expedient
to expense the acquisition cost because the
amortization period is normally within one year or
less.
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2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i) Sales of products

The Group also generates revenue from sales of
skincare products to customers. Revenue from the
sale of skincare products is recognised when
customers accept the products.

(iiiy  Franchise fee

The Group as the franchisor enters into franchise
agreement with franchisee for 3 to 5 vyears.
Franchise is a right to access license because the
Group shall undertake activities that significantly
affect the license, either positive or negative.
Franchisee pays a fixed upfront fee and revenue
from franchise fee is recognised over the franchise
period. Training fee and other service fee are
recognised when the services are rendered.

2.16 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

2

FTESHHREHME @)

2.15 WARER (&)

(i) EmHE
AEETERMEFHEEERE
HERA - EERFHERARER
EMERBRER -

(i)  IERE
REBERFHFARMBREL L
3ESFMFHFEERS - Fig
ERMBEENESN  REAXR
EENEHEREEALERE
AFENEY - NBEAXTEE
WIBER - inE B KA RE
B ENEER - BB R EM
RIS B R IRE RS

216 HE

HERNEEEENHAEEER 2 AR
REERREEEMEERE -

BHTRREEEEHE RIFHEEAME
7o AEBRBEAHBIEREAL
HESEEZMENFBEEERED - R
M- RAREERABARENEHE
mE  ARECEETEOMERIA
S ED - MKZEEEARIIEE
—HEEKED -

HEGRRRERNEEETER XA
BT RRRMES - BB EAMRHE
EEEMBEMERI  HEHILEE
IEMRGE - MEEETFRBIEERN
EEE



202358 XBHEBREREZXZARAS 147

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M R

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 FTESTHEREEw)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Leases (Continued) 2.16 & (&)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate, the LPR rates
when the leases were signed. Lease payments are
allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

o any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The
Group does not use any derivative financial instruments
to hedge certain risk exposures during the current and
prior years.

(a) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
currency exposures with respect to USD. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities.
The Group does not hedge against any fluctuation
in foreign currency.

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, if
USD had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the foreign currencies with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB3,775,000 and RMB3,869,000
respectively lower/higher mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of cash
and cash equivalents denominated in foreign
currencies.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
receivables, deposit and other receivables and
financial assets at FVPL. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

(i) Credit risk of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash and financial assets at FVPL

To manage the risk arising from credit risk of
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and
financial assets at FVPL maintained in the
PRC, they are mainly placed with banks and
reputable institution which are
high-credit-quality financial institutions. There
has been no recent history of default in
relation to these financial institutions. The
expected credit loss of these financial assets
is close to zero.

(i) Credit risk of trade receivables

The majority of the Group’s sales are settled
through credit cards or e-pay applications
against payment without credit terms. The
remaining sales, such as to the shopping
malls, are settled with credit terms ranging
from 14 days to 90 days. The Group applies
the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. For trade receivable balances with
objective evidence of impairment and
significant different credit risk characteristics
i.e. trade receivables due from related
parties, individual provision was made based
on a probability weighted estimation of the
present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to an
entity under the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(iir)

Credit risk of trade receivables (Continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 36
months before 31 December 2023 and 2022
and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the GDP and the
unemployment rate of PRC to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

The Group assesses the credit quality of its
customers by taking into account various
factors including their financial position, past
experience and other factors. The utilisation of
credit terms is regularly monitored and
management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these counterparties
(Note 25).

Credit risk of deposits and other receivables

The directors of the Company consider the
probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been
significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis during the Year. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
was no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of deposits and other
receivables. The assessment the Group made
regarding the expected credit losses for these
receivables in 12 months were disclosed in
Note 25.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B REEE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBERBREZE &)
(¢ Liquidity risk (0 FEBELER
Prudent liquidity risk management implies FERYERREBERRTER
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents. FTRRELBEEEY - ~&E
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate MEERHEREHNAZEER
committed credit lines to ensure sufficient and B UBRAEEAIEEZHART
flexible funding is available to the Group. HOWES -
The table below analyses the Group's TERERGEBZAHIEAD
non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant BTHE #SAREBEETES R
maturity groupings based on the remaining period BES>WEMAEEEHER - 5K
at the balance sheet date to the contractual HENCREAEGHNARMBERER
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table £
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
DSRI1EF 1226 2E5F BBSF Foh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AR®FTT AREFTR ARE®EFTrT AREFTR
As at 31 December 2022 20226 12A31H
Lease liabilities MEAE 164,630 148,391 204,395 59,886 577,302
Trade payables ECY AN E S 7,857 — — — 7,857
Other payables and accruals £ ft & < 708 )z e 5t
(excluding employee ER(TMaEENE
benefits payables and TR RERNTIE)
tax payables) 118,865 — — — 118,865
291,352 148,391 204,395 59,886 704,024
As at 31 December 2023 M2023%£12A31H
Lease liabilities MEaE 202,909 152,945 210,549 53,239 619,642
Trade payables B S FIR 21,421 — — — 21,421
Other payables and accruals . f & < 7B J 5t
(excluding employee ER(TRIEENE
benefits payables and IEMRENTE)
tax payables) 94,217 = = = 94,217
318,547 152,945 210,549 53,239 735,280
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 3 BRI EE (&)
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BAREE
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the RUEFNABRERER  AEBNEY
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to S TFREMRESBEELHE - MR
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new FIREER BITHRGOIEEEEMN
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. WA ETS
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing AEERBERNBBELRERER « %
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total LRI ERFERNERNBETES
capital. Net debt is calculated as lease liabilities less cash e B FHEEEEEERRE LA
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ZEVHE EABEREGEGEERRE
“equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus RPI R MER FEAES
net debt. i o
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 20234 20226 12 A31HMEALRE
were as follows: BELRET
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022
2023F 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFT
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HEBEPIE17) 563,120 525,502
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BReRBEEEEYD
(Note 26) (Hi7E26) (224,277) (164,120)
Term deposits with initial terms 6 = ERER R = 18 A /Y
of over three months TEHTF R (FFsE26)
(Note 26) (384,929) (119,646)
Net (surplus)/debt (B&) EHFE (46,086) 241,736
Total equity e AAEE 834,233 203,109
Total capital BB 788,147 444,845
Gearing ratio EXREELE N/A 54%




20235 EHEBERRREFXERARF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation
Financial assets and liabilities

The Group measures its financial assets at FVPL and
FVOCI at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset either in the principal market
for the asset, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured

or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable

A5 A B TR I AR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

3 BEERKBRERw@G

Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEMR (&)
Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) TREEREEE)
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the MILREEMEERMBBRETERNE
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group ERBEMES  ARBERZHREHER
determines whether transfers have occurred between MBS EIERBE A EEE
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization EREMEBERNNORERANE AH
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the B EBEERBRAKMNzHEEE LIRS
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each #% o
reporting period.
This section explains the judgements and estimates made AR EER M BREPERLEA
in determining the fair values of the financial instruments hEBEEFENERIARAEERATE
that are recognised and measured at fair value in the HEFIE et - REHEBEE AN
financial statements. To provide an indication about the BEMAEABBROITETIEZR K&
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the ERRetRAREBEEEMIANS R
Group has classified its financial instruments into the ZEER - FERN TR -
three levels prescribed under the accounting standards.
An explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.
Recurring fair value
measurements REMAABETE
At 31 December 2022 ®2022%12A831A8 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R B2 F3M HEr
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mz ARBFTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®TR
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets at FVPL BARBETABRN
— Wealth management — BHER
products 22 — — 626,864 626,864
Financial asset at FVOCI BARBETAEM
ZERENEREE
— Equity securities — BRAES — — 47 47
Total financial assets CREEMLE — — 626,911 626,911
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R B AR M R

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) B RREERE s
Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEMF (@)
Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) cRMEENRBE(E)
Recurring fair value
measurements REEDAAEETE
At 31 December 2023 M2023%12H31H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1K 55288 3 5t
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARBTn AR%BTn AR%Trt AR%ETrR
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at FVPL BARBENABRN
TRAE
— Wealth management — BHER
products 22 = — 766,227 766,227
— Investment in private — RENLEES
funds — = 198,746 198,746
Financial asset at FVOC| BARBEARMD
FEBENEMEE
— Equity securities — REEH = — 46 46
Total financial assets THEELE = = 965,019 965,019
The fair value of financial assets at FVPL that are not WS RS FEEMNRA R BER
traded in an active market is determined by using AEmeREEN AL BEEERGBE
valuation techniques, which include the use of quoted BT FE - REFEAAESBEEN R
prices from the relevant financial institutions. f& o
These valuation techniques maximise the use of ZEHERMEENAIESHATEER
observable market data where it is available and rely as MEEE TERPEKBEESEEMR
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all e mMIENARBEMBNMEEXN
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are B ABBRE R ER - BIZIEIAGAS
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If one 28 o (W—IB Sk % IR E A A BRI 3E
or more of the significant inputs are not based on RIBATERTISEE - AR TAEIASE
observable market data, the instrument is included in 38 o
level 3.
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for RER - F1 2R3FZEREEHER

recurring fair value measurements during the year.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial
assets, including cash at banks, trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables; and the Group’s current financial
liabilities, including trade payables, and accruals and other
payables approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEERKBRERw@G

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AREEMEFE
Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) TREEREEE)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 items TREF|E3IRIBEEE20225F %2023
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023: FNANALFENED
Wealth
management Equity
product securities Total
A Em A& AR F 5 #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETTT ARETTT AREETT

Opening balance as at R2022F1A18H
1 January 2022 FH R 926,338 74 926,412
Acquisitions W i 1,168,150 — 1,168,150
Redemption upon maturity Z|HAFE [0 (1,488,319) — (1,488,319)
Net fair value gains on financial E AR EEF AEBRA
assets at FVPL THEEARBENR
FER 20,695 — 20,695
Change in fair value through  FFAHMZ2EKEH
ocl AR BEEZSD — 27) 27)
Closing balance as at 202251283181
31 December 2022 FRER 626,864 47 626,911
Wealth Investment
management in private Equity
product funds securities Total
BEHER NMEESRE MR 5 HEt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®BTR AR®T R AR®T
Closing balance as at M2022%F128318H
31 December 2022 FERES 626,864 — 47 626,911
Acquisitions W ks 1,417,000 189,854 — 1,606,854
Redemption upon maturity — ZI|#EE[E] (1,297,282) — — (1,297,282)
Net fair value gains on BARBEMABZNSH
financial assets at FVPL BEQABERGZFRE 19,645 4,202 — 23,847
Currency translation BE X 25
differences = 4,690 = 4,690
Change in fair value through 5F AE 2 R
ocl DNRBEED = — (1 (1)
Closing balance as at M2023F128318 M1

31 December 2023 FRER 766,227 198,746 46 965,019
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3

B RREERE s

Fair value estimation (Continued)
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in level 3 fair value measurements of FVPL:

3.3 AREBEMF (&)

HEEABIENA AR A BEOBE
TERBULEREAABEFABRENE
REEFIRAABEFEMAEAT
AERBABENELER

Fair value Range of inputs
DREE BWABBNER
Significant Relationship of
unobservable unobservable inputs to
Description As at 31 December inputs As at 31 December fair value
BERTAUHEHA TABRB AR
R RK12A31R ¢ W12A31H AREEHER
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023F 20224 20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETRT ARBTRE ARETR
Wealth management 766,227 626,864 Discount rates 2.20%- 2.37%— The higher the
product 3.75% 4.30% discount rate, the
lower the fair value
BHER 766,227 626,864 BRI 2.20%- 237%- HBREHS 2AAE
3.75% 4.30% BB
Investment in private 198,746 — Net asset value N/A N/A The higher the net
funds asset value, the
higher the fair
value
NEESKE 198,746 — BERE TER TER AEFEMS 2R
BEYS

If the discount rate for level 3 fair value measurement
had been 10% higher/lower, the fair values of financial
assets at FVPL as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 would
have been approximately RMB631,000 and RMB568,000
lower/higher, respectively.

WMEIRARBEFTENHRRER A/
TFE10% » B 720234 2022412 A
3R AR BEFABEHNEREER
REEDBRD NG ARE
631,000t 2 A R #568,0007T ©
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team
that performs the valuations of non-property items
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair values. This team reports directly to the chief
financial officer (CFO). Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the CFO and the valuation
team at least once every six months, in line with the
Group's half-yearly reporting periods.

Changes in level 3 fair values are analysed at the end of
each reporting period during the half-yearly valuation
discussion between the CFO and the valuation team. As
part of this discussion the team presents a report that
explains the reason for the fair value movements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates, which, by definition,
will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to
exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Impairment of goodwill and trademark with
infinite useful life

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
management conducted an impairment review on
goodwill and trademark with infinite useful life. For the
reporting periods, the recoverable amount of
cash-generating units (CGUs) was determined based on
value-in-use calculations which require the use of
assumptions. The calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates stated in Note 21.
These growth rates are consistent with forecasts included
in industry reports specific to the industry in which each
CGU operates.

Details of impairment charge and key assumptions are
disclosed in Note 21.

Revenue recognised from unutilised prepaid
packages

Most of Group’s services are sold on a prepaid basis and
offer a variety of prepaid packages. When a customer
prepays for a service or product, the relevant payment is
recorded as contract liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet until the Group recognise revenue from the
relevant prepaid package. These prepayments give the
customer a right to receive services or products in the
future (and oblige the Group to stand ready to provide
services or products). However, customers may not
exercise all of their contractual rights for various reasons.
Those expected unexercised rights are referred to as
“forfeited income”.

The expected unexercised rights on prepaid packages are
estimated by management based on historical customer
behaviour and usage pattern and are recognised as
revenue when the likelihood of the customer exercising
its remaining rights becomes remote. Forfeited income
will be recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of payment of
the related taxations. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for the
Group's property, plant and equipment with reference to
the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of these assets.

Management performs periodic review of the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, and will
revise the depreciation charges where estimated useful
lives are different than those previously estimated.

Fair value assessment of the trademarks and
customer relationships and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combinations

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
fair value assessment of the identified trademarks and
customer relationships and the recognition of goodwill
arising from business combinations. These significant
judgements and estimates include the adoption of
appropriate valuation methodologies and the use of key
assumptions in the valuation (mainly annual revenue
growth rate, gross profit margins, discount rates and
expected useful lives of customer relationships).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

Contractual arrangement

Due to the regulatory restrictions on the foreign
ownership of the certain part of Listing Business in the
PRC, the Group does not have any legal equity interest in
Shanghai Liernuo. The Directors assessed whether or not
the Group has control over Shanghai Liernuo by assessing
whether it has the rights to variable returns from its
involvement with Shanghai Liernuo and the Medical
Institutions and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over Shanghai Liernuo and the Medical
Institutions. After assessment, the Directors concluded
that the Group has control over Shanghai Liernuo and
the Medical Institutions as a result of the Contractual
Arrangements and accordingly the financial position and
the operating results of Shanghai Liernuo and the
Medical Institutions can be included in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. Nevertheless, the
Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective as
direct legal ownership in providing the Group with direct
control over Shanghai Liernuo and the Medical
Institutions and uncertainties presented by the PRC legal
system could impede the Group's beneficiary rights of the
results, assets and liabilities of Shanghai Liernuo and the
Medical Institutions. The Directors, based on the advice of
its legal counsel, consider that the Contractual
Arrangements with Shanghai Liernuo, the Medical
Institutions and their equity holders are in compliance
with the relevant PRC laws and regulations and are
legally enforceable.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive committee, which comprises all executive directors
and chief financial officer. The executive committee reviews the
Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources.

The executive committee has determined that no business
segment information is presented as all business segments are
with similar economic characteristics.

The executive committee has also determined that no
geographical segment information is presented as all business
performance are generated from the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R P AR A R

6 REVENUE & CONTRACT LIABILITIES 6

(a)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group derives revenue from the service at a point in
time and over time and the transfer of goods at a point
in time in the following major revenue streams:

BWAREHNEE
(@) REFFPAHNKRANDHE

AREB BT EBRARIRF BB
fe) b Ko — By i) P 0 AR 745 DA B 3 — B ]
HOEREERTESRA

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLELEE

2023 2022
20234F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Beauty and wellness services E B MREE RS
— Direct stores (at a point in time) —— H% 5 (RE—BEE)
— Services — R 993,849 764,771
— Product Sales — EmEE 86,017 70,838
— Franchised and others — NEEJE R E A
— Product sales — EmEE
(at a point in time) (RE—B/HZ) 109,248 106,357
— Franchise fee (over time) — nEE
(R—EREEA) 4,561 4,780
Subtotal NNEF 1,193,675 946,746
Aesthetic medical services BEEXARY
— recognised at a point in time — RE KRR 850,356 620,199
Subhealth medical services TR EERE
— Services recognised at a point — RE R BHERA
in time AR 7% 70,562 49,020
— Services recognised over time — R ARERA
AR %5 30,475 19,449
Subtotal INET 101,037 68,469
Total #Et 2,145,068 1,635,414

Revenues from external customers come from the
rendering of services and sales of products including
beauty and wellness services, aesthetic medical services
and subhealth medical services.

SMEBEFPBMARBRERE MEEE
i BREEAMRERYE  BEXTR
R i R B AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 REVENUE & CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(Continued)

(a)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Subhealth medical services recognised over time are
cooperation fee received from Hainan Qiyan Stem Cell
Anti-aging Hospital Co., Ltd. after disposal from the
Group in December 2020. Such services include customer
referral and consulting services, logistics arrangement
services, customer post-treatment caring services rendered
to Hainan Qiyan Stem Cell Anti-aging Hospital Co., Ltd.,
which were disclosed in Note 33(b).

No significant revenue comes from a single external
customer. There is no customer contributing more than
10% of revenue. Most of the Group’s customers are
individuals, which are widely distributed.

The Group is domiciled in the PRC. All of its sales from
external customers are generated in the PRC.

Liabilities related to contracts with customers

(i) The Group has recognised the following liabilities
related to contracts with customers:

A5 A B TR I AR

6 WARESHERF®

(a)

KEFEFP B ADRE @)

R— BB AERN D RREERRE A
2020F 12 AR S B 55 E R 40 R
NREBRARARLEERYEZA K
HNAEEER - ZEREBIEREEK
MR ZEEBRERARRENE
FENLEARE  DRZHRY &
FlafkEERY SR E33b)#

o

WEE RS REE—INBREF - Wi
EEEBBBE10% KA - REEMNK
HHEFEABEMNAL  BDMER °

7S B ¢ 48 SR SR FE R B o LT 2R A 1
BEFMHEIRPEEL

HEFAHNBEHNEIE
i) AEBCHEIUNTHEFAOE
MBS :

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBFIT
Contract liabilities — services and A4 EE — RS RE SR
product sales HE 1,492,514 1,408,119

The Group classified these contract liabilities as
current because the Group does not have an
unconditional right to defer for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

The products are sold on a prepaid basis. When the
franchised stores prepay for a product, the relevant
payment is recorded as contract liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet until the Group
recognizes revenue upon delivery of products to the
franchised stores.

REEEZEANEEIEAR
PHEE REALEETEEK
HREFGEERTCERHREHERE
D12 A -

EmRANEELE - EMAE
SUE A BUR - BB
BEERABERARIEALE
B BEEAEERERMAMEARE
AR HERIA ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R P AR A R

6 REVENUE & CONTRACT LIABILITIES 6 WAREHERT®
(Continued)
(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers by HEFPEHNBABENAEE)
(Continued)
(i) Changes in contract liabilities iy AHaENE
Contract liabilities have increased as a result of the HREBEREEEERNGEH
business expansion which led to the increase in the SEN aHNEBETREZEM-

number of direct stores and members.

(iiiy  Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (i) MENEEERHUA
The following table shows how much of the TR AR E B A RR R
revenue recognised in the current reporting period HENSHARERBRA

relates to carried-forward contract liabilities:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT

Revenue recognised that was FFABYIE N B EESRT
included in the contract liability — AIE#ERUA
balance at the beginning of the
period
— Services and product sales — RBREMBEE 852,513 742,542
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B TR I AR

REVENUE & CONTRACT LIABILITIES 6 WARSHERE®
(Continued)
(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers by HEPEHNBBENAEE)

(Continued)

(iv)  The following table shows the movement of contract

liabilities for the periods indicated:

(ivy TRETHAIHEANEENE

& :

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBEF T
Balance at the beginning of FUEER
the year 1,408,119 1,347,685
Net increase in contract liabilites T AKBERFE LA
due to the prepaid cards sold to 3| MA K EFEE N
end customers R 1,883,406 1,500,938
Revenue recognised from provision A4 % = & 0B85 He &
of services and product sales to ~ REANBEERHD
end customers and franchised TR A
stores (1,990,672) (1,535,121)
Payment to franchised stores due F A€ 8 f2 4 AR 7% A 082
to the services provided to our JEAF R
members (7,933) (6,564)
Net increase in contract liabilities B 50 B2 J& K E b Jg B 78 1+
due to the prepayments SRIESI AN A EE
received from franchised stores pIlIpEER=E
and others 177,107 102,283
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ui B B 8~ &) (B 5E35(a))
(Note 35(a)) 22,487 4,479
Disposal of subsidiaries or LE M B AR R ER
business — (5,581)
1,492,514 1,408,119
(0 KRETHRHEEH

(c)  Unsatisfied long-term contracts

Management expects

that the proportion of

approximately 61% and 57% of the transaction to

unsatisfied obligations as of 31

December 2023 and

2022 will be recognised as revenue within next one year.
The remaining will be recognised in more than one year.

H ZE2023%F K2022912A318 12
EEHABITEANRSHAL A%
K57% @ R KR —FANERBBA -
BTN —F A LR ARER -
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A5 A B R T AR

7 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSES 7 HMWAREMEAX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARKETF T
Other income Higg A
Government grants BT 18 B 22,212 21,575
Rental income HE WA 7,622 6,693
Others Hith 559 812
30,393 29,080
Other expenses Hp %
Direct cost in relation to the rental income EFSWABBEHNEEKA
(Note 16) (KtaE16) 3,390 3,393
Government grants mainly represent subsidies from B EDEZERERNTIERTTESR  BAE
governments as industry support, contributions of the Group to B IS5 E B EEH B R A9 B A R B BT
employment stabilization and exemption on valued-added tax MR TFHIRERRE - ZEFHB WA
granted by the government authority in the PRC. There are no R RZER B E M A EIE o

unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these

grants.

8 OTHER GAINS — NET

8 HfttWmFE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBFTT

Net fair value gains on financial assets at AR BEF ABEZHNCE

FVPL (Note 22) BEARBERSEFE

(Mt3E22) 23,847 20,695

Net losses on disposal of property, plant HEYE - s REBEEE
and equipment HER (1,008) (906)
Net foreign exchange gains bE 5 Y %) 58 320 4,030
Others EAh (4,579) (1,252)

18,580 22,567
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R B AR M R

EXPENSES BY NATURE

The expenses charged to cost of sales and services, selling
expenses, research and development expenses and general and

9 BMESIMMAX
A E RIRIAE - BB - FTEMIAR
—BRAREXNRHRL AT -

administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2023 2022
2023F 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
Employee benefits expenses (Note 10) STEMAZ (MzE10) 854,414 697,066
Products, consumables used and related cost B ME® « M LIERIRK A 436,981 294,319
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 17) fFR#EEEITE (KH7E17) 210,370 187,535
Depreciation of property, plant and M HERBENE
equipment (Note 15) (BF5E15) 101,231 89,642
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18)  #EF/ & E# # (Hi5£18) 16,745 16,671
Property management fee MEEEE 66,900 43,495
Auditors’ remuneration % 2B 357 A 3,158 3,680
— Audit services — BRI 3,006 2,700
— Permissible audit related and non-audit —— JEFFRIEHIEEMIEE
services PR 75 152 980
Professional service fee BERBKE 23,191 19,768
Promotion and marketing related expenses — H#E[E K & $5AE R X 44,140 36,547
Office expenses MAERZ 26,296 22,085
Utilities NN 36,185 22,732
Travelling expenses EIRAX 17,708 8,559
Rental expense for short-term leases and RHEENHESRE R
variable lease payments (Note 17(b)) HENR(FFFE17(b)) 16,559 10,472
Bank charges RITHE 5,747 4,544
Miscellaneous expenses MIERAX 11,493 11,673
Taxes and surcharges IE M AN & 6,706 5,142
Entertainment expenses B & A 2 4,840 5,112
Loss allowance on inventories GFEEERE 2,647 1,324
Listing expenses WA — 32,649
Reorganisation cost (a) EFEN ) NE) = 7,279
Other expenses HEAx 13,250 11,125
Total w@Et 1,898,561 1,531,419
(a) Reorganisation cost (a) EMHEKAK
For the purpose of meeting certain listing requirements REEHEREHPRHZETREHREN

on its equity interests in the consolidated PRC operating
entities, the Group carried out an internal reorganisation
by transfer certain equity interests of its PRC operating
entities, from the equity holders of these PRC operating
entities to a subsidiary under the Company. Pursuant to
the reorganisation of these PRC operating entities, the
pertinent expenses of the equity holders in relation to the
share transfer shall be borne by the Group.

ETEMER  KEEBEESKETEZ
EBERMNETREAZSTHEERR
MESKEABRETARANMER
A EITARMER - REZFTEZE
HERENEAE oA ARKROEEN
A H) 5 ST AN SR BRI o
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R P AR A R

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10 ETIEFNBEX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARKETF T
Wages, salaries and bonuses I8 Fe ksl 721,954 581,897
Pension costs — defined contribution plans EIREKA — TREMFRETE 50,372 45,728
Welfare and other expenses R v b 23,047 13,378
Other social security costs E A g R A A 32,126 27,152
Housing benefits FEEH 16,015 14,733
Share-based compensation expenses LARR 19 32 158 9 5 B ) 2 10,900 14,178
Total employee benefit expense BETRAMMAZ BT 854,414 697,066
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BIKE — THEENREE
The Group did not have any forfeited contribution for the HE2023F K2022%F 128318 IEF
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 in connection & 7 55 B 0 A A ] SR 30 05 BT 8 1R Y
with the defined contribution plan operated by local EREHREGTE A 2R -
governments.
Employees of the Group are required to participate in a AEEMETIELMBFEM T BEE
defined contribution plan administrated and operated by B RBEMEREREE - REEMET
the local municipal government in the PRC. The Group EER R A BNRENE IS &8 —
contributes funds which are calculated on certain FELLOIEFTERER - BB IHRRER
percentages of the employee salary as agreed by the RHEES -

local municipal government to the plan to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees.
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R B AR M R

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 10 ETHEABEX @

(b)  Five highest paid individuals

(b) hEHEEFAL

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETT

Director 2 — 3,813
Non-director FES 29,881 19,328
29,881 23,141

The emolument paid to the directors of the five highest
individuals is disclosed in the Note 36, while the

emolument paid to the remaining individuals during the BemT :

respective years is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALEE

ENAERSFALTHNEEHSCNM
AE36HE  MABFREBALIMAN

2023 2022

2023F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTT

Basic salaries EX¥He = —

Bonuses TE4T 29,881 19,326
Pension costs — defined contribution EREMAN — TREERETE

plans — 1
Other social security costs, housing Hivt 2 RBAR - EEEF

benefits and other employee REME RN
benefits — 1
29,881 19,328
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of the non-director highest paid
employees fell within the following range:

10

ETR/AMEZ @

(b)

TE&ESHFALE)
B EEENSESHFE TN EE LD
T~

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
RMB3,000,001 to RMB3,500,000 AR #3,000,001 T8
AR # 3,500,000 s 2
RMB3,500,001 to RMB4,000,000 AR #3,500,001 T8
AR #4,000,0007T 2 —
RMB4,500,001 to RMB5,000,000 AR#¥4,500,001 T
AR #5,000,0007T 1 —
RMB5,500,001 to RMB6,000,000 AR#¥5,500,001 T
AR #6,000,0007T — 1
RMB7,000,001 to RMB7,500,000 AR #7,000,001 &
AR#7,500,0007T = 1
RMB8&,500,001 to RMB9,000,000 AR #8,500,001 L&
AR #9,000,0007T 1 —
RMB9,000,001 to RMB9,500,000 AFE#9,000,001 T2
AR #9,500,0007T 1 —
5 4
11 FINANCE COSTS — NET 11 BB FEE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Finance income B WA
Interest income on bank deposits RATFRA A 21,837 3,094
Finance costs B 6 B A<
Interest expense ez
— Interest charges for lease liabilities — HEEGENEER (24,811) (24,713)
(24,811) (24,713)
Finance costs — net MR A FE (2,974) (21,619)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES

This note provides an analysis of the Group’s income tax
expense, presenting how the income tax expense is affected by
non-taxable and non-deductible items.

A5 A B TR I AR

12 FBFHBAX

AMERHEAEERSEHANIN - 25
FSHAX X IR R AR NEIR B TR E -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2023 2022

2023 % 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETF T

Current income tax — PRC income tax BOERFTIS R — R EIFTIS R 41,260 29,371
Adjustment for current income tax of BEFENRFAEHARE

prior years 1,482 (181)

Deferred income tax (Note 31) RIEPTISH (FTEE31) 15,388 (9,247)

Income tax expense FrEHmx 58,130 19,943

(a)

Cayman Islands

The Company is incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and is not subject to Cayman Islands
income tax.

Hong Kong Profits Tax

The subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is subject to
Hong Kong profits tax, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% on any estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

PRC CIT was calculated on the taxable profit for the
years at the rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC.

CIT was levied at the reduced rate of 15% for new/
high-tech subsidiaries. Certain subsidiaries of the Group
met the definition of STE (Small and Thin-profit
Enterprises) and entitled to a reduced corporate income
tax rate of 5% (2022: 5%).

The Company and its subsidiaries, except for STE and
new/high-tech subsidiaries and those incorporated in
Hong Kong, are generally subject to the PRC standard
corporate income tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%).

() HEHS
ARFEEREHS AR AR A
BREARAT  BEMANSHSHN
B -

(b) EEFEH
REBFMRINMBERARARNES
B R AT R B B S B S F)
SH ERFAEMNE2EEE LR
8.25% Mt KT - TeR T A ] JE 2R
ot ) B B2 16.5% Hy B R R

(0 FEEEMAERTEEMEFHR])
FREIGEMEHRERPERITHERER
ERHEMBAESH -

TEFEMBARIMmE  CEMEH
B 15% KR R TR RGN - REBEE TH
BARFAENAMACENTEE =8
5% (2022F (5% )MEB T EMESH
TR o

B/ NBU BRI £ 35 K v R R BT /BB R FD A
ERBEABFZMKIHRTN  RAF R
HIB AR —MAERPERECEMS
TR 25% (20224F : 25%) i Fi ©
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 12 FREBMEX W
() PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") (Continued) (€ HEEEMEH(LEMSFNR])
(%)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs AEEBRFABBATAEEIES B E
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the FEERE2S%TENERSE @ H5
statutory tax rate of 25% is as follows: I

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLELEE

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Profit before income tax W P 15 350 A1 A 288,269 130,475
Tax calculated at the applicable B25% MEAEEMETE
statutory tax rate of 25% EOF TR 72,067 32,619
Adjustment for tax effect of: BATEEOB G EEL
Preferential income tax rates AR EHARAEEETS
applicable to certain companies FARIMEBEMERBE
comprising the Group (22,131) (16,151)
Tax effects of expenses not deductible BLEBEM = A AFFH LA
for tax purposes ik 1,712 3,656
Current income tax filing difference of &1 FE &Y BVHIFTIS B R
prior years =5 1,482 (181)
PRC withholding income tax (i) AR TE TS () 5,000 —

Tax charge IS W 58,130 19,943
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(c) PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") (Continued)

(i)

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by
a PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate holding
company outside PRC for earnings generated
beginning 1 January 2008 and undistributed
earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax. A lower 5%
withholding tax rate may be applied when the
immediate holding companies are established in
Hong Kong according to the tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, deferred tax
expenses and a corresponding deferred tax liability
(Note 31(2)(a)) of RMB5 million had been
recognised in respect of the withholding tax
payable on the retained earnings of the Group's
PRC subsidiaries generated which the directors
expect to distribute outside the PRC in the
foreseeable future.

Since the Group can control the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries,
deferred tax liabilities are only provided to the extent that

such profits are expected to be distributed

in the

foreseeable future.

A5 A B TR I AR

12 BB @®

(0 HEEFEMEH(LEMSER])
() DEMBHEREEHRMAGF
B R R R EM R BRI
BEERARIER2008F 1A 18
A E £ BT 9K H IS &k
10%TEHFH - M 7 20084F 1 A1
HATEERRDIREFIAESR R
BMEAENH - REPHER
BRI HELHE  WEBEER
AEIREBR - A7) EARK
HI5% T I L K o & F20234 12
A31BIEFE  pAEEF HKH
BRARIELNRBRETEMNNTE
MR EERBECEHERX
FIEBEEHESE & (M FE312)
@) ARBSEHEEL EFEHLE
AR B BT A 0] B SRR R

BINDIR ©

P A 7 55 [ AT 22 ) 7 5 [ P B Pl B 2 )
MED KSR RERE - SERBHR
A RERD IKZEMNBHHEBELEHRER
AR -
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13 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER
SHARE

(i)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to the owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during each vyear. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares is calculated based on the assumption
that 99,800,000 shares, excluding 3,092,784 treasury
shares held for employee share scheme as detailed in
Note 27, and 200,000 shares issued and allotted to
ZYLot Holdings, issued upon the incorporation of the
Company in connection with the Reorganisation as
detailed in Note 27 were deemed to have been in issue
since 1 January 2019. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the 200,000 shares issued and allotted to ZYLot
Holdings was included in the weighted average number
of ordinary shares by multiplication of the number of
days after investment divided by the total number of the
days during the respective reporting periods.

On 16 January 2023, the Company conducted a 1 to 2
share split and each existing share was split into 2
shares. The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share for all periods presented was retrospectively
adjusted.

On 16 January 2023, the Company was listed on Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with
the global offering in Hong Kong of 24,395,500 shares.

On 5 February 2023, pursuant to the partial exercise of
the over-allotment option by the joint international
underwriters of the initial public offering, the Company
issued and subscribed an additional 6,080,000 shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
repurchased 865,500 outstanding ordinary shares with a
total consideration of RMB12,012,000, among which
255,500 shares were cancelled on 31 August and the
remaining 610,000 shares are accounted for as treasury
stock of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

13 BREAREBERRN

(i)

2N

BREABIIZSFAQREE ARMN
FUERAB BT BARNE L HEEE
1S o MR BRI 27 FTET
it gh B 4R RE AR S AN R BB B ITH
99,800,000 0% A% 1 (7~ B2 1&E M 527 AT &%
it B TR0 & 81556 893,092,784 %
EETER% LA K2 [M1ZYLot Holdings 277 & AL
Z£ /200,000 A% (& 10 ) # 4R A E 201941
A1HRBREHITHRITESE -#2
2022 12A31BIEFE  MZYLot
Holdings % 17 % B 2% #9200,0008% % 19
BERt AT MNET I8 - KUK ER
HE  BRUSHREHBOBAHK -

MR2023F1A16H  RAFEIT T 1L
20 D& BRIBEROED B A
2k BPRABMEHENTRELR
MR FRREERFIOEE -

R2023F1 8168 » RARIEEBERE
EER 24,395,500 IR E BB A R
SHERARERET -

R2023F2 A58 ARaABH XA
BENHEERAEE B THFEBER
[i% 45 T 28 HP B2 1T K2 72 886,080,000 % A%

,T/'\ °

HE2023F 128318 EEE > AR A
8% 01865,500 % BT EIN L EAY - 42 Y
BAAR®12,012,000T &P
255,500 Ik E N8 A31H & - M
#2 610,000% f% 17 722023412 A 31
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13 BEREAXAREBBEERN®

SHARE (Continued)

(i)

Basic (Continued) (i)

IR ()

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Profit attributable to Owners of the ~ ANAFHEHE A &G FIH
Company (RMB’000) (AR®EFT) 215,657 103,109
Weighted average number of ordinary = %17 %@ I IN4E F 1 #
shares in issue 228,582 199,922
Basic earnings per share for profit FRNARREHEEB AR
attributable to the Owners of the HERERRT (LAEBRA
Company during the year R¥TIR)
(expressed in RMB per share) 0.94 0.52
Diluted (i) #E

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account of share options granted to the employees that
would have been outstanding assuming the vesting of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. Details relating to the
options are set out in Note 20.

SREERNFET AREEERER
BNNET  UERTEINBERES
BHEA BZEERERRITE(RR
MEBCEHETBROCRE) - B
RAEBFISHNME20 -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Profit attributable to Owners of the AR A AEMLEFIE (AR
Company (RMB’000) e ) 215,657 103,109
Weighted average number of ordinary %17 %@ IN4E FHH
shares in issue 228,582 199,922
Adjustments for calculation of diluted &t & 5 I% # 58 2 FI| 05 19 75 2
earnings per share: HA 1,504 166
Weighted average number of ordinary & SRE#ERFIEIEAD
shares and potential ordinary shares &} #9338 % & B7E LB A A9
used as the denominator in hnieE
calculating diluted earnings per
share 230,086 200,088
Diluted earnings per share for profit AR &% AE A &G F)E
attributable to the Owners of the HEREE R (LERA
Company during the year R¥THIR)
(expressed in RMB per share) 0.94 0.52
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14 DIVIDENDS

14 KRE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBTT
Dividends declared to the ERRREIREE @) - (b)

shareholders (a), (b) 86,313 198,742

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.47 BEANKRESGR047ET
(2022: HK$0.39) per share (c) (20224 : ®}20.397 1) (0) 100,513 80,465

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain
companies now comprising the Group declared dividends of
RMB86,313,000 and RMB198,742,000 respectively to their then
shareholders.

On 19 June 2023, the Company declared a cash dividend of
approximately HK$92.30 million from share premium
(approximately RMB84.01 million), being HK$0.39 per share. The
dividend has been paid on 28 September 2023 amounting to
RMB84.70 million.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of
HK$0.47 (equivalent to RMBO0.43) per share, amounting to a total
dividend of approximately HK$110.82 million (equivalent to
RMB100.51 million), is to be approved at the 2023 annual
general meeting of the Company. These consolidated financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

GER

(a)

(b)

(@

HZE2023F K2022F 128318 LFEE - K
EEBERETETARSHREERKRRE
BB AR 86,313,000 AR
198,742,0007T °

M2023F6A198 KRR ARMBEESIK
R E 492308 8B T (HWARES4L.01
BET)  BERKR039EITL KAQAAE R
2023F9A28ARMN IR EARMKS470EH &
5o

HE2023F12A831B IEFEER047HE T
(HERAREAITT)MBRE (RELBELD
ABI0REEBETHERARKE100518
B7)) R ART2023EREREAE
TR o WEHELR S BIRER I AR R ZEREN
BB o
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% HEERRE
Electronic Long-term
equipment Beauty Office leasehold  Assets under
Buildings  and vehicles equipment furniture  improvement  construction Total
BYRER RUHE
g¥ RE ERRE MORA NERE EREE @zt

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTT ARETR ARMTRT ARETR ARETRT ARETR

At 1 January 2022 M202251A18

Cost KA 40,815 22,444 177,998 8,900 376,382 5,581 632,120
Impairment provision wEEE — - (862) — — — (862)
Accumulated depreciation RiE (23,117) (12,193) (118,062) (4,212) (214,170) — (371,754)
Net book amount REFE 17,698 10,251 59,074 4,688 162,212 5,581 259,504

Year ended 31 December 2022 BZ2202512831ALEE

Opening net book amount EYEMHE 17,698 10,251 59,074 4,688 162,212 5,581 259,504
Additions NE — 6,802 34,057 901 22,746 74,584 139,090
Transfers HE - - — — 64,206 (64,206) —
Disposals HeE — (158) (490) (43) (434) - (1,125)
Deduction due to disposal of a HEM B2 R

subsidiary — (21) (2) (4) (96) — (123)
Depreciation charge (Note 9) FEBRA (1:9) (2,037) (3,489) (26,531) (1,540) (56,045) - (89,642)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 15,661 13,385 66,108 4,002 192,589 15,959 307,704
At 31 December 2022 ®2022%12631A
Cost A 40,815 27,721 206,681 9,382 460,807 15,959 761,365
Impairment provision RERE - — (185) - — — (185)
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (25,154) (14,336) (140,388) (5,380) (268,218) — (453,476)

Net book amount REFE 15,661 13,385 66,108 4,002 192,589 15,959 307,704
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

15 ¥ - SRR )

Electronic Long-term
equipment Beauty Office leasehold  Assets under
Buildings and vehicles  equipment furniture improvement  construction Total
ETRER ROEE
BT A& E3ET WARE WEEE EEEE EoHY
RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AR¥Tn AR%Tr AR%TR ARETR ARETn
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZ2023F12831ALLEE
Opening net book amount FOEHFE 15,661 13,385 66,108 4,002 192,589 15,959 307,704
Additions RE - 3,865 70,062 2,344 19,521 70,979 166,771
Transfers EE = = = = 66,350 (66,350) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35)  WEM B A (F335) = 83 626 - - - 709
Transferred to intangible assets SREEMEE(HH18)

(Note 18) = = = = = (1,375) (1,375)
Disposals HE — (186) (1,045) (98) — (276) (1,605)
Depreciation charge (Note 9) HEER (K39) (2,037) (4,109) (21,341) (1,476) (72,268) — (101,231)
Closing net book amount FREDFE 13,624 13,038 114,410 4,772 206,192 18,937 370,973
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12831A
Cost B 40,815 30,233 268,438 11,196 518,775 18,937 888,394
Impairment provision HERE - - (185) - - — (185)
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (27,191) (17,195) (153,843) (6,424) (312,583) - (517,236)
Net book amount FEFE 13,624 13,038 114,410 4,772 206,192 18,937 370,973
The amounts of depreciation expense charged to profit or loss RERTNBROTERSENOT :
are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Cost of sales and services $HE &R AL A 93,771 83,773
Selling expenses HEMRX 4,569 3,926
General and administrative expenses — MM ATHR X 2,891 1,943
101,231 89,642
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A5 A B TR I AR

16 REYWHE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Leasehold land and buildings HELHRETF
Opening net book amount FYEEFE 71,145 74,538
Depreciation charge HEER (3.390) (3,393)
67,755 71,145

Closing net book amount: FREBREDFE -
Cost B 78,019 78,019
Accumulated depreciation REtI e (10,264) (6,874)
Net book value REHE 67,755 71,145
Fair value at the end of year FRANEE 92,640 92,700

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group assessed the
fair values of investment properties with reference to valuation
reports issued by an independent valuer. The valuation method
is the income approach, which takes into account the rental
income of such portion of the property derived from the
existing leases and/or achievable in the existing market with due
allowance for the reversionary income potential of the leases,
which have been then capitalised to determine the market
value at an appropriate capitalisation rate.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, rental
income of the Group’s investment properties recognised as
“other income” (Note 7) amounted to RMB7,622,000 and
RMB6,693,000 respectively. And depreciation of the Group's
investment properties recognised as “other expenses” (Note 7)
amounted to RMB3,390,000 and RMB3,393,000 respectively.

The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating
leases with rentals payable quarterly. Lease payments for the
contract include CPI increases, but there are no other variable
lease payments that depend on an index or rate.

The Group classifies cash outflows to acquire or construct
investment property as investing and rental inflows as operating
cash flows.

20234 K% 202212 8318 » KEBL2RE
VA ERMEANGEERETEREEDENR
RIEE - FETEBRAE  EPstRIEER
EHER/FARBREMSERENEREYE
HomEskA  TEEEERENERK
ANBN 2B AEBREENER R
BAEELRNEEME-

REZE2023F K2022F 12 A31HILFE - #
RATEMUAI(HFE7) AR EBMREMED
e W AD R A ARE7,622,0007T & AR
6,693,0007T ° i #E &R A& [ H b B 32 J(FF 5£7)
MASBEREDETED R ABARYE
3,390,0007T & A R #53,393,0007T °

BREDMERBLEHERELPHE  BEX
NiEE - ANEHENREBEBEEEYEER
o0 - M I AR BUR O 48 B A K a0 H Aty T
HERK -

AEEKKRBRERREMENRS IR LR
BRERERSRE SHERAGRARKE
RERE -
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17 LEASES

The consolidated balance sheet show the following amounts FEEAERABRRIRUTEHBEEN
relating to leases:

(a)

Right-of-use assets

17 HE&

(@) EREEE

Properties
L3
RMB’000
ARET T
Year ended 31 December 2022 HZ2022F 1283181t EE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 451,795
Additions NE 216,759
Depreciation (Note 9) & (FF3E9) (187,535)
Closing net book amount FAREmFE 481,019
At 31 December 2022 72022%12H31H
Cost DN 912,093
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (431,074)
Net book amount BREFAE 481,019
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12A31B LFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 481,019
Additions NE 244,882
Depreciation (Note 9) & (MsE9) (210,370)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 515,531
At 31 December 2023 7A2023F12H831H
Cost Bk 7R 932,585
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiTE (417,054)

Net book amount

BRTEFE 515,531
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17 LEASES (Continued) 17 HE®
(b) Lease liabilities by HEHE
As at 31 December
R12H31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current mE 169,343 150,979
Non-current SERE 393,777 374,523
563,120 525,502
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income and GEtERGRREGEHEERNEXRES
the consolidated statement of cash flows contain the LT EEESFRENEE
following amounts relating to leases:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A831BLEE
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREETT
(i) Profit or loss: (i) B -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets, CREEENE BHEHE
charged to cost of sales and K2 AR 75 B AN LA B — % K
services and general and SRl
administrative expenses 210,370 187,535
Interest expenses relating to lease HEEBEAHENTNE
liabilities, charged to finance X - B BKANR
costs 24,811 24,713
Expenses relating to variable lease HA S HENREBEN
payments fil &2 9,335 4,009
Expenses relating to short-term HEAEEHNFX
leases 7,224 6,463
251,740 222,720
(ii) Cash flow: (i) RERE :
The cash outflow for leases as HEEARETHNERE
financing activities yinges! 232,075 231,430
The cash outflow for leases as HEERKEEHNER
operating activities it 16,559 10,472

248,634 241,902
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17 LEASES (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group's leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various offices and stores. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of six
months to fifteen years and have no extension
options granted to the Group.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from a
store. For individual stores with variable payment
arrangements, up to 95% of lease payments are on
the basis of variable payment terms with
percentages ranging from 10% to 16% of sales.
Variable payment terms are used for a variety of
reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base
for newly established stores. Variable lease
payments that depend on sales are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the condition
that triggers those payments occurs.

If revenue had increased/decreased by 5% with all
other variables held constant, variable lease
payments for the year ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 would have been approximately
RMB3,730,000 and RMB3,764,000 respectively
higher/lower mainly as a result of lease expenses
of cost of sales and services and cash equivalents.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are not included
in leases across the Group. The majority of
extension and termination options are exercisable
by mutual agreements between the Group and the
respective lessor.

17 HE®

(b)

HEBE (&)

(iii)

(iv)

AEEMEERHREARITE

AEEHEZERAZERPSE -
%ﬁ%é%’)@% .IEZ%HH/\“)E];ZE
ThE - B EAALEERDE
AR -

HE RFIR A B EEE TR
BB BT RRR R AR - B
HEAMFHEEENRRER
S 78 E 1 I 5N ] 22

- MEEBEETSAEERNE
Bl

AEAE R

HomExERERSHMEELEN
SHEEE SRR B ISR - B
AENRZHENEBIMNEmNS
= 95% MR & [ SRR IR A] 2
FERETY  EADHNTHE
E10% E16% ° 7] B4 5 5%
ARZBERE @ BiEREREN
B2 P JE B9 E TE A AR 2R - BUR
P86 BB A AT 2 T B SRR B B
ZEMNBUEFE LR R B E

=7
o ©

WA EF,/ 5% @ ATA E
A EERERFIE  FANUK
H E2023F 20229128318
IEFEANERENRKE D RIE
bR A #) AR5 3,730,000 7T K
AR#3,764,0007T © EEHAH
ENBRBEXAUNRIREEEDN
HERZAH -

BN IEER

$%lﬂ’ﬁﬁ‘ TEEEHRRILE
BERE AR BEMRRIERE

EmASERES S HBEAZ R
ETHENRATE
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18 BEE

Customer
Software Trademarks  relationships Others Total
B [ EFBR Hity Fobi
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT ARETR ARBTT AREFT
At 1 January 2022 R2022% 1818
Cost PR 23,393 23,208 90,397 74 137,072
Accumulated amortisation and impairment x4 KR E (5,390) (184) (41,204) (43) (46,821)
Net book amount REFE 18,003 23,024 49,193 31 90,251
Year ended 31 December 2022 HBZ202512A31BLEE
Opening net book amount FMEEFE 18,003 23,024 49,193 31 90,251
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) Y BB I B 2 A (B 3E35) — - 3,700 — 3,700
Other acquisitions Hi i 6,102 — 508 — 6,610
Disposal HE - — (596) — (596)
Amortisation charge (Note 9) HHER (59) (3,429) @1 (13,214) (7) (16,671)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 20,676 23,003 39,591 24 83,294
At 31 December 2022 ®2022%128318
Cost AR 29,495 23,208 92,922 74 145,699
Accumulated amortisation and impairment x84 KR E (8,819) (205) (53,331) (50) (62,405)
Net book amount SEFE 20,676 23,003 39,591 24 83,294
Year ended 31 December 2023 BZ2023F12A31ALEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 20,676 23,003 39,591 24 83,294
Transferred from assets under construction &% BEREE (H5E15)

(Note 15) 1,375 — — — 1,375
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) WeBE R B 2 Al (B 5E35) — — 10,800 — 10,800
Other acquisitions H b ek 1,254 = = - 1,254
Amortisation charge (Note 9) BHER (:9) (4,018) (21) (12,699) (7) (16,745)
Closing net book amount FREEDFE 19,287 22,982 37,692 17 79,978
At 31 December 2023 ®2023F12A318
Cost A 32,124 23,208 103,722 74 159,128
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 T4 85 &R (E (12,837) (226) (66,030) (57) (79,150)
Net book amount BEEE 19,287 22,982 37,692 17 79,978
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18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 BILEE

The amounts of amortisation expenses charged to profit or loss BERGIGRNEHEER BN

are as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A831ALEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT

Selling expenses HEMRX 12,777 10,217

General and administrative expenses — M RITHAX 488 3,582

Research and development expenses HERY 3,480 2,872

16,745 16,671

(i) Total research and development expenses incurred in 2023 (i) R2023F M2022F E A I 2R S 48
and 2022 were approximately RMB34,071,000 and B4 A ANREE34,071,000T R AR
RMB31,187,000 respectively, which have been included in #31,187,0007T + B st AfEam R AR E
the research and development expenses in the statement X e
of profit or loss.

(i) During the year, management conducted an impairment iy REAN EEEUEFPBENEBEEE
review on the intangible assets of customers relationships R EERBAEAFHNEREREEE
and trademarks with infinite useful life together with TTRERES o BERE FTABRERERN
goodwill. The key assumptions used in the impairment MIsE21 90 55 -
review were disclosed in Note 21.

19 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19 HitFRBEE

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2023 2022
2023 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREETT
Prepayment for procurement of equipment &R & A E 2,356 1,829
Prepayment for constructions BRIERFKIE — 916
2,356 2,745
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20 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS

(1)

Share Award Scheme

The Group adopted a number of employee restricted
share plans to provide long-term incentives for its
employees and directors of the Group to deliver
long-term shareholder returns. Under the plans,
participants are granted restricted share which only vest if
certain conditions are met.

On 16 May 2017, Shanghai Youyi Commercial
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Shanghai
Youyi”) was established serving as the employee incentive
platform, in which Mr. Li was the controlling shareholder
and general partner.

During the period of 2017 to 2019, certain shares of
Shanghai Beauty Farm were granted to the employees of
Shanghai Beauty Farm. Shanghai Beauty Farm does not
have any obligation to repurchase and pay back the
subscription price to employee upon forfeiture.

During the reorganisation in 2022 as mentioned in Note
1.2, the above restricted share plans were replaced by the
restricted share plans under Crest Sail Limited, the vesting
condition does not change, and no additional benefit to
the employee upon modification and thus does not have
any accounting impact.

The Group adopted the following restricted share plans to
the Grantees, as rewards for their services, full-time
devotion and professional expertise to the Group.

A5 A B TR I AR

20 AR AT BVARR

(1)

e fn 82 R =t &
AEBRKETEIRRAKMHE
RAEBEBTRERRERMAB - U
TREHRROR - REZFHE 2
HERERSZRBIRD - ERERE TR
HETZRE -

FEERREEBAELE (ARAR)
([ EBER])MN2017FE5 A16 BRI 1E
BEIRBTE  FTREREBRBRER
TBEBA

R2017F £2019F 8if8 - E/BXEM
BvaTRMERT HEEBHEMNE
T LEXBEHEYETAETRLK
%E B THL s REREE -

FBLANHTEET.2FT L - A2022F EH S
i+ E a2 R $I 8% (5 5T B3 Crest Sail
Limited T8 T A9 2R Bl AR (9 5T BIFT AR
BEGMETARTERE - BRBLTA

BTHREINIR - BB S5
B4 .
e

REERAR AP T IR G5
EREAKERY 2REMMEER
FN 38 H 22D -

Fair value

of the

share granted

Percentage of Subscription as at

share granted price grant date

RELBH

FRERH R4 Y BEHRGH

Aok REE RAEE

(%) RMB'000 RMB’'000

(%) ARETFT ARBEF T

2017 Restricted Share Plan 2017 Z R IR 5 5t 2l 0.97 4,656 7,760
2018 Restricted Share Plan 2018 X R il iR 17 5+ 21 .11 13,875 17,760
2021 Restricted Share Plan 2021 F X R FIAR 5 5t 2l 1.16 18,557 29,125
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20 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(1)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Expenses for the share-based compensation have been
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

20 RGBSR @®

(1)

e tn 82 =T & ()
M XA HMFESXC BARA 2K
BmEAMBRLT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLELEE

2023 2022

20234F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ T AREFT

General and administrative expenses — — /& K 7T X = 9,519

Share awards scheme of Group’s subsidiaries

Equity interest of the Group’s certain subsidiaries are
awarded to certain registered practitioners
(“Practitioners”), including store directors, regional
managers, senior operation managers, in respect of their
future services for the Group.

Several commercial management partnerships (“Limited
Partnerships”) were established by the Group in 2020 as
employee incentive platforms.

Certain percentage of the equity interest of these Limited
Partnerships were granted to Practitioners in 2021 and
2022 respectively at subscription price of the relevant
subsidiaries of RM7,256,000 and RMB5,000,000 as a total
respectively. Shanghai Beauty Farm does not have any
obligation to repurchase and pay back the subscription
price to employee upon forfeiture.

NEE M B R R A ) R E) At &
AEEETHBARERE TEMILE
B(REE] BEER BELE-
AR BAEIE) RRBAEBIR MRS
[ EL % L S AE

REBMR2020F K E TREEEEAE
TE(BERARCEDIEREIAET

& o

ZEBRABCEETEDLLHRER
20214 % 20224F 5 B LA AR BE S &8 2 &)
REEA K ARYT7,256,000 AR
#55,000,000CE FTHREE - LBXE
HEWETMEEALKERBERRAE
TEEREE-
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20 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 20 BB XABMARK @
(2) Share awards scheme of Group's subsidiaries (2) AEEMNEB QBN G,EEET 2
(Continued) (#8)
Expenses for the share-based compensation have been RO EHHRMASE 8446 2EK
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive mRMBRET

income as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLFE

2023 2022
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
General and administrative expenses — — /& & 77 BB 2 1,884 1,015
Key assumptions AR
The following table sets forth key assumptions on which TREVNEEEETRESRETEAAG
management has based its cash flow projections to ERHBBN AR BEMKEOERERE
undertake the fair value as at grant date. & e

Annual revenue

growth rate EBIT/Revenue

FERARRE EBIT IR A

(%) (%)

(%) (%)

2020 Restricted Share Plan 20204F PR Fll & fn 5t & 4.73~7.53 5.29~15.58

2021 Restricted Share Plan 20214 IR Hl & fn 5t & 4.88~8.43 4.43~14.29

2022 Restricted Share Plan 2022 F Z R I A0 5T 8 6.93 8.65

(3)  Share-based payment to a shareholder (3) UMM F—RBREHRK
On 11 March 2022, ZYLot Holdings Limited completed a M2022%F3 118 » ZYLot Holdings
RMB3,976,000 investment in the Company for 0.2% of Limited E XN R AR AEIIKE AR
the Company’s issued share capital. The difference 3,976,0007T * BHLAR A F0.2% B 31T
amounted to RMB1,600,000 between the equity purchase AR - EmBEEEEAA L EENEEA
price and the fair value was charged to share-based R #1,600,000cE R E 22022912 A
payment expenses in consolidated statement of profit or BSTHLEEMNGEEERTTEURN X

loss during the year ended 31 December 2022. T FRBA S 0B o
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20 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(4) Share option scheme

Pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors of the
Company passed on 21 November 2022, 3,092,784 share
options were granted to certain eligible employees of the
Group under the share option scheme adopted by the
to subscribe for
3,092,784 shares of the Company in aggregate with an
exercise price of RMB24.25. On 16 January 2023, the
shareholders of the Company resolved to conduct a share
split (the “Share Split”) on a one-for-two basis, and the
exercise price of the ordinary share change to RMB12.13.

Company on 21 November 2022,

Expenses for the share options compensation have been
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

20 UABRHB NN

4)

B EETE

REBEAQDFEETSH2022611 8218
BBH—EAER  ARRMAEESR
THEEREEREN2022F11A21H
PN B AR RE AT 8118 T 893,092,784 17
AR E - LURTTEEB AR 24257TR
B8 & $£3,092,784 AR E K& MHD - B
2023F1A168 » AAGIRE#H AL —
b ZEEEITRO D E ([RGB DE]) -

TRRITEESEE AARBK 12137 -

BRERMAXC AR 2EKERN
Branr

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARE T ARETF T

General and administrative expenses — —f& &7 9,016 2,044

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of the Company at RMB24.25 each.
Each 25% of these share options will be vested on
31 December 2023, 31 December 2024, 31 December
respectively, and be
exercisable until 31 December 2027. As at 31 December
2023, the exercise price for the ordinary share of the
Company was RMB12.13 each with 6,185,568 share

2025, and 31 December 2026,

options.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no options
were exercised. The number of options granted on
21 November 2022 still outstanding at 31 December
2023 are 4,639,176 which have an exercise price of
RMB12.13 and a remaining contractual life of 4 years.

BHERERTHEARBARAAGT R
HEARBE2425TTH S BAILAIER]
ZEBRIEZ25% 85 R 2023F 12
HA318 - 2024912 H318 2025412
HA318 K%2026512A31B 8B R
2027512 A31 B AT ATIT{E « 722023
F12A318  AAREBARITEERS
XA ER#12.137T - 1E[FA6,185,56817 &
[ o

HE2023F12A31BILFE - $HET
2 1F ] BE AR 7 - B 2= 2023512 A31
B R2022F 11 A21B R H B EKRTT
FE I ES B 524,639,17617 » 1T1E(E
BARBI2A3T B TEHNFH AL
io
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M R

(4) Share option scheme (Continued)

(a

The term and conditions of the grants are as

follows:

20 AR 3 A B9 R )

AR E (8

BRI AR

Number of Contractual life
Instruments Vesting conditions of options
IAZE BRESHH
On 21 November 2022 3,092,784 25% on 31 December 2023 5.11 years
202211 H21H 2023F 12 A31HEB25% 5.114

The number and weighted average exercise prices

25% on 31 December 2024
202412 A31HEB25%
25% on 31 December 2025
202512 A31HEB25%
25% on 31 December 2026
202612 A31HEB25%

BRENEE RN AITERE

of share options are as follows: ms
2023
2023 F
Number of
Exercise price options
TEE BREHE
Outstanding at the beginning of the year F#AKT{# RMB24.25
AR¥24.257T 3,092,784
Share Split f&1n 5 & RMB12.13
AR#¥12.13T 6,185,568
Exercised during the year FRNBETE — —
Forfeited during the year FREEIK RMB12.13
AR#¥12.13T (1,546,392)
Granted during the year FRERD = =
Outstanding at the end of the year FARRITE RMB12.13
AR¥12.137 4,639,176
Exercisable at the end of the year FARAITE = =
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20 SHARED-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(4) Share option scheme (Continued)
(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on a binomial
option-pricing model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the binomial option-pricing model. Fair value of
share options and assumptions:

20 LXE“@S'E’HE’H‘JL/TA
(4) HERHEETE (4
(0 HERESN \fETETE&TE““:

BRI IR TSR L RS A0 2
AR DBEFEEBRES
DA FEE - FE RS
B2 A BE TV ARSE — T 2 R
TEBAGE - BREN S D8
FIE 4 A I B B B © 3R AT1T
EEIEI A B = TE R R
TEEL - BRENA L EER
CEE

Share options

BB

Fair value at measurement date (expressed
as weighted average fair value option-
pricing under binomial model)

RETEAM AR EE (R _RAHE
EBRLHINEFIRAEEIR)

RMB38,378,000
A K #38,378,0007T

Share price I (& RMB29.79
AER#29.797T
Exercise price TEE RMB24.25
AR®24.257T
Exercise price after share split & fn 5 B & BTTEE RMB12.13
ARE12.137C
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted FBERFIE (32 — B EBER
average volatility used in the modelling  Ff F3 H0#E 5% 18 51 7R )
under binomial option-pricing model) 48.11%
Option life (expressed as weighted average A% Hi (Fz — B Bl EBRA
life used in the modelling under FT A hnge S 9 S 851 7R ) 5.11 years
binomial option-pricing model) 5.114F
Expected dividends TEHIRR B & 3.00%
Risk- free interest rate (based on HKMA  EERFIE (RIEESSMEERR
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes) BEINEESERFTHE) 2.61%

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on the historical earning per share and
management’s estimation of dividend payment.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

TEHDR IR T5 iR IR IE SR R (IR B8R
%%bﬂ%ﬂ?i’:}ﬂﬁﬁi,ﬁﬁ%%)%

3 BRIB AR E R
TMEH?EHHE’J*X/)ME%E{’Fﬁ
HE - FHHRBERDIRBESL S
P & ) I B T O i R AR B AT 3R
FE - TEBERABBERERNE

ﬁ%giﬁﬂfifﬁ@ﬁ#LﬁXEK
FE o

BT R B R R AR o 7T
EFESRBNELBERNAR
BER  XWEZBUILEGET &
HEBREY NS ERETRISE
RREY 51T -
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21 GOODWILL 21 BHE

Goodwill
[5k5
RMB’000
ARET T

Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022F12A31B LEE
Opening net book amount FREFEE 194,273
Acquisition of business (Note 35) W g 2 7% (BT 3E35) 4,749
Disposal of business (i) & () (2,736)
Closing net book amount FREEFEE 196,286

At 31 December 2022 7202212 H831H

Cost B AR 196,286
Accumulated impairment REHRE -
Net book amount REFE 196,286

Year ended 31 December 2023 B ZE2023F12A31B 1L EE
Opening net book amount F YR FE 196,286
Acquisition of business (Note 35) U B 2 7% (M9 5E35) 21,241
Disposal of business s B —
Closing net book amount FREWEFE 217,527

At 31 December 2023 7A2023%F12H31H

Cost %N 217,527
Accumulated impairment 2ETRE —
Net book amount REFE 217,527

(i

In March 2022, the Group entered into a store transfer
agreement with Beijing Jiyueheyan Beauty Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Jiyueheyan”), pursuant to which the Group
transferred one of the Palaispa direct store (the “Store”)
in its subsidiary Beijing Palaispa Business Management
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Palaispa”) to Beijing lJiyueheyan at the
total consideration of RMB2,125,000.

The Group derecognised related property, plant and
equipments, intangible assets and goodwill attributable to
the store amounted RMB123,000, RMB596,000 and
RMB2,736,000 respectively of the Store from its
consolidated balance sheet upon losing control. The
consideration was determined based on arm’s length
negotiation between the parties at the time of the
disposal.

(i)

72022%3H - K& E HBeijing
Jiyueheyan Beauty Co., Ltd.([Beijing
Jiyueheyan ) TP E# EZ &% - 15
I AREFENB AR R E RS
E¥EBBRAR([HERERF]) NES
—RERFELZE(ZMEDEET
Beijing Jiyueheyan @ ¥ B A AR
2,125,0007T °

REBRKRELRGIER  BEGEEE
BERKILERZIIEEGEEDE
HERERE  EBREEEAREEDRA
AR #123,0007T « A R #596,0007T
N AR #2,736,0007T ° $BR L &S
BETHOH R PEEEBEE -
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R P AR A R

(a)

21 GOODWILL (Continued) 21 BEw
Impairment tests of goodwill (@ BEEREAH
Goodwill, customer relationships, trademark and other ME - BEPAR BEREMEEEE
related assets are allocated to group of CGUs, brand of RERFRELE LG EEHR SR
Palaispa as a whole, and brand of Beauty Farm by cities, Wm(RELEN ZFEEM - - REMR
including Shanghai, Chongging, Wuhan and other cities PERIEMET) YEERBESEEENE
located in PRC. Al e
The management has involved an independent qualified EEEEZREE LA ERTHAMEA
valuer to perform impairment test applying “value-in-use” [EAEE]DEETRERNR - HRE
method as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 by using the RERBBEAR2023F £2022F 12 A
discounted cash flow model. The value-in-use calculations 31EETE - EREEAECRAER
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets ERERETRAERN MIENIBTE
approved by management for the purposes of BERIRERETER - BRI ASE -
impairment reviews. The forecast period is 5 years.
The recoverable amount of the CGUs based on the 20239 20229128318 » EBEEHE
estimated value-in-use calculations was higher than the REEFENRESELESN KOS
carrying amount at 31 December 2023 and 2022. SREREE - At - S EFHRAEAE
Accordingly, no provision for impairment loss for goodwill EEERATHNE -
is considered necessary.
Asset-unit-level summary of the goodwill allocation is HESEMEESNEEAMEZZ M
presented below. e
2022 2022 Palaispa Shanghai  Chongging Wuhan Others Total
B2 i) EE™ HE Hh @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTIT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETET
Cost AR 72,063 38,939 35,781 18,217 31,286 196,286
Impairment  JE{E — — — — — —
72,063 38,939 35,781 18,217 31,286 196,286
2023 2023%F Palaispa Shanghai Chongging Wuhan Others Total
BEF ==y} BEEW RES Hit Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR AR¥TR AR%¥TxR
Cost (DN 72,063 38,939 35,781 24,124 46,620 217,527
Impairment  JEE = = = = = =
72,063 38,939 35,781 24,124 46,620 217,527
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21 GOODWILL (Continued) 21 BEw
(b) Key assumptions (b) FEHRER

The following table sets forth key assumptions on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill and intangible
assets of customer relationships and trademark with
infinite useful life as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

TR & HIHR2023F 2022912 A31
H EREEETHSAEEINAHAERERD
BLEFMEREREENNAEERA
{5 A3 4 HA P AR (BRI B BT B A 0 & B
& -

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Palaispa BREF
Revenue next 5 year RRSFIRA (FERE%))

(% annual growth rate) -3.60~8.08 4.80~13.77
EBIT/Revenue (%) EBIT,Ug A (%) -0.22~6.29 7.64~11.74
Long term growth rate (%) RHEE R R (%) 2.00 2.00
Pre-tax discount rate (%) 4 ARG 3R 3 (%) 12.40 13.65
Shanghai b s3]

Revenue next 5 year RRSFIRA (FIERE%))

(% annual growth rate) 5.00~10.97 2.00~11.52
EBIT/Revenue (%) EBIT,Ug A (%) 1.75~3.30 2.94~3.84
Long term growth rate (%) RHEE R R (%) 2.00 2.00
Pre-tax discount rate (%) 4 ARG IR 3 (%) 12.20 12.15
Chongqing BEE™
Revenue next 5 year RRSFIRA (FIERE%))

(% annual growth rate) 5.00~11.78 5.00~28.12
EBIT/Revenue (%) EBIT,Ug A (%) 12.06~14.76 11.35~12.67
Long term growth rate(%) RHEE R R (%) 2.00 2.00
Pre-tax discount rate (%) 4 ARG IR 3 (%) 15.15 14.45
Wuhan HEmM
Revenue next 5 year RRSFIRA (FIERE%))

(% annual growth rate) 5.00~8.00 5.16~10.93
EBIT/Revenue (%) EBIT,Ug A (%) 6.68~13.66 -1.65~4.12
Long term growth rate(%) RHEE R R (%) 2.00 2.00
Pre-tax discount rate (%) 4 ARG IR 3 (%) 11.00 12.30
Other cities Hitim ™
Revenue next 5 year RRSFIRA (FERE%))

(% annual growth rate) 5.33~6.17 6.00~11.88
EBIT/Revenue (%) EBIT,Ug A (%) 0.26~17.44 1.03~15.31
Long term growth rate (%) RHEERER(%) 2.00 2.00
Pre-tax discount rate (%) 4 ARG IR 3 (%) 13.40~19.80 12.50~17.50
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21 GOODWILL (Continued)

(b)

21 BEwm

Key assumptions (Continued) (b) FERRF(E)

The long term growth rates were estimated based on the RAERERBAEENESRAEL
overall long-term business development plan of the Group ERAELRFAFTENEBSBIREM
and the inflation rate of the PRC as a whole during the B

Year.

Management has determined the values assigned to each ERECDEEIRE DB BEREMER
of the above key assumptions as follows: WEEHNT :

Assumption
B

Approach used to determine values

RAREEEENSZ

Sales volume

EH
i
Helo

Sales price
HEBRK

EBIT/Revenue
EBIT, Y A

Long term growth rate

RHERX

Pre-tax discount rate
FiATAL IR X

Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period; based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market development.

hEBAMNFEFERE  ARBERRANEEBEMSRRNELY -

Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period; based on current
industry trends and including long term inflation forecasts for each territory.

hERAMNFHFRER  EREATTERY  ERSHENRMBERKRER -

Based on past performance and management’s expectations for the future.

ERNBEXRRLEBEHRROEDS -

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the long-term growth rate is the
forecast price indices during the budget year from where the main services are
located.

AREESEERAEREXEENAERBEFEANRE X ZRG MM TERE
BIEEL

Reflect specific risks relating to the operation of the business in the PRC.

RERE B R B AL = A R E LR o
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21 GOODWILL (continued)

(b)

Key assumptions (Continued)

Based on the result of the goodwill impairment testing,
the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded
its carrying amount and the headroom was as follows:

21

A5 A B TR I AR

BE )
(b) BREEE

REFERENRNER REELS
R G iRE £ 3BRBEERE @
wman

As at 31 December

®12H31A8
2023 2022
20234F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT
Palaispa B 74,655 212,928
Shanghai Bsbi=hil 248,958 223,885
Chonggaing EE™ 74,501 163,440
Wuhan B 125,425 42,899
Others HAb 393,997 303,128
917,536 946,280

The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of the key assumptions would not cause
the carrying amounts of the CGU to exceed its
recoverable amount.

The management of the Company concluded that no
provision for impairment on the goodwill has to be
recognised as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

EEERA  EUERERNEMNSIE
AREEBHN T ERHREEL BN
E{EREE AR @S5 -

KRG EEERA 120234 2022
F12A318  HBEERNERERE -
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22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets measured at FVPL include the following :

22

BRARBEFABRENEREE

BRAR

18

tEEFABENEMEERTENATS

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBTT
Wealth management products (i) IR EFEE AR () 766,227 626,864

Investment in private funds LEEERE

— Managed by investment manager A (i) — BIEELIBAE (i) 92,593 —
— Managed by investment manager B (i) — BIEE KIPBE I (i) 91,704 —
— Managed by investment manager C (i) — BIEELBCEHE (i) 14,449 —
964,973 626,864

(ii)

The Group purchases low-risk investments for cash
management purposes, which mainly included wealth
management products from licensed commercial banks
and state-owned trust companies. The products were
standardised and short-term wealth management
products with maturity day within one year with an
estimated annualised return rate ranging from 2.20% to
3.75%. Wealth management products are all held for
trading and classified as financial assets at FVPL. For
information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value, see Note 3.3.

The investments represented three private funds.
Investment objectives were mainly to invest in short-term
monetary instruments (including cash and cash
equivalents), national debt, and other short-term
securities, etc. Subsequently in March 2024, the Group
has redeemed approximately RMB183 million of the
investments.

(ii)

AEBBEERRRIEEARECER
HAEFr2eEHEmERTRESET
RRMBHMER ZEEMBZELH
MEEYER  HNEER—FA (5
FALRIBENF2.20% E3.75% ° I Hf
EMEBIEEE  UHBEAKRAREBE
AABENEREE - BHEETAAE
BT ERBERNER  RHEFE33-

ZEREE-ELEES - REBEE
TRERENCHERTABERESR
ReEEEY) BHEREMEHES
Lo BERIN2024F3 8 AEBEEED
AREIS3HEETHERE -
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22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22 BAREBETAEENESHEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) ()
Amounts recognised in profit or loss: REBaEPHERZEHE

As at 31 December

M12H318
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Net fair value gains on financial assets BRAnBEFAERZER
at FVPL BEMNAREERZFE 23,847 20,695

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 23 RERIESHWEMTIA

The Group holds the following financial instruments: AREFAATERIA

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2023 2022
202345 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETF T
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKAGTTENEREE
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) ReRBESEFED (HE26) 224,277 164,120
Term deposits with initial terms of over e AR R = (8 A 8 T 2
three months (Note 26) TR (MzE26) 384,929 119,646
Restricted cash (Note 26) SRR IR 2 (M5E26) 10,451 10,284
Trade receivables (Note 25) 2 5 FEWGRIE (M15E25) 31,011 37,356
Deposits, other receivables and amount due 24 - E & Uk k18 K FE Uk B8
from related parties (Note 25) 5677 5K I8 (fF3E25) 149,861 113,498
Financial assets at FVOCI BAARBEFTAEMEEY
AR EREE 46 47
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 22) BARBEFTABZNESR
BE (5E22) 964,973 626,864

1,765,548 1,071,815
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 23 RERIZoWERmIT E )
(Continued)

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBFT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEXINTENSRBE
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HEAE HE17) 563,120 525,502
Trade payables (Note 30) E 5 e 538 (M13E30) 21,421 7,857
Other payables and accruals excluding Hib I FIBE R ESER
employee benefits payables and tax (TEIEEME TR R
payables (Note 30) FETHTE) (M 3E30) 94,217 118,865
678,758 652,224
The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the AEEMEBESR T EAFBNSIARRR
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum MizE3stem - RMEHR mRAOSEEER
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the Br B RemEENKREE -
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
24 INVENTORIES 24 FE
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2023 2022
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBFT
Body and skin care products and medical HEREEEEERUR
consumables BEAEA M 197,879 149,931
Less: provision for inventory B IR EEE (10,291) (7,644)

187,588 142,287
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24 INVENTORIES (continued) 24 FE )
The provision for inventory as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 M 20234 % 2022412 531 B #1755 2 3
reconciles to the opening balance of the provision as follows: HHEVERYROT -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR ARBFTT
As at the beginning of year REF A 7,644 6,320
Increase in loss allowance recognised in RERNER BRI ERE
profit or loss during the year =l 2,647 1,324
As at the end of year RER 10,291 7,644
The costs of individual items of inventory are determined using BB FEEEB QA RS AR METY
weighted average costs at the end of each month. See Note RAETE - AERSENFESFEER - L
2.8 for the Group's accounting policies for inventories. F2.8¢
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the cost REE2023F %2022F 12 A31HILFE » 1
of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of REAZ R ATHE RRBKA] R HEH
sales and services” and “selling expenses” amounted to X INFERAE S R & AREA436,981,0007T

RMB436,981,000 and RMB294,319,000 respectively (Note 9). & AR 294,319,000t (F1#E9) °
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47 A AT R 3R B EE
25 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 25 %—f%@qﬂﬂlﬁ BNARIE - &E
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES K H fh B WK IR
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARETF T
Trade receivables ((i) and (ii)) B 5 WA (i) R (i)
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE 33,425 39,824
Less: provision for impairment B BB BHE (2,414) (2,468)
Total trade receivables B S REWFIALE 31,011 37,356
Included in current assets STARBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other EARE - ReRHEA

receivables W RE
Prepayments for procurement of inventories #RESTF &M TE M FUB R AL &

and operating expenses (vi) B 57 (vi) 43,795 42,941
Prepaid listing expense B EmHE = 39,562
Amount due from related parties JrE Uk 28 Bk 5 3 A (B 5E33(c))

(Note 33(c)) 34,433 20,250
Deposits — current portion (iii) e — RBEH i) 19,974 17,785
Other current assets (iv) EA B & E(iv) 8,592 12,426
Other receivables E{h & W I8 27,220 14,756
Less: provision for impairment R R E B (1,339) (494)
Total prepayments, deposits and other AR - He REM

receivables — current portion JEUGRIRBEE — REE D 132,675 147,226
Included in non-current assets STARBEE
Deposits and other receivables Re R HiEWRE
Deposits — non-current portion (jii) e — IERE I i) 69,668 61,291
Less: provision for impairment W R E R (95) (90)

Total “aEt 69,573 61,201
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25 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

Aging analysis of trade receivables

The majority of the Group’s sales are settled through
credit cards or e-pay applications against payment. At
31 December, the aging analysis of the trade receivables
from contracts with customers receivables as at the
balance sheet dates based on invoice date was as

25
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follows:
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREF T
Up to 1 year THBE1F 29,273 37,988
Between 1 and 2 years 15826 3,575 1,338
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 419 392
Over 3 years 3FMUE 158 106
33,425 39,824
Fair values of trade receivables (i BZERWUFEHAALEE
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, EEE’\\\M?WE%Z* THEEEME - EERM|

their carrying amount is considered to approximate their
fair value.

Deposits

The current portion of deposits mainly represented the
deposits for guarantee of inventories and short-term lease
of stores and buildings, and the non-current portion of
deposits represented long-term lease of stores and
buildings.

Other current assets

Other current assets include deductible input VAT,
prepayment of PRC corporate income tax, and interest of
fixed bank deposit as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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25 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(v)  Impairment and risk exposure

The movements in the loss allowance of impairment of
trade receivables are as below:

25 HZEWHRE  BARE BE
& H 4t fE W FRE ()
) SRERFERNRR

B2 5 6 M 3R 0 L A 1RL5
T~

han

As at 31 December

M®12H31H

2023 2022

2023F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

As at 1 January ®1B1H (2,468) (2,493)

Reversal of receivables impairment JFEE 5 5 T Rk (B 48 [ 54 25

As at 31 December M12A831H (2,414) (2,468)
The movements in the loss allowance of impairment of ST ARBIAMIE R BN AL 8RR © [ H A E

deposits including current and non-current portion and

other receivables are as below:

WHIRH R EBEREESHNT

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T AREET T
As at 1 January ®1A18 (584) (404)
Provision for receivables impairment — Ji& U 7k T8 g (B 1 5 (850) (180)
As at 31 December M12H31H (1,434) (584)
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25 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(v)  Impairment and risk exposure (Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’'s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

25 B35
EE

=

(v)

A5 A B TR I AR

EW%E\ﬁH%E~$$
b FE U FROE ()

B N B e A &L B ()
TEBIEMERREEETEAEE
2 5 ek R E S R H AR

Between Between
H20224F Up to 1 and 2 and Over
As at 31 December 2022 12A31H 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
THBIF 1226 2%3%F 3FENE Bt
Excepted credit loss rate BHEEEBEX 6% 10% 20% 62% 6%
Gross carrying amount RHBE 37,988 1,338 392 106 39,824
Expected credit losses BHEEEE 2,195 130 77 66 2,468
Between Between
#2023 Up to 1 and 2 and Over
As at 31 December 2023 124318 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
THB1F 1225 2E3F 3FEHUE At
Excepted credit loss rate EHEEBEX 6% 10% 20% 65% 7%
Gross carrying amount RHBE 29,273 3,575 419 158 33,425
Expected credit losses BHEEEE 1,870 357 84 103 2,414
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(Continued)

(v)

25 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 25 EZERWRIE - ANARE &S
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES R H fth B W IE %)
Impairment and risk exposure (Continued) (v)  RE R PTE R R ()
On the basis as described in Note 3.1(b)ii), the loss TRIRHTFE3.1(b)Gii) Pt 2 - FA2023%F
allowance for deposits and other receivables as at N2022912 A31 B s & H g G
31 December 2023 and 2022 are determined as follows: HREBEBEETHOT -
As at 31 December
®12A318
2023 2022
20234 20224
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected Carrying Allowance  Expected Carrying  Allowance
loss rate amount provision loss rate amount  provision
EH TEER
BiEX KRELE HBEEBAE BiEX FRAKE BEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTT AR TR AREETFTT ARETT
Included in current assets TTARBEE
Deposits and other ReERHEMER
receivables NE
Amount due from related JiE s B Bt U5 BRIA
parties 0.5% 34,433 187 0.5% 20,250 93
Deposits e 1% 19,974 200 1% 17,785 173
Other receivables H b FEUGRIB 3.5% 27,220 952 2% 14,756 228
Included in non-current assets s AFEREBEE
Deposits me 0.1% 69,668 95 0.1% 61,291 90
151,295 1,434 114,082 584
Deposits and other receivables are considered to have a ?ﬁé&ﬁi\{’ﬂfﬂﬁl IE?JQ%E%TEELZ’JJ—L
low risk of default and each of the counterparties has a CBEHFINE RS EETH

strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term, hence the Group considers
them to have low credit risk, and thus the impairment
provision recognised is limited to 12-month expected
losses. For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

L%Amﬁéﬁgﬁﬁ l%$¢lw
REFERRIE - ﬁﬁﬁwﬂﬁﬁﬁu
128 AEMER AR - L8 UK
ﬁ?'$%§%ﬁ§%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%
IE AR TE - HE2RFEMEH
B8 8 ) SRR R IR R RER o
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25 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 25 B
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES &

26

(Continued)

(vi)

Prepayments and other receivables

The Group makes prepayments for property management
fees and utility fees of stores and buildings, certain
purchases of inventories, marketing fees, etc.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are primarily
denominated in RMB.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 26

A5 A B TR I AR

SEWFRE - ANAFE - #E
HiEWRE

T8 5 FRIR Ko oAt 8 WK IR

AEERPIERETHMEERERAL
NARBE RKBETHES ZHEM
FEHIENRIA -

AEBENE ZEWGKIE - BNHE - R
EREMRBEFENRAEEIEUAAR
®EtE -

BERBITHEER

As at 31 December

®12H31R
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tx ARETF T
Cash and bank balances e RIBTTHE
— Cash on hand — FERS 1,013 75
— Cash at bank — iR{TIR S 618,644 293,975
619,657 294,050
Less: restricted cash (note a) B ZRFIERE (Hika) (10,451) (10,284)
term deposits with initial terms of over e A ERER R = 8 A 8
three months TEHIF R (384,929) (119,646)
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBReEEY 224,277 164,120
(@)  Restricted cash represents bank deposits placed by the (@) XBRFIRSEAEEFTHR —HBERITH

Group with a bank as a security for prepaid cards issued
to customers and is not available for other use by the
Group.

RITES - ERELTEFPWEANRH
Hifm BARETRERMRE -
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26 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

26

(b) The cash and bank balances are denominated in the

following currencies:

BeRBITES®

(b) e RPITHEBRIATIIEHHE

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
RMB AR 300,720 211,950
HKD BT 241,205 3,791
usD ETT 75,522 77,394
EUR BT 2,210 911
Others Hi — 4
619,657 294,050

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 BARKRHBEE

As of the date of incorporation of the Company, the Company
was authorised to issue 5,000,000,000 shares of USD0.00001
each. Upon its incorporation, 62,260,000 shares were issued to

the shareholders.

Ordinary shares issued and not fully paid:

HEARRQA MK B - AR B EEEE
£75,000,000,000 /% & A% [ 1E0.00001 3 7T &)
B o sEMAC L& - AR E B MR EET
62,260,0000% f% 17 -

EETERBEN SRR

Number Share capital Share capital ~ Share premium

of shares — USD — RMB — RMB

AR A B iniafE

BnEE — X — AR — AR

At 31 December 2021 R2021%128318 — — — —

At 10 February 2022 20224628108

(date of incorporation) (a) (GRS HE) (a) 62,260,000 623 3,958 —
Issuance of ordinary shares on 73 A11H %47 & @M (b)

1 March (b) 700,000 7 44 —
Issuance of ordinary shares on #3298 %47 E @M% (c)

29 March (c) 3,092,784 31 197 —
Issuance of ordinary shares on 74 A21H %47 & @M (d)

21 April (d) 37,040,000 370 2,374 —

Completion of reorganisation TR EMH — — — 84,358,111

At 31 December 2022 120225128318 103,092,784 1,031 6,573 84,358,111
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

(Continued)

A5 A B TR I AR

27 BARBRGEE®

Number Share capital Share capital Share premium

of shares — USD — RMB — RMB

[ [ B R (E

BB EE — X7 — AR¥ — AR¥

At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H 103,092,784 1.031 6.573 84,358,111

Share Split (e) BB 17 5 El(e) 103,092,784 ! ' —
Issuance of ordinary shares on 1 F 16 B %77 % @A (f)

16 January (f) 24,395,500 122 819 405,138,157
Issuance of ordinary shares on 72 A5HZ1TE &R (g)

5 February (g) 6,080,000 30 206 101,406,878
Repurchase and cancellation R202366H3HE

of ordinary shares during 1MA23 A BEEE K

3 June to 23 November it 8 E AR (h)

2023 (h) (255,500) (1) (9) (5,196,060)
Listing fees through equity BARETER = — — (33,928,120)
Dividends declared TR E = — — (84,009,473)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F12A31H 236,405,568 1,182 7,589 467,769,493

(a)

62,260,000 shares of USD0.00001 were allotted and
issued to LIY Holdings Limited, LIY Management Holdings
Limited, LIFY Management Holdings Limited, MeiYao
Holdings Limited, Individual Group Holdings Limited, You
Yi Holdings Limited on 10 February 2022, the date of
incorporation.

500,000 shares of USD0.00001 were allotted and issued
to LIY Holdings Limited, LIY Management Holdings
Limited, LIFY Management Holdings Limited, MeiYao
Holdings Limited, Individual Group Holdings Limited and
Crestsail Limited on 11 March 2022. 200,000 share of
UsSD0.00001 was allotted and issued to ZYLot Holdings
Limited by cash injection of RMB3,976,000 to the
Company.

62,260,000 & % [l {£0.00001 3% TT #)
BB m20229F2 4108 (GEME AL A
H) B2 % & %17 TLIY Holdings
Limited * LIY Management Holdings
Limited ~ LIFY Management Holdings
Limited * MeiYao Holdings Limited -
Individual Group Holdings Limited &
You Yi Holdings Limited °

500,000 A% & A& T {50.00001 E T HI AR 5
B R202243 A1 HECE R EAT TLY
Holdings Limited ~ LIY Management
Holdings Limited * LIFY Management
Holdings Limited * MeiYao Holdings
Limited ~ Individual Group Holdings
Limited & Crestsail Limited ° 200,000 A%
I f50.00001 ETTH I 7 E B B A
KRAEEE ANR3,976,0007T AL 3 K
#17 T ZYLot Holdings Limited °

207
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A5 A B R T AR

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

(Continued)

(0)

3,092,784 shares of USD0.00001 were allotted and issued
to Thriving Team Limited on 29 March 2022, which is
wholly-owned by the Thriving Team Trust. Such Shares
are to be held in trust to facilitate the transfer of Shares
to the grantees upon vesting of the relevant Share
Options and Share Awards. The Shares of the Company
held in Thriving Team Limited were accounted as
"Reserve-Treasury shares held in trust”.

37,040,000 shares of USD0.00001 were allotted and
issued to Beijing Xinyu Meiye Holdings Limited on
21 April 2022. Such preferred shares have been
automatically converted into ordinary Shares upon the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 16 January 2023, the shareholders of the Company
resolved to conduct a share split (the “Share Split”) on a
one-for-two basis, and the nominal value of the Shares
will be changed from USD0.00001 each to USD0.000005
each. Immediately after such Share Split, the issued share
capital of the Company is 206,185,568 shares of
US$0.000005 each.

On 16 January 2023, the Company was listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with
the global offering with a par value of ordinary share of
USD0.000005 each of the Company including, a public
offering to Hong Kong and overseas investors of
24,395,500 shares, in each case at a price of HKD19.32
per Share.

On 5 February 2023, pursuant to the partial exercise of
the over-allotment option by the joint international
underwriters of the initial public offering, the Company
issued an additional 6,080,000 shares with a par value of
ordinary share of USD0.000005 each of the Company at
the offer price of HKD19.32 per Share.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
repurchased 865,500 outstanding ordinary shares with a
total consideration of RMB12,012,000, among which
255,500 shares with a total consideration of
RMB5,196,000 were cancelled on 31 August 2023, and
the remaining 610,000 shares with a total consideration
of RMB6,816,000 are accounted for as treasury stock of
the Company as at 31 December 2023.

27 BAEARRGEE®

(0)

3,092,784 % G AKX I {E0.00001 3 T HI AR
MER2022F3 298 MEBE REITT
Thriving Team Limited * % A & i
Thriving Team Trust® & B - i Z%
MBI NFE - NEEEERER
HE R A% 10 S2 B 55 B B 1) R OIR A B B AR
3 o B Thriving Team Limited# & A&
REBMARBIHEE — WEFEAFR
BENEFR] -

37,040,000f% & [i% [ {50.00001 3 7T &Y
B ER2022F4 821 HER# NETT
Beijing Xinyu Meiye Holdings Limited
ARFBDREBH AR ZERA A
FREME  ZEEERBEEEERE
LB o

20231 8168 » ARRIBREZRIZ
— L ZHEETROSE(RG S
E11) - B EE & B S A%0.00001E T
B8 A& 0.0000053% 5T © BEEZM
DEE ARAMEBHTRAS
206,185,568 % & I T f50.000005 % 7T
KA1 o

MN2023FE1 8168 » KR AUER
192 THEREHREEARARAER
E{A0.000005E THE BB (BERE
BRI INE B E QAR E 24,395,500%
&) EEEBERIAERARE
TR ©

M2023F2 A58 AR B EBH XA
BEMEFEERBHEEH T B
FEHE M B E N B AR19.32/8 LB N8
776,080,000 % & % {60.000005 3 7T
B E AR o

HZE2023F12A31BIEFE - AR T
5] 3 865,500 B 1T IE SN L AR - 42
HEAARK12,012,0005T  EF
255,500 B (BEHERARE
5,196,000 T) B 7202348 A31H #*
84 - H52610,00008 /%10 (BEHEAAR
#6,816,0007T) 702023612 A31H A
RARRRIEGFR-
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R B AR M R

28 OTHER RESERVES 28 Hfitbf#m
Other
Other reserve —
Comprehensive Capital combined
(loss)/income reserve capital Total
Hith 2 H H At 7 &
(&518), /W ARfFHE — &HAER mst
At 1 January 2022 R202251A1A8 (916) (33,645) 100,000 65,439
Other comprehensive loss Hih2EEE (27) — — 27)
Share-based payment LARR TR M=
expenses (Note 20) (KF5£20) — 14,136 — 14,136
Transfer of gain on disposal & HERAAEBEA
of equity investments at far ~ HEM2EKz=A KA
value through other BEWZERZRE
comprehensive income to Pyl
retained earnings 825 — — 825
Capital injection FE — 3,971 — 3,971
Transactions with non- BIFRRER AL 5()
controlling interests (i) — 2,119 — 2,119
Reorganisation B4 — 15,635 (100,000) (84,365)
At 31 December 2022 R2022512831H (118) 2,216 — 2,098
Other
Other reserve —
Comprehensive Capital combined
income reserve capital Total
Hip2H HAt &
A EXRfFEE — GHER #t
At 1 January 2023 20231818 (118) 2,216 — 2,098
Other comprehensive income E b2 EU % 27,171 = = 27,171
Share-based payment AR Z AR
expenses (Note 20) (Kfs£20) — 10,823 — 10,823
Transactions with non- BIFERER N H()
controlling interests (i) = (17,098) = (17,098)
At 31 December 2023 ®2023512831H 27,053 (4,059) = 22,994
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28 OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 28 Hftbf#E
(i)  Transactions with non-controlling interests () HEAFEZERERMIS

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBEF T
(@) (b)
(@) (b)
Consideration (paid to)/received from (Z21F),/ 2 U FEIZE AL R 1Y
the non-controlling shareholders HE (15,739) 1,953
Carrying amount of non-controlling ~ FEIFAR S A BR (A
interests (1,359) 166
Excess of consideration of non- R AR FE R R =
controlling interests received B EBL IS
recognised in equity (17,098) 2,119
(@ In 2023, the transaction with non-controlling (a) 1R2023%F @ BHIEITREEMNZH
interests comprised: BE
2023
20234
RMB’000
AR® T
Purchase of 10% of equity interest of Beijing B 3FIZRMREEIL RERGFHE
Palaispa Business Management Co., LTD. EEBRAF10%M4E ()
from non-controlling shareholders (Note (i) (16,286)
Others Hh (812)

(17,098)
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28 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(i)  Transactions with non-controlling interests
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

A5 A B TR I AR

28 H@E @

(i) EIMEREDENRS (@)

Bt

il

@ (%)

(i)

In June 2023, Shanghai Beauty Farm
purchased additional 10% of equity interests
of Beijing Palaispa Business Management Co.,
Ltd. from non-controlling shareholders at a
consideration of RMB15,158,000. After this
transaction, Shanghai Beauty Farm owned
95.90% equity interest of Beijing Palaispa
Business Management Co., Ltd. The change
of reserves amounted to RMB16,286,000
represented the difference between the
amount of consideration and the relevant
acquired identified net liabilities from
non-controlling shareholder. The effect on the
equity attributable to the owners of Shanghai
Beauty Farm for the vyear ended
31 December 2023 is summarised as follows:

()

MR2023F6 A HEEE
HE B IR REE AL
RERSHEEEERA
BRI EEINO%ATHE - Y B
A AR #15,158,0007T ©
ERXP% LEEEBAE
HHEILRERIEEETE
AR A F)95.90% A% HE -
B8 AR % 16,286,000
TLIEEE SRR R A IEE
B AE R R AERE B AR B 3
FEEFBEZENEZLE-
B ZE2023F12A31HILHF
B EEEEREERA
R ERmmT

2023
20234
RMB’000
AR® TR
Consideration paid to the non-controlling B 1 3E 4% A% A% 5 ¥ (&
shareholder (15,158)
Carrying amount of non-controlling JEERERNREE
interests (1,128)
Excess of consideration of non-controlling A2 #ER Y IR AR 25 B W B
interests received recognised in equity B (16,286)

In 2022, the transaction with non-controlling

(b)  M2022%F - HEIFEBRERHIR S

interests comprised: BIE
2022
20224
RMB’000
AREEF T
Purchase of 30% of equity interest of Qingdao BEIFIEIABREEE TSN EBEx
Aimei Medical Beauty Co., Ltd. from non- AH R A R30% /% (B Ea6)
controlling shareholders (Note (i)) (2,711)
Dispose of certain percentage of equity interest [f] 3F1%2 A% % B2 HH & 4t ;T B 2255
of Beijing Palaispa Business Management Co., REXERBERARETEDL
Ltd. to non-controlling shareholders (Note (i) IR HE (B 5 (i) 4,119
Others Hth 711

2,119
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28 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(i)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

)

In February 2022, Shanghai Beauty Farm
purchased additional 30% of equity interests
of Qingdao Aimei Medical Beauty Co., Ltd.
from non-controlling shareholders at a
consideration of RMB2,570,000. After this
transaction, Shanghai Beauty Farm owned
100% equity interest of Qingdao Aimei
Medical Beauty Co., Ltd. The change of
reserves amounted to RMB2,711,000
represented the difference between the
amount of consideration and the relevant
acquired identified net assets from
non-controlling shareholder. The effect on the
equity attributable to the owners of Shanghai

28 Hibf#E @

(i) EIMEBREDENR S (@)

()  F20229F2R L BEEB
HEEEERRRBEES
BNEBREERNERAR
K IN30% B HE - HIE A
AR #2,570,0007C © #Z 3
5% FEEEHE®RSA
SENEBEEAERA
AEHRE - FEEHA
R#2,711,000 TS E$
28R B IEIE AR IR R A9 4R
BMEWRECHAEEFE
Z M ERE - B E20224F
12A3MBILEFE  £BE
EHEEB AEGEZRD

Beauty Farm for the year ended FERMBMAT
31 December 2022 is summarised as follows:
2022
20224
RMB’'000
ARBFT
Consideration paid to the non-controlling 2~ FEIEAX AR R & (B
shareholder (2,570)
Carrying amount of non-controlling FEIE IR W BRI (B
interests (141)
Excess of consideration of non-controlling M AEZSFE R FEIE RS W
interests received recognised in equity HEBLEIHS (2,711)
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28 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(

)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(ii)

In June 2022, Shanghai Beauty Farm disposed
certain percentage of equity interests of
Beijing Palaispa Business Management Co.,
Ltd. to non-controlling shareholder at a
consideration of RMB4,101,000. The
non-controlling shareholder is Shanghai Ziqgi
Business Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) that is the Group’s new
shareholding platform. The change of
reserves amounted to RMB4,119,000
represented the difference between the
amount of consideration and the relevant
acquired identified net assets from
non-controlling shareholder. The effect on the
equity attributable to the owners of Shanghai
Beauty Farm for the vyear ended
31 December 2022 is summarised as follows:

A&F jtﬁ§$&ﬁ%%[ﬁju£

28 H ks (o)

(i) EIMEBEDENR S (@)

7| ‘

(i) H2022%6H LEERE
& (A 3E 2 B AR 3R & R
ITRERFHEEEAR
NAEETED LARRE
H{EAARK4,101,000
T EEREKRE A
Shanghai Zigi Business
Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (/&7
SEMFFERTER) - FiE
FEh AR #4,119,0007T 15
HEFERBFTERRK
RREBEACWBE#AE
EFEzAMNEE -HE
202212 A31BIEFE

FEXERRESRS ARG
=M EamT

2022
20224
RMB’000
ARBFT
Consideration received from the non- B U SEIE AR IR R (E
controlling shareholder 4,101
Carrying amount of non-controlling RIS M BRE(E
interests 18
Excess of consideration of non-controlling ~ M EzEHERHIEFERRE R I
interests received recognised in equity HEBLIHS 4,119
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29 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 30 EFREMEBARANUREFGE
ACCRUALS H
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBETT
Trade payables 2 5 ENFIA
— Third parties —%=75 21,421 7,857
Other payables and accruals HttEARERESER
Employee benefits payables (a) JEXT B T2 F(a) 119,253 91,959
Payables for purchasing of property, plant B Z %  #2s [ iR & FE o
and equipment A 33,544 13,104
Franchisee deposits NIEEESE 21,887 20,596
Accrual expenses FERTA X 13,496 10,290
Taxes payables FE A R 18 11,192 13,237
Listing expenses payable JER ER 963 50,198
Others Hith 24,327 24,677
Total other payables and accruals HEMENHRIERESTER
BEE 224,662 224,061

29

HitRnBRE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
VAT recognised in relation to the contract  Bt& X B EHEDNIEER
liabilities 95,545 84,120

Trade payables are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
The Group's trade payables mainly include payments for
finished goods. The credit term for finished goods is usually

within 30 days.

BHRNFKBEBEEEREI0AAIN - K
SENESENRBAIEBREKANR -
HEMHWEERBER30BA -
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30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 30 EZRHEMENREARESE
ACCRUALS (continued) A )
The aging analysis of trade payables as at 31 December 2023 M2023F K%2022F 12 A31BHME S ERMFIE
and 2022 based on invoice date was follows: REZEZAHMERERSITET ¢

As at 31 December

MW12B31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARTR ARBEFT
Within 1 year 1F R 19,758 6,640
1-2 years 1224 506 485
Over 2 years FRIA2F 1,157 732
21,421 7,857
(a) Employee benefits payables () ERNBEIRH
The employee benefits payables represented payables for JET B TR A 520234 k20224F12 A
employee salaries for December 2023 and 2022, and # B ITH R ENRIBUARIEAL Rt g
accrual for bonuses and social welfare benefits. NS ESER -
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables and HRE S REMENFTIBUARESER
accruals are considered to approximate their fair values BREEME  AREEHEERSEALE
due to their short-term nature. BEE -
31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31 EERBH
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Deferred income tax assets BEMSHREE 42,114 44,165
Deferred income tax liabilities RLEFBHAE (21,984) (8,647)

20,130 35,518




216 Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc.  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R P AR A R

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 31 EZEMBH @

The analysis of deferred income tax assets & liabilities is as

follows:

BREMBHREERBENINNAT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETF T
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered 7 121E A 1% U B &9 I i
after more than 12 months ST EE 115,935 112,736
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered K 121@ A AUk B #Y I E
within 12 months gt & E 23,736 25,327
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSREE 139,671 138,063
Net-off of deferred income tax liabilities BEEEMEREE (97,557) (93,898)
Net deferred tax assets RIERIBEEFE 42,114 44,165
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREET T ARETF T
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled A 121E 5 & ;5 ERIEIT
after more than 12 months EMas 99,292 83,734
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled A 121E 5 A5 (&K IEIT
within 12 months Fristiat’ 20,249 18,811
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMSHatE 119,541 102,545
Net-off of deferred income tax assets HHBELEMEREE (97,557) (93,898)
Net deferred tax liabilities EIERBEEFE 21,984 8,647




31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:
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31 EEMBHR @
RIS BRE HBBFENT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTF T
At beginning of the year REA] 35,518 26,271
(Charged)/credited to income tax expense  (IfxB),Et AFSHE < (15,388) 9,247
At end of the year RER 20,130 35,518

The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and

deferred income tax liabilities during the year are as follows: EFEEER N

(1) Deferred income tax assets:

(1) EEMFHEE

FRAEEMEREERBEEMEHAENE

Allowance
Accumulated  Unrealised Lease on doubtful  Allowance Accrued

tax losses profit liabilities debts on inventory expenses Total

RAHEEE RERAE HEEE RERE FERE BB X @zt

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARSBTT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2022 202251818 14,600 4,549 109,502 1,431 1,580 1,684 133,346
(Charged)/credited to the (0B E)/FHARE

profit or loss (1,953) 2,927 3,234 39 331 139 4,717

At 31 December 2022 R2022F12A318 12,647 7,476 112,736 1,470 1,911 1,823 138,063
(Charged)/credited to the (0B E)/FABRE

profit or loss (362) (2,864) 3,199 492 147 996 1,608

At 31 December 2023 K2023F12A318 12,285 4,612 115,935 1,962 2,058 2,819 139,671
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31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(2)

Deferred income tax liabilities:

31

ELEMEBH @
(2) RIEFMETREE

Depreciation PRC

of property, withholding

plant and  Right-of-use income tax
equipment assets (a) Total

- BER HE TR
REBITE EREEE Fr8%i(a) mat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2022 7202241810 9,812 97,263 — 107,075
Credited to profit or loss & AJEz (1,165) (3,365) — (4,530)
At 31 December 2022 2022%12831H 8,647 93,898 — 102,545
Charged to profit or loss Mk AEZ 8,337 3,659 5,000 16,996
At 31 December 2023 72023512 831H 16,984 97,557 5,000 119,541

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax
losses could be carried forward for a period of five years
to offset against its future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets relating to unutilised tax losses are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be

utilised.

(@  PRC withholding income tax

As at 31 December 2023, deferred income tax
liabilities of RMB5,000,000 have been recognised
for the withholding tax that would be payable
upon remittance, in respect of a portion of the
unremitted distributable profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries attributable to the investors outside

PRC.

RBPBAERER - HABEAES
TERBEERKERGANE - HEH
AREARRFNBARELHBEED
A RIFER BN KRB AR ERAET
BMIREE °

hEITEHIAT ST

M2023F 128318 KEBE
FABEIMNEEERIGE THE
B /2B X B 5B oK B 1 P 4 9 BE R
B 7 BEE M B B 2 S RO TR DB HE R
IEIEFTS A E AR #5,000,000
5T o



32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)

20235 EHEBERRREFXERARF
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Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (a)
generated from operations

A5 A B TR I AR

32 ReEREEH

BRETEBRAF B REZMRBHRE

B ¥t R

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLELEE

2023 2022
2023F 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
Profit before income tax W BT 15 50 A1 A 288,269 130,475
Adjustments for: AT HEELHAE
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #)% - #2E R RERE
equipment (Note 15) (fF5E15) 101,231 89,642
Depreciation of investment TEMENE (HE16)
properties (Note 16) 3,390 3,393
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEEH (HE18)
(Note 18) 16,745 16,671
Depreciation of right-of-use asset EREEETE (ME17)
(Note 17) 210,370 187,535
Provision for loss allowance on B 5 & B h FE Y R IE B 8
trade and other receivables B (M 5E25)
(Note 25) 796 155
Provision of impairment on FERERE(ME24)
inventory (Note 24) 2,647 1,324
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYIE - s R RHN
and equipment E1a 1,008 906
Reorganisation costs (Note 9) EAMA (F7E9) — 7,279
Finance costs (Note 11) RS AAS (BEE11) 24,811 24,713
Share-based compensation LA R A7) 32 1<F A 3
(Note 10) (MFEE10) 10,900 14,178
Net fair value gains on financial BARBEFTABREN
assets at FVPL (Note 8) PHAEAEARBENR
FRE (MY5E8) (23,847) (20,695)
Interest income arising from term 18 7% B R = 18 A &Y
deposits with initial terms of over TEARTF RE R R WA
three months (17,543) —
Share of loss of an associate FEAE B & A E &R 51 —
Operating profit before working EEESEBAIRLE T
capital changes 618,828 455,576

219
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32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 32 ReREER @
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (a) PBRATEHAIFEELEMAERS
generated from operations (Continued) ¥ BR (&)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLELEE

2023 2022
20234F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Changes in working capital: LEECEH
Restricted cash SRR E (167) (30)
Inventories EASS (47,948) (46,361)
Trade receivables, other receivables B 5 EWEIE - Hab gk
and prepayments FRIE KA 5B (24,684) (35,298)
Contract liabilities aHEE 61,908 61,536
Trade payables, other payables and & 5B FIAE - M EN
accruals HIERESTER 45,762 (26,331)
Net cash generated from operations A& & E B TSR & /558
activities 653,699 409,092
(b) Major non-cash financing activities by FEIFREMEETH
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETF T
Addition of right-of-use assets TRAREERE 244,882 216,759
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32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Net debt reconciliation

A5 A B TR I AR

32 REREER
() EBFRELHER

As at 31 December

®12A31H

2023 2022

2023 20224

Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

B 5 AR T ARET T

Cash and cash equivalents BeRkAEEEY 26 224,277 164,120
Term deposits with initial s AR = E A/

terms of over three months  EHIFR 26 384,929 119,646

Lease liabilities HEAE 17 (563,120) (525,502)

Dividend payable FEAT AR B 30 — —

Net debt B H5 46,086 (241,736)

Cash and cash equivalents RERBESFEY 26 224,277 164,120
Term deposits with initial e = AR = 8 A /Y

terms of over three months & Bf7F &K 26 384,929 119,646

Gross debt BB (563,120) (525,502)

Net debt B F5E 46,086 (241,736)
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32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

(0

32 REREEBER

(0 EBFHELR @

Liabilities from financing

activities Other assets
METHELENER HittEE

Term

deposits

with initial

Cash and terms of

Dividend cash  over three
Leases payable equivalents months Total

NRABEB

BeRBeE ZHANTEH
HE ERRE B9 B7X @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL AR®Fr ARETT ARETr ARET:R
Net debt as at 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1BNEXTFE (515,460) (5,521) 157,284 — (363,697)
Cash flows Reng 231,430 204,263 2,806 119,646 558,145
Exchange gains I 5 Wz — — 4,030 — 4,030
New leases HHE (216,759) — — — (216,759)
Dividends declared BEERRE — (198,742) — — (198,742)
Finance costs recognised ERRMIK A (24,713) — — — (24,713)

Net debt as at 31 December 2022 M2022F 1283181
BEFE (525,502) — 164,120 119,646 (241,736)
Cash flows Reng 232,075 86,999 48,066 235,277 602,417
Exchange (loss)/gains 5 (E58),/ i = (686) 12,091 11,397 22,802
New leases HHEE (244,882) — — — (244,882)
Dividends declared EERRE = (86,313) — — (86,313)
Finance costs recognised BRRM B A (24,811) — — — (24,811)
Other non-cash movements HinEREEH = — — 17,543 17,543
Others Hity = = = 1,066 1,066
Net debt as at 31 December 2023 20231283181

BYHFHE (563,120) = 224,277 384,929 46,086




33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Related parties of the Group during the Year (a)
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Name of related parties

MBS A8

33 BBAXRS

Relationship

RS

REBRF AR R

Hainan Qiyan Stem Cell Anti-aging Hospital Co., Ltd.

BRI ARRREREBRAR
Sichuan Lanyouyou Technology Co., LTD
o) || 750 e R B BR R 7]

Save as disclosed in Note 25 of this report, the following
is a summary of the significant transactions carried out
between the Group and its related parties in the ordinary
course of business during the Year, and balances with

FR ¥ A% % 3R 42
Associate
e

related parties as at the respective balance sheet dates.

Transactions with related parties

(b) EEBINXZS

MR SR I TR 25 TR B D -
SERFREERBTERTEBBER
FETHEARSOBME - URREE
B R EBs T R

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholders

AT RA

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREETT
(i) Cooperation fee received/ (i) T EREBEERS
receivables in relation to mE M TEREER
subhealth medical services A
Hainan Qiyan Stem Cell BRI ®AERRE
Anti-aging Hospital Co., Ltd. ZBRBERAA 30,475 19,449
(i)  Cooperation fee paid/payables (i)  HAEIEREEDREH
in relation to aesthetic medical B ENEIEER
services
Sichuan Lanyouyou Technology VY )| T A 1 e R TR
Co., LTD NS 1,503 —
(i) Rental income (i)  HEEBUWA
Hainan Qiyan Stem Cell EERRARTE
Anti-aging Hospital Co., Ltd. ZERBR AT 6,166 5,872
(iv)  Product sales (iv) EmEE

Sichuan Lanyouyou Technology
Co., LTD

7o) B B RH B R

NG

2,461
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continved) 33 BEEA X B (49)

(c) Balances with related parties ()

B BB 77 B 45 R

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T AREETTT
Amount due from related parties FEUEIH 5 TR IE
Trade B5
Hainan Qiyan Stem Cell Anti-aging SRR RERTREER
Hospital Co., Ltd. BRAF 28,272 20,250
Sichuan Lanyouyou Technology PO 1| 3 14 2 B B BR A A
Co., LTD 6,161 —
34,433 20,250

Trade balances due from related companies are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The aging of trade balances due from related
parties was within one year as at 31 December 2023
and 2022.

FE A A RIME S HEAEER - &
EREBRTEEN BZE2023F K
20229 12R318 EWEH THNE S
BRERERTE—F AR -
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34 COMMITMENTS 34 AL
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAAHHE
Significant capital expenditure commitments are set out BRERFAZAEEIIAT
below:
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARMETF T
Contracted but not provided for: HATIEREETA
BRFTIR B
Property, plant and equipment LER Y& 10,419 25,195
(b) Non-cancellable short-term operating leases (b) ATAEENEEHLESHRE
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREETT
Less than 1 year 1R 6,270 7,767
35 BUSINESS COMBINATION 35 XBEH
(@) Summary of acquisition (a) WEFEME
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, HE20229F K2023F 128318 IF 5
the Group acquired business from third parties to enlarge B AREBEBEE=ZFWEER  UEX
the Group’s market share in the industry. Details of the ARBEREANOTIBRHE - BEKE -
purchase consideration, the net liabilities acquired and BhBAEFERBENFENT

goodwill are as follows:

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT ARET T

Purchase consideration (refer to (b) EEHE(Z2ETXD)
below):

Cash paid [EENEEA 10,800 5,970

Total purchase consideration BEHELR 10,800 5,970
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(a)

Summary of acquisition (Continued)

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the

acquisition are as follows:

35 ¥¥46t@
(a) WEZ=EHE @

AWEERERNEERBENT

2023 2023F An xiang Pinwei lady Total
ZH BRI A @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET ARET R ARET R
Cash and cash equivalents e RkBEZED 1,581 203 1,784
Other receivables Hofth e Y K08 102 — 102
Property, plant and equipment M KBERERE 709 — 709
Intangible assets — customer BREE — BPHIE
relationship 7,000 3,800 10,800
Contract liabilities — service EHEE — kB (16,723) (5,764) (22,487)
Other current liabilities HitnBafsE (1,003) (346) (1,349)
Net identifiable assets acquired BERHAEEFE (8,334) (2,107) (10,441)
Add: goodwill R 15,334 5,907 21,241
Shares acquired percentage BEWERNEA 100% 100% 100%
Net identifiable assets acquired BB #HAEEFE 7,000 3,800 10,800
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(a)

A5 A B TR I AR

35 ¥¥S6t@

Summary of acquisition (Continued) () WEFEMEZE @)
2022 20224 Luan mei Chonggingweiwei Total
Bx EERE @&t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®TT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents e RBEZEY 1,768 — 1,768
Trade receivable B 5 WA 12 — 12
Prepayments B IR 28 — 28
Other receivables H At JE W KB 202 — 202
Intangible assets — customer BVEE — BPBR
relationship — 3,700 3,700
Contract liabilities — service EHNBE — kB - (4,479) (4,479)
Tax payables e B8 (10) — (10)
Net identifiable assets acquired BEWER#AEETE 2,000 (779) 1,221
Add: goodwill m:EE — 4,749 4,749
Shares acquired percentage BlEROBES L 100% 100% 100%
Net identifiable assets acquired EUER R EESE 2,000 3,970 5,970
Purchase consideration — cash outflow (b)y BEHE — RLMN

The goodwill of approximately RMB21,241,000 arising
from the acquisition for the year 2023 is attributable to
the synergy of business expansion within two cities. None
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purpose.

Changsha An xiang Health Management Service Co., Ltd.
("An xiang”) and Wuhan Pinwei Lady Health
Management Service Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Pinwei lady”)
contributed revenue of RMBS8,460,000 and net loss of
RMB770,000 to the Group for the year 2023. If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2023, consolidated
pro-forma revenue and net profit for the year 2023 of
the Group would have been RMB2,150,639,000 and
RMB229,772,000 respectively.

2023FNEEBELEFMENARE
21,241,0007T + 55 B 5 I BE S T N 22 755
BRI EUE - EPHECHERRE
A IR FT S o

RO ZHEREERREERAR (TR
M) RRERRKZ A REEEREES
BRAA (MR AL R2023F &K
SEERIAAR®S,460,0007T X &5
1B F 58 AR %770,0007T ° fifi Y B E 1A
R2023F1 B1HEE - AL EK2023
FHEGREEZERALEFEES B AA
R#2,150,639,000t & A R ¥
229,772,0007C °
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b)

Purchase consideration — cash outflow
(Continued)

The goodwill of approximately RMB4,749,000 arising from
the acquisition for the year 2022 is attributable to the
synergy of business expansion within a city. None of the
goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purpose.

Shanghai Luanmei E-Commerce Co., Ltd. (“Luan mei”) and
Chongging Weiwei Beauty Co., Ltd. (“Chonggingweiwei”)
contributed revenue of RMB3,116,000 and net profit
of RMB17,000 to the Group for the year 2022. If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2022, consolidated
pro-forma revenue and net profit for the year 2022 of
the Group would have been RMB1,638,466,000 and
RMB109,641,000 respectively.

35 ¥¥46t@

(b)

BEYHE — Ramd@

Q0NFWNEEEELEHEOARE
4,749,000 * AR T A XK ETH
HEBE - FEEEE RS AT AE
MR ATER

LRI EFHABARAT ([EX]) &
EERRERER AT ([EEREK] R
Q02F RBAEBEERMBAARE
3,116,0007T & % F 8 A R % 17,000
JC o M UK BE EIE AR 2022F 1 A1 H &
A AREBER2022FHEREEERAR
FRNFHNBEDNAARE
1,638,466,0007T & A & # 109,641,000
5o

2023 2022
2023 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T AREETTT
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, YK B A RIME SR
net of cash acquired HMBREkERS
Cash consideration REEE 10,800 5,970
Less: Cash balances acquired W BEWER &R (1,784) (1,768)
Less: Consideration paid in prior year 5 @ ZF T HEE (1,520) —
Net outflow of cash — investing REMLFE — REEH
activities 7,496 4,202
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Remuneration of every director and the chief executive
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022

36 EEREARES
&=

(a)

N
x

H E2023F %2022 128318 1L F
E BREERGESTHRAEBOEH

was as follows: N
Other social
security costs,
Pension housing
costs — benefits and
defined other  Share-based
Discretionary  contribution employee compensation
Name of Directors ESHE Salary Fees Bonus plans benefits expenses Total
Hipit g
RAEHA  RBEK
— BEMR AEREAR  URAXH
E25c 3 e WBTEA 8 HEIRR @ HEMEX @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AR%Tn AR¥Tz AR%TRT AR®TrT AR%Tn AR%Tx
For the year ended BZ203%
31 December 2023 12A31BLEE
Executive directors: YTES:
Mr. Li Yang FHEE 379 = 140 = = — 519
Mr. Lian Songyong B EAE 1,010 = 9204 = 143 - 2,057
Non-executive Directors: FH{TEE:
Ms. Li Fangyu FHRRL 66 — — — 26 - 92
Mr. Geng Jiaqi” UEmean - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhai Feng” B#gkAEO = = = = = = =
Independent Non- BUKHTES:
executive Directors
Mr. Fan Mingchao? B EED = 203 = = = = 203
Mr. Jiang Hua? TERAO = 200 = = = = 200
Mr. Liu Teng® ) — 173 — — — - 173
1,455 576 1,044 = 169 = 3,244
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

36 EEEANRER®

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EFMe@
Other social
Pension  security costs,
costs — housing
defined  benefits and ~ Share-based
Discretionary  contribution other employee  compensation
Name of Directors E3#4 Salary Bonus plans benefits expenses Total
Hitit g
BRAKEHRE  REREK-
—EEMY  GFREAR  UBROXHA
e miEEa E OEMBIRR  HERMEX st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
For the year ended BzanE
31 December 2022 12831ALEE
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Li Yang ER k4 370 140 - - 3,303 3,813
Mr. Lian Songyong B E 1,009 821 — 133 258 2,221
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Ms. Li Fangyu EY N 65 — — 25 — 90
Mr. Geng Jiaqi® BEmEED — — — — — —
Mr. Zhai Feng® BEEED — — — — — —
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES:
Directors
Mr. Fan Mingchao? SBHBELEY — — — — — —
Mr. Jiang Hua® JTELER — — — — — —
Mr. Liu Teng? B L £ — — — — — —
1,444 961 — 158 3,561 6,124
(1) Mr. Geng Jiagi and Mr. Zhai Feng are non-executive (1 BEHTERBBREERINTE

2)

directors and have no labour relation with the Group.
Therefore they do not receive any emoluments from the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

Mr. Fan Mingchao, Mr. Jiang Hua and Mr. Liu Teng are
independent non-executive directors appointed in March
2022, March 2022 and December 2022 respectively with
their appointments taking effect upon Listing in January
2023 and have no labour relation with the Group.
Therefore they only receive director’s fees as emoluments
from the Group during the years ended 31 December
2023.

HOBRASETELTEER - Bt
P9 74 B = 20234F 202212 A 31
A FE B AEBERERERE -

RERERSTE  TEEERBIKEES
B R 2022938 ~ 202293 A 2022
FNRAEZTABIYIERTESE B
BARAR023F 1A ETHRERNE
W EAEBWELHEEER - Bt -
R E E2023F 128318 IEFE
EEAEBENESHSEANS -
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office or no
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

There were no retirement and termination benefits paid
to any director during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
consideration to third parties for making available
director’s services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

No loans, quasi-loans or other dealings were entered into
by the Group in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
during the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in Note 33, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 or at any time during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(a)

A5 A B TR I AR

36 EEEANRER®

EEWE (B

H E2023F %2022 12 A318 I &
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YEB I ASRIE 1A &£ B 85 1 42 B ol 18
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B EARIK R BERAR
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F o

MEREEERBMAIE =1
HEEE
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H E2023F K%20229F12A318 1L F
B AEBEMETIAES  EFEH

FEANBEEE R HEE E\ﬁaﬁx SAME
Mo EERHHMR

BEENRS  THHEHWER
gy

FREIFESIFTH TR E I - N REERT L

WMALEERER MARAESEHE
SEEREPEAEANEZ - BR2023
202212 A31 B A £2023F &
2022F 12 A31 B EFEMEMEEF
BNEARS  THREDN -



232 Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mﬂ‘ jﬁ%%&%‘%l}ﬁu_{

37 DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Registered Shareholders,
Institutions have entered

Medical

37

Shanghai Beauty Farm and the
into exclusive operation

services agreements with Shanghai Liernuo on 13 June 2022,
(the "Exclusive Operation Services Agreement”), pursuant to

which, the Medical Institutions,

Registered Shareholders and

Shanghai Beauty Farm agreed to engage Shanghai Liernuo as
their exclusive provider of technical support, consulting services
and other services in exchange for a service fee. Further details
of the Contractual Arrangements are set out in Note 2.1.4.

The Company held direct or indirect equity interests in the

following subsidiaries.

f‘ﬁ%’&ﬂ%’rﬁ

EREBRR LEXBERBERBRE#BERN

202256)% 13RH FBEMA

5 1
el -
o] e

(MBRELRBHE])
BELBRRR LBXBEERBE
REBREMZIE
hARTE L IER - NIAERAEE -

SRIEZREE R
R - B
E
IR TS &
BRRHEE

— R IBENME2.1.4

ARREERLMEFEATHER

Effective interest held

A RO ARAE -

FEERER
As at 31 December
Country/Place of Registered/Issued and R12A318 Principle activities
Company name incorporation/establishment paid-up capital 2023 2022 and place of operation
ERRL/ i/ eEf
RAEE RIFMEER,/ % RESEA 2023% 2022% TEEBREXNE
(000, in RMB unless
otherwise stateq))
(F7T - WASH#S -
BHFERS)

Directly hold:
EfKE:
Beauty Farm Medical and Health Cayman Islands, UsD50 — 100% 100%  Holding company in Cayman

Industry Inc. limited liability company Islands
FERERRRFEXARLA MEHE ERAF S0%T - 100% 100% #ROE- REES
Beauty Farm Medical and Health Hong Kong, China,limited HKD10 - 100% 100%  Products sales in Hong Kong

Industry Limited liability company
Beauty Farm Medical and Health HEEE BERARA 1087 — 100% 100% REBETEQRHE

Industry Limited
Aiyumei (Shanghai) Enterprise PRC, limited liability company 3,800 — 100% 100%  Holding company in the PRC

Management Co., Ltd.
N2X (LB CEERERAR MERL BRAR 3,800 - 100% 100%  BRAF - RERD
Beautyfarm Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong, China, limited 12,204 12,204 100% 100%  Holding company in Hong Kong

liability company

FEBEEEERAR MEEE  ERAF 12,204 12,04 100% 100%  BRELEEE
Beijing Beauty Farm Beauty Technology ~ PRC, limited liability company 2,000 2,000 95% 95%  Provision of beauty and wellness

Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
EREBBRXANREARLA AR BRAR 2,000 2,000 95% 95% R EAMRAZANRERE
Beijing Beauty Farm Enterprise PRC, limited liability company 2,000 2,000 95% 95%  Provision of beauty and wellness

Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
IRXBRECREEAAERAR  PEAL BRAA 2,000 2,000 95% 95% R ERBREEE MR R
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37 DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37 HIEB QRS @

Effective interest held

FEERER
As at 31 December
Country/Place of Registered/Issued and 128318 Principle activities
Company name incorporation/establishment paid-up capital 2023 2022 and place of operation
HRAL/ H#h/ BB
DNEER RIMEER/ % REHER 2023% 20225 TEXBRERNE
(000, in RMB unless
otherwise stated)
(F7T UALHS -
BESEES)
Beijing Limei Farm Beauty Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 72% 72%  Provision of beauty and wellness
services in the PRC
TRBXBEFABRAR PENY - ERAT 1,000 1,000 2% %  RPEREREERNRERS
Beijing Limei Farm Enterprise PRC, limited liability company 500 500 2% 72%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Management Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
FTRBERECSERERAR HEM - ARAA 500 500 72% 72%  REEANREEAARERE
Beijing Manshu Enterprise Management  PRC, limited liability company 500 500 82% 82%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
IRERGEEERBERAT PENY - ERAT 500 500 82% 8%  RPERLRERENRRRR
Beijing Palaispa Business Management  PRC, limited liability company 10,000 10,000 96% 86%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
HRARGEEERERAA ERL BRAR 10,000 10,000 96% 86% M ERbRARENRERS
Changchun Zhuoyan Beauty Service Co.,  PRC, limited liability company 500 500 66% 66%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Ltd. services in the PRC
REERERRBERAR ENY - ERAT 500 500 66% 66%  APERLRERENRRER
Changsha Meili Pastoral Beauty PRC, limited liability company 2,000 2,000 51% 51%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
RO REREXABRAF ERL BRAR 2,000 2,000 51% 51% R ERbRERENREERSR
Changsha Yuhua Xiukeer Medical PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 60% 60%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.? services in the PRC
uﬁm[%T% IEXAYHAR  PEM BRAF 1,000 1,000 60% 60% RPEALRHEEERZRE
NS
Chengdu Jiahao Beauty Service Co., PRC, limited liability company 500 500 97% 97%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Ltd. services in the PRC
RBEHEERBERAA RERM - BRAT 500 500 97% 97%  RRENBREEANRERSE
Chengdu Meishu Beauty Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company 1,000 100 97% 97%  Provision of beauty and wellness
services in the PRC
RBERERERAH PENM - ERAE 1,000 100 97% 97%  RPEREREEANRERS
Chongging Beauty Farm Beauty PRC, limited liability company 5,600 5,600 90% 90%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Development Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
ERFBREXAERARAT REM - ERAA 5,600 5,600 90% 90%  RAEIAMREEANRERS
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37

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37 MBRABRFEE@®

Effective interest held

FEEgRER
As at 31 December
Country/Place of Registered/Issued and R12A318 Principle activities
Company name incorporation/establishment paid-up capital 2023 2022 and place of operation
HRAL/ H#h/ERT
RAEE RIFMEER,/ % RE&EA 2023% 2022% TEEBREXNE
(000, in RMB unless
otherwise statea))
(F7T - WALH# -
BHFERS)
Chongging Liyan Medical Beauty PRC, limited liability company 2,000 2,000 90% 90%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Clinic Co., Ltd." services in the PRC
EEBHREEZRMDHEAR REAYL BRAA 2,000 2,000 90% 0% RPERBEREEEXARE
Q\ﬂﬂ)
Haikou Limei Beauty Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 98% 98%  Provision of beauty and wellness
services in the PRC
BOBXXAERAHA MER BRAF 1,000 1,000 98% 9%  RAEABRERIARERS
Hainan Meirui International Medical & ~ PRC, limited liability company 30,000 30,000 100% 100%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Health Industry Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
EEEREREREREXERAN  PEAL ARAF 30,000 30,000 100% 100%  RPERBREXANREES
Hangzhou Beauty Farm Beauty PRC, limited liability company 1,500 1,500 97% 97%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
MHEBREXRERAA MER BRAF 1,500 1,500 97% 97% R EAMRAZENRRRS
Hefei Beauty Farm Beauty Service PRC, limited liability company 3,000 3,000 63% 62%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
AEXERAXRRBARLA ENH - ERAF 3,000 3,000 63% 62%  RPERBREEANRERS
Jinan Xiukeer Medical Beauty PRC, limited liability company 9,000 9,000 54% 54%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Co., Ltd? services in the PRC
BEAURBEEIRARAAN AR ERAT 9,000 9,000 54% 54%  ReEABREBEEIRRE
Nanning Xiukeer Medical Beauty Clinic ~ PRC, limited liability company 750 750 60% 60%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Co., Ltd.? services in the PRC
HEANRBRERDMAR PENH - ERAF 750 750 60% 60% RPEAMRUBRXZRE
/D\ET(Z)
Ningbo Haishu New Beautiful Farm PRC, limited liability company 500 500 100% 100%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Beauty Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
EREENXENAXEER REAY BRLA 500 500 100% 100%  ARERGRERENRE R
R
Qingdao Tianyuanmeili Enterprise PRC, limited liability company 100 100 100% 100%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Management Service Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
EEMRAXBORERRBERAR  HEAMM AERAF 100 100 100% 100% R ERbRERENRE RS
Sanya Beauty Farm Beauty Service PRC, limited liability company 500 500 51% 51%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
COXEREFARBERAR REAYL BRLA 500 500 51% 51%  RRERLRERENRERSE
Shanghai Beauty Farm Information PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 100% 100%  Consulting Services in the PRC
Consulting Service Co., Ltd.
PEXBEREESHARBERAR  HEAMNM ARAF 1,000 1,000 100% 100%  RPEARERDRS
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Effective interest held

37 MEBRABRFHE®

FEERER
As at 31 December
Country/Place of Registered/Issued and 128318 Principle activities
Company name incorporation/establishment paid-up capital 2023 2022 and place of operation
HRAL/ H#h/ BB
DNEER RIMEER/ % REHER 2023% 20225 TEEBREERY
(000, in RMB unless
otherwise stated)
(F7T UALHS -
BESEES)

Shanghai Lingxiu Business Management  PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 96% 86%  Management company in the

Co., Ltd. PRC
PERABEERARDA FEM - ARAR 1,000 1,000 96% 86%  BELNF - REMN
Shanghai Luanmei E-Commerce Co., PRC, limited liability company 2,000 2,000 100% 100%  Provision of E-business in the

Ltd. PRC
LBEXETABARAR HER ERAR 2,000 2,000 100% 100% RAERBREETER
Shanghai Meiju Medical Technology PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 100% 100%  Products sales in the PRC

Development Co., Ltd.
EXBREMBERBRAA RERM - BRAF 1,000 1,000 100% 100% RPERBETEREE
Shanghai Meili Tianyuan Beauty PRC, limited liability company 5,000 5,000 96% 96%  Provision of beauty and wellness

Development Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
PEXEREZRERARLR ERL BRAR 5,000 5,000 96% %%  RRERRERANRERS
Shanghai Palaispa Business PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 96% 86%  Management company in the

Management Co., Ltd. PRC
PEAREERERARAR FEM - ARAR 1,000 1,000 96% 86%  BELNF - REMN
Shanghai Pengyiying Enterprise Service  PRC, limited liability company 100 100 100% 100% [T service in the PRC

Co., Ltd.
FERALCERBAERLA ERL BRAR 100 100 100% 100%  RPEALRESSRERE
Shanghai Ranyou Enterprise PRC, limited liability company 50 50 100% 100%  Management company in the

Management Co., Ltd. PRC
LEBELEERARAA FEM - ARAA 50 50 100% 100%  EEAF - REAK
Shanghai Ronglin Information PRC, limited liability company 10,000 10,000 100% 100% [T service in the PRC

Technology Co., Ltd.
LERBESMRARAA HEM - ARAA 10,000 10,000 100% 100%  REPERDRECERTRE
Shanghai Shuonan Enterprise PRC, limited liability company 30 30 95% 95%  Management company in the

Management Co., Ltd. PRC
LEBmeEERERAR PEAY - ERAT 30 30 95% 95% EBRF - READ
Shanghai Xiujia Business Management  PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 96% 86%  Management company in the

Co., Ltd. PRC
LERERZERERRA AR BRAR 1,000 1,000 96% 8% EREANF REMMD
Shanghai Xuanyan Business PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 96% 86%  Management company in the

Management Co., Ltd. PRC
LEEERREEERAA PEAY - ERAT 1,000 1,000 96% 8% ERAF REAMD
Shanghai Yigao Industrial Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 100% 100%  Products sales in the PRC
LERREFERAR RER BRAR 1,000 1,000 100% 100% RPERBETERHEE

235
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37

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Effective interest held

37 MBRABRFEE@®

FEEgRER
As at 31 December
Country/Place of Registered/Issued and R12A318 Principle activities
Company name incorporation/establishment paid-up capital 2023 2022 and place of operation
ERRL/ i/ eEf
RAEE RIFMEER,/ % RE&EA 2023% 2022% TEEBREXNE
(000, in RMB unless
otherwise statea))
(F7T - WALH# -
BHFERS)
Shanghai Yingsong Enterprise PRC, limited liability company 50 50 100% 100%  Management company in the
Management Co., Ltd. PRC
BRI RERBRAR REA - ARAA 50 50 100% 100%  BEAAF - RERAK
Shanghai Yiyan Enterprise Management  PRC, limited liability company 30 30 93% 94%  Management company in the
Co., Ltd. PRC
FEZRGCEERARAA HEM - BRAR 30 30 93% 94%  EELNE - RERNL
Shanxi Lixing Tianxia Beauty Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, limited liability company 3,673 3,673 51% 51%  Provision of beauty and wellness
services in the PRC
LWEBTATERERAA REA - ARAA 3,673 3,673 51% 51%  RAEABREEANRERS
Shenzhen Beauty Farm Beauty Co., Ltd.  PRC, limited liability company 2,000 2,000 96% 96%  Provision of beauty and wellness
services in the PRC
AT XEBRXTERAT MERL BRAR 2,000 2,000 96% %% NP EAMRAZANRERE
Shenzhen Qiyan Medical Beauty Clinic®  PRC, limited liability company 2,000 200 N/A 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
services in the PRC
RYEREEEAD Y mERM - BRAF 2,000 200 TER 100%  RPERBRAREERRS
Taiyuan Xiaodian Yanpan Medical PRC, limited liability company 2,000 2,000 60% 60%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.” services in the PRC
ARTNEERFERRXALHAR  PEAL ARAF 2,000 2,000 60% 60% REEABRAERERRS
AT
Tianjing Beauty Farm Enterprise PRC, limited liability company 3,636 3,636 81% 81%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Management Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
ARFBEBEALCXERRBERAR  DEAL ARAF 3,636 3,636 81% 81%  RPERLREXINRERY
Wuhan Beauty Farm Vocational Skills  PRC, limited liability company 500 500 100% 100%  Training school in the PRC
Training Co.,Ltd.
HEZEMESZRIENEREE  TEAMNG ARAA 500 500 100% 100%  HIISR - PEAD
N
Wuhan Handerui Beauty Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company 700 700 68% 68%  Provision of beauty and wellness
services in the PRC
HEMERREABRAR MER BRAR 700 700 68% 68%  RPERBREXANRERS
Wuhan Meiju Beauty Development PRC, limited liability company 2,000 2,000 88% 88%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
REXREDERERLA REAY BRLA 2,000 2,000 88% 88% R EAMRATANRRRE
Wuhan Mengze Jingru Beauty Co., Ltd.  PRC, limited liability company 700 700 65% 65%  Provision of beauty and wellness
services in the PRC
HEBERNZAERAA MER BRAR 700 700 65% 65%  RPERBREXANRERS
Wuhan Yijiang Tianyuan Beauty PRC, limited liability company 800 800 47% 47%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd? services in the PRC
HERIREXAERLAY REAY BRLA 800 800 47% 47%  RPERRATEANRRRE
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Effective interest held

37 MEBRABRFHE®

FEERER
As at 31 December
Country/Place of Registered/Issued and 128318 Principle activities
Company name incorporation/establishment paid-up capital 2023 2022 and place of operation
HRAL/ H#h/ BB
RAEE RIMEER/ % RE&SEX 2023% 20225 TEXBRERNE
(000, in RMB unless
otherwise stated)
(F7T UALHS -
BESEES)
Wuhan Yijiangpan Beauty Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company 778 778 83% 83%  Provision of beauty and wellness
services in the PRC
HERIREABRAR PENY - ERAT 778 778 83% 83%  RPERRERENRERR
Wuxi Xiukeer Medical Beauty PRC, limited liability company 2,450 2,450 60% 60%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Clinic Co., Ltd.? services in the PRC
EHFUABREIRDMAR ERL BRAR 2,450 2,450 60% 60% REEABRAEEXRRS
/L\\ET(ZJ
Xiamen Siming Xiukeer Medical PRC, limited liability company 5,000 5,000 60% 60%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.” services in the PRC
EFBAATREREZADM AN ERAE 5,000 5,000 60% 60% REEABRUEEXZRE
BRATY
Xian Beauty Farm Beauty Service PRC, limited liability company 1,667 1,667 59% 59%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
RREXBAEXARBAER LA PEAY BRAF 1,667 1,667 59% 59%  RPERLRERENRERSR
Yanyi (Shanghai) Industrial Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company 10,000 10,000 100% 100%  Products sales in the PRC
#E (LB EXERAT AN ERAE 10,000 10,000 100% 100% RPEABETERKEE
Zhengzhou Beauty Farm Trading PRC, limited liability company 1,500 1,500 95% 95%  Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
BNEEREREBRAR AR BRAF 1,500 1,500 95% 95% R ERbREXENRERR
Nanchang Xiukeer Medical Beauty PRC, limited liability company 3,000 3,000 60% N/A~ Provision of aesthetic medical
Co., Ltd.? services in the PRC
HEANABRERERATY AN ERAE 3,000 3,000 60% TER  RBENEREEEZARE
Shanghai Palaispa Beauty Service PRC, limited liability company 100 100 96% N/A~ Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
LERRRRARBAERAT AR BRAF 100 100 96% TER  RhERREESIRERSE
Shanghai Palaispa Health Management  PRC, limited liability company 100 100 96% N/A~ Provision of beauty and wellness
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
LERRHERERERAT PENM - ERAE 100 100 96% TER  RARERBRAEENRERE
Guangzhou Xiukeer Medical Beauty PRC, limited liability company 6,300 6,300 70% N/A~ Provision of aesthetic medical
Clinic Co., Ltd.? services in the PRC
ENFUREEEADMEARATY  PERM ARAF 6,300 6,300 70% TER  RhERREBEXARY
Controlled by the Company pursuant to the Contractual Agreements (Note 2.1.4)
RERARESNRHEH (HE2.1.4)
Shanghai Liernuo Industry Development ~ PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 100% 100%  Holding company that holds no
Co., Ltd more than 30% equity
interest of Restricted Medical
Institutions in the PRC
LEBRERERERARRA RERM - BRAF 1,000 1,000 100% 100%  RAERHERRHBEERE

A REB30% RENER LA
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37 HIEB QRS @

Effective interest held

FEEgRER
As at 31 December
Country/Place of Registered/Issued and R12A318 Principle activities
Company name incorporation/establishment paid-up capital 2023 2022 and place of operation
ERRL/ i/ eEf
RAEE RIFMEER,/ % RE&EA 2023% 2022% TEEBREXNE

(000, in RMB unless
otherwise statea))
(F7L - WARKS
BAAERES)

Controlled by the Company through directly hold and pursuant to the Contractual Agreements (Note 2.1.4)
RERAEBRERBARBESHRHEN (HE2.14)

Shanghai Xiukeer Clinic Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company 30,000 30,000 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
services and Subhealth
medical services in the PRC

LEAURMYBERRA HEM - BRAR 30,000 30,000 100% 100%  REERLRESEZARER
GREBRRE
Ningbo Jiangbei Yongjiang Xiukeer PRC, limited liability company 1,500 1,500 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Medical Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
T/&’,Iitm%m SEXEVMER  MEAL ARAF 1,500 1,500 100% 100% RPEABRUEBEERRS
R
Nanjing Xiukeer Medical Beauty Clinic ~ PRC, limited liability company 2,000 2,000 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
ARATRERZRYMER REAY BRAF 2,000 2,000 100% 100%  RPEABRABEERRE
R
Shenzhen Xiukeer General Outpatient  PRC, limited liability company 10,000 10,000 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Department services and Subhealth
medical services in the PRC

MBI REEH2H REM - ERAA 10,000 10,000 100% 100%  REERREZEZARER
GREBRRE

Hangzhou Liyan Medical Beauty Clinic  PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical

Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
HNBRERXRDHARRA MER BRAR 1,000 1,000 100% 100%  RPEEAEREEREARE
Zhengzhou Liyan Medical Beauty Service  PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical

Co., Ltd.® services in the PRC
BHBHEEZARBAERATO REAY BRLA 1,000 1,000 100% 100%  ReERLREEEZZRE
Haikou Meilan Meishuyue Medical PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 N/A 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical

Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.” services in the PRC
BOXRERUBRXAPFIVBAER  PEAL ARAA 1,000 1,000 TER 100%  RREAEREEREARE

AR

Beijing Hexin Medical Beauty Clinic PRC, limited liability company 5,000 5,000 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical

Co., Ltd. services in the PRC

TRAREBERYBERLA REA - ARAA 5,000 5,000 100% 100%  RRERBRERBEZRRHE

Beijing Yanyuan Clinic Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company 5,000 5,000 100% 100%  Provision of subhealth medical
services in the PRC

ERHELHERL HEM - BRAA 5,000 5,000 100% 100% REEALREDREEERE



20235 EHEBERRREFXERARF 239

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B AR M R

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37 MEBRABRFHE®

Effective interest held

FrEERER

As at 31 December

Country/Place of Registered/Issued and 128318 Principle activities
Company name incorporation/establishment paid-up capital 2023 2022 and place of operation
HRAL/ H#h/ BB
REER RIFEAR/ % RELEX 2023F 200E IREBREEBE
(000, in RMB unless
otherwise stated)
(F7T UALHS -
BESEES)
Chengdu Gaoxin Xiukeer Medical PRC, limited liability company 746 500 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
RERHEIRBERTDNERAA PEMY ARAF 746 500 100% 100%  ReERBREEEEZRE
Chongging Xiukeer Comprehensive PRC, limited liability company 20,000 20,000 95% 95%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Outpatient Department Co., Ltd. services and Subhealth
medical services in the PRC
BRFIRGAMDHARLA AR BRAF 20,000 20,000 95% 95%  RPERGREBEEARER
GREBRRE
Xian Meiju Medical Technology PRC, limited liability company 2,000 2,000 84% 84%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Development Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
BRRRERNBERERAT RERL BRAR 2,000 2,000 84% 8%  REABRHEEEERRE
Wuhan Qiyan Comprehensive PRC, limited liability company 21,053 21,053 90% 90%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Outpatient Department Co., Ltd. services and Subhealth
medical services in the PRC
HERMEAMZHERAR ENY - ERAT 21,053 21,053 90% 0% RPEREREBEEARER
TREEBERY
Beijing Meishu Laser Medical Clinic PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 86% 86%  Provision of subhealth medical
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
FRERBABELHERAR RERM BRAT 1,000 1,000 86% 86%  RRENtRAGRRERRE
Changchun Meiju Medical Technology ~ PRC, limited liability company 1,000 1,000 90% 90%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Development Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
REXDERNBERERAT AN ERAE 1,000 1,000 90% 0% RREABRUEEXZRE
Qingdao Aimei Medical Beauty PRC, limited liability company 5,900 5,900 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
FENEBEZRERRA AR BRAF 5,900 5,900 100% 100% RPEABREBEIARE
Haikou Xiukeer Medical Beauty Clinic ~ PRC, limited liability company 7,000 4,900 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
BORURBRRERFDHERAR  DEAL ARAF 7,000 4,900 100% 100% RPEALRUEBEEZRG
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37 DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37 HIEB QRS @

Effective interest held

FRERES
As at 31 December

Country/Place of Registered/Issued and R12A318 Principle activities
Company name incorporation/establishment paid-up capital 2023 2022 and place of operation
HRAL/ H#h/ERT
REER RIFEAR/ % RESEX 2023F W0E IREBREEBE
(000, in RMB unless
otherwise stateq)
(F7T - WALH# -
BHFERS)
Xian Beilin Xiukeer Comprehensive PRC, limited liability company 10,000 7,060 82% 82%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Outpatient Department Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
ERXBRATRGAMZHERAR  FEAL ARLA 10,000 7,060 82% 8% RREKREBEXARE
Haikou Yanyuan Clinic Co., Ltd.”) PRC, limited liability company 1,200 840 100% 100%  Provision of subhealth medical
services in the PRC
BOMRDMERAR MERL BRAR 1,200 840 100% 100%  RPERBREGEREERS
Hefei Xiukeer Medical Beauty Clinic PRC, limited liability company 1,000 700 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
ARBIREEERLERLA REA - ARAA 1,000 700 100% 100%  RRERBEEBEXARE
Tianjin Heping Xiukeer Medical Beauty ~ PRC, limited liability company 4,000 2,800 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Clinic Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
AENTAURBRXADMARLR HEAL ERAF 4,000 2,800 100% 100%  REEERAEEERRE
Zhengzhou Xiukeer Medical Beauty PRC, limited liability company 7,000 3,500 100% 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Clinic Co., Ltd. services in the PRC
BN REBEXERPLERLA REA - ARAA 7,000 3,500 100% 100%  RRERBEEBEXARE
Chengdu Gaoxin Meicheng Medical PRC, limited liability company 9,000 6,300 100% N/A~ Provision of aesthetic medical
Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.” services in the PRC
RBSHXAERXRMIDH MERL BRAR 9,000 6,300 100% TER  RRERREEEERRS
BRATY
Chengdu Gaoxin Yanyuan Clinic PRC, limited liability company 9,000 6,300 100% N/A~ Provision of subhealth medical
Co., Ltd.® services in the PRC

KARFMELHERA® HERNE - BRAA 9,000 6,300 100% TER  NPERRETRREERE
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37 DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The relevant stores were closed as at 31 December 2021.

(2) The effective interest held was no more than 70%, which is the
level of equity interest permitted under the Foreign Ownership
Restriction, thus no Contractual Arrangements were entered into
for these entities.

(3) The relevant stores were at the pre-opening stage.

(4) The entity was deregistered on 21 November 2023.

(5) The entity was deregistered on 14 December 2023.

(6) The relevant stores were closed as at 31 July 2023.

(7) Although the Group’s shareholding in the entity is lower than
50%, the Group can still control the entity because 4% of the
non-controlling shareholders of the entity are act in concert with
a subsidiary of the Group, which makes the voting power reach

51%.

(8) All companies comprising the Group have adopted 31 December
as their financial year end date.

9) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the reporting period.

A5 A B TR I AR
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38

39

CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no significant
contingencies for the Group and the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 21 February 2024, the company cancelled 610,000 shares
which were repurchased during the period from August to
November 2023.

On 26 March 2024, Guangzhou Beauty Farm Healthy Research
Co., Ltd. (the "Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an Investment Agreement pursuant to
which, among others, Naturade Health Technology Company
Limited conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to acquire the target equity, representing
70% of the entire equity interest of the target company, a
limited liability company to be incorporated in the PRC no later
than five days upon the signing of the Investment Agreement
pursuant to the terms of the Investment Agreement tentatively
named Guangzhou Naturade Health Consulting Co., Ltd., at a
consideration of RMB350 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$385.9 million).

Save as disclosed above, there were no important events that
have occurred after the end of the Reporting Period and up to
the date of these financial statements.

38

39

HAREIE
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 40 AAFIEEEBREREED
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company| (@) ARRIEERER

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T AREET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RHTBRRIMIEE (i) 114,199 103,960
Total non-current assets SEREEERE 114,199 103,960
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FEHFKIE * 2& K
receivables H b pE W RUIA 56 42,531
Financial assets recognised in RASBENERERN
profit or loss at fair value CREE 198,747 —
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREFED 8,048 7,197
Term deposits with initial terms ~ ##4 AHIRB =@ A KN
of over three months FHER 308,360 69,646
Total current assets MBEEBE 515,211 119,374
Total assets EEHAE 629,410 223,334
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H th fE < 38 34,034 61,713
Total current liabilities REBEEHEEE 34,034 61,713

Total liabilities EEAE 34,034 61,713
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet of the Company| (Continued)

(a)

40 ARREERBRRREFEED

()
(@) ARRBEERARE(E

As at 31 December

M12831H
2023 2022
2023 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 ARE T ARETIT
EQUITY R
Share capital A& A 8 7
Treasury stock E 17 B (6,816) —
Share premium f& 10 5 (8 467,769 84,358
Other reserves B fh 134,876 97,465
Accumulated losses BitEE (461) (20,209)
Total equity i 595,376 161,621
Total equity and liabilities EERBEEBELAE 629,410 223,334
Net current assets REBEEFE 481,177 57,661
Total assets less current EEHABERABAR
liabilities 595,376 161,621

* Less than RMB1,000

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and was signed on

its behalf.

* LA AR 1,0007T

ARARMEBEEBERER2024F3F26
AgEZsed it YHUATEERAR
= .

Mr. Li Yang

=R EE
Chairman

FE

Mr. Lian Songyong
BMKEE
Director

EFE
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

40 ARREERBRRRERHED

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (#%)
(@) Balance sheet of the Company| (Continued) (@ ARFIEEBERE)
(i) Investment in a subsidiary i R—REBAFMNIKE
As at 31 December
R12A31R8
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBEF T
Deemed investment arising from  BAR% 1) 2 < B9 FF BM B 2
share-based compensation EEMGERE
expenses 28,618 19,602
Investment in subsidiaries R E A REIRE 85,581 84,358
114,199 103,960
(b) Equity movement of the Company (b) AAFERZE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ADNAEAAEGES
Share Treasury Other Share Retained
capital shares reserves premium earnings Total
B ERFR HitRE RAEE RERF @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT  ARETFT ARETFT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2022 R2022F1 1B W — — — — — —
Profit for the year FRHE — — — — (20,209) (20,209)
Total comprehensive income 2HNEAE — — — — (20,209) (20,209)
Transactions with owners HERARS
Capital contribution from owners ARREANTE (M)
of the Company (Note) —* —* 76,263 — — 76,263
Share-based payment expenses WABR1A 3 T 0 (5 3B 2 - — 21,202 — — 21,202
Completion of reorganisation TREA 7 — — 84,358 — 84,365
7 —* 97,465 84,358 — 181,830
Balance at 31 December 2022 R202F12831AMES 7 —* 97,465 84,358 (20,209) 161,621

Note: Capital contribution from owners of the Company
represented surplus of capital issued from ZYLot Holdings
Limited and CITIC PE to the Company as set out in Note

1.2.

Mk : AQBI A AFEFEEME1.20H
ZYLot Holdings Limited % CITIC PE[A)

RRRBEITERN R
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Equity movement of the Company (Continued)

40 FRRAEERABRERELZD

(%)

(b)

RRREREH ()

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

EARBEAEERR
Share Treasury Other Share Retained

capital shares reserves premium earnings Total

RE EFRH it R} %E REEF EHY

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TRT AR¥Tr AR¥TRT AR%Trn AR¥Tn AR%Tz

Balance at 1 January 2023 R2023F1 1A &S 7 == 97,465 84,358 (20,209) 161,621

Profit for the year ERFE = = = = 19,748 19,748

Other comprehensive income Hi 2 E = = 28,395 = — 28,395

Total comprehensive income 2EKREE = = 28,395 = 19,748 48,143

Transactions with owners HEBEARS

Issuance of ordinary shares upon REFBEERBTERER

global offering 1 - - 506,544 - 506,545

Listing fees through equity AR LT = = = (33,928) - (33,928)

Treasury shares purchased BREETFR - (12,012) - - - (12,012)

Treasury shares cancelled BHEETR = 5,196 — (5,196) — —

Share-based payment expenses PN G EINENF — — 9,016 — - 9,016

Dividends declared BERES = = = (84,009) = (84,009)

1 (6,816) 9,016 383,411 = 385,612

Balance at 31 December 2023 R2023F 12831 A eR 8 (6,816) 134,876 467,769 (461) 595,376

* Less than RMB1,000

LA AR 1,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

41.1 Business combinations not under common control

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the following:

° fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of
the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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41 OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

411

41.2

41.3

Business combinations not under common control
(Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable. Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend from
these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision
maker of the Company assesses the financial
performance and position of the Group, and makes
strategic decisions. The chief operating decision maker of
the Group consists of the executive directors and the
chief financial officer.

41
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.4 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The Company’s functional currency is
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD"). As the majority of the
assets and operations of the Group are located in
the PRC, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (RMB).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the statement of profit
or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within
other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

A5 A B TR I AR

41 HgsBEK @
41.4 HNEEIME

iy WERZIEE

B HZERREMENTIEL
BRENEE ([T % )&t
E-ARAYEEERET(E
T c ARAKREABNEER
EBHURPE - SRS HR
RIAARE (ARKE) 25 -

(i  RHREHR
INER B HAMMERBE
RYEEE RABEERTRIHR
Rz AE BB AINEEHE
WEBEENBGEMNELMNINE
Woat M B 1E— RN IB R FER o

S TRE R IME U S N B IE R
BRANVBREARNZEY - FFE
H M HNE Wz MBS BIG N R
HE MUz (B 1R) ALAF R R
5I] o

BARBEERAIINEGED
FERBEEEREEAAEBEE
BRERBE - 2R EBEIIK
WEERABREZHERR/A
AEERDELEEN D
e FEREERBE (WRAR
BEFABSFHAENLE) WEE
ZHENERaNERRAAEER
HEBEO D MIEEEE
E (DB RE AR EEFAREMD
PERSRELS) IRE ZENE
b 2 M s N RERR o



250

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o P R B R

n\/]‘

Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

41 OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.4

41.5

41.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(ili)  Group companies

The results and financial
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

position of foreign

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet

o income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally leasehold office
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields and are not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation of the investment properties is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful lives of 20 to 50 years.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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41 OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a1.7

41.8

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included
in the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets, see
Note 22.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired. For
credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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41 OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
41.9 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at
the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received, and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the
related assets.

41 HgstBEw
419 IR E 7Dk
BERRBEHRR DS RERR
L HRSR Y R DR 2 TR B S5 (B
BEERRTAREEMBERAT) /B -

41.10 BT # BY
BT B A A BRE B WEHE) B K
SEBHFEMEMNERGERZREAAE
BT AR -

B 7N AR RE BV BUT # B) T LURAE - IR
B R4 (B WO AR RE A A HE 1T L A P 75 HATA
WAEE P HER o

HEEYE B RREEBOBUTHE
Bt ASERBRE - SHEETKA
YREBEENFERAERFHRRNNE
BORRT ANHB o
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DEFINITIONS
B

In this annual report, the following expressions shall have the RAFERA B EBBEIEIN  THFAEZELE MU

meanings set out below, unless the context otherwise requires:

"AGM"
RRBEFAE]

“Articles of Association”
[ ERRMAMA ]

“Audit Committee”
[BEZZES ]

"Beauty Farm”, “Group”,

“our Group”, “our”, "we”,
or "us”

[ZERE]  [AEE] -
(SR ] T3 fr] =k
[ 4P

“Board of Directors” or
“Board”

E5g]

“Cayman Companies Law" or
“Cayman Companies Act”
[FERalE]

"CG Code” or “Corporate
Governance Code”

KeEERFAD]

“China” or "PRC”

[ e

“Company” or

“our Company”

NI AN

“Director(s)”

[E%]

TRTERE

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday,
June 27, 2024
RAFHR2024F6 5278 (REHM) BITHEERRBFAE

the articles of association of the Company currently in force

AARBEREINEBERMA

the audit committee of the Board
ExeEkELEY

the Company and its subsidiaries, or any one of them as the context may require
or, where the context refers to any time prior to its incorporation, the business
which its predecessors or the predecessors of its present subsidiaries, or any one of
them as the context may require, were or was engaged in and which were
subsequently assumed by it

ARFIREMBAR  kEPEMA—KAF (WMXEIEERME) - (X EEBET
MAZATE T MBS HA S AR HERESHBARNAME AR HEF I —K
NA (A EFTREATE) SN E R A B R B AENER

the board of directors of the Company
KRAREEE

the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

FHERESRADE KRB - FFEsA R M T B
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
AR BIB SR C1PrE B B R ST Al

the People’s Republic of China, which, for the purpose of this annual report and
for geographical reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

FEARRNE  AFHREERBHISEMS - TREEE  RFIREE

Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc., an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on February 10, 2022

FEHNEBRRREXZERAA  R2022F2 A10BRIBERASH S AETMALE
EHR2BR QA

the director(s) of the Company or any one of them

ARBAEEHEPEMN—RES
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“Euro” or “EUR”
[T ]

“Global Offering”
[2IREE ]

"Hong Kong”

[&#]

“Hong Kong dollars” or
“HK dollars” or “"HK$”

(%7t

"HKFRS"
[ A & 2 A

“IPO”
[BERAFEE]

“Listing”
[ £

“Listing Date”
= =Ecl

“Listing Rules”
[{Em#HEN]
“Model Code”
[CIE#E=FRID]

“MOF”
[ 8 BEE

"MOFCOM”
[

Euro, the lawful currency of the member states of the European Union
BT MK EEEETE R

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering, details of which are
set forth in the Prospectus

FEELAHEENEREE  ARFBIANERER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B EF B RITT B R

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT RBI - BB EEEE

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
BRI BREER

the initial public offering of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on January 16, 2023
Bfn22023F 1 B16 A ERERAFHEE

listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Pty A B R P £ AR £ TR

January 16, 2023, on which the Shares were listed and from which dealings
therein were permitted to take place on the Stock Exchange
202351 H168 @ RSB R AT LT R EEEHN A H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)

EEMERSMBRAREZ EMARN ETRER - R U E T g

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
AR B ERC3PTE ) E M BITAERETE SR H NIRRT

Ministry of Finance of the PRC (47 % A R 0B 81 B &)
RREE A R AN ED B B

Ministry of Commerce of the PRC (7 #E A FR £ 71 B0 5 75 &)
REAREFE LS



“"MOH"

[ A0
“Mr. Li”
[FHR4 ]
“Mr. Lian”
[EfA |
“Ms. Li"
[F4+ |

“Ms. Wang”
[E42+]

“NHC"
[BRREEZ]

“NPC”
2B AKX]

1

“Over-allotment Option’

[ 768 %8 fic IO

"Prospectus”

[ =iz
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Ministry of Health of the PRC (FRZE A R #ANE B 5 & 4 &6), later known as the
National Health and Family Planning Commission of the PRC (FFZE A R HEFBEIE KR
WEFGELEEZED)

REARAMEERGES  ERPEARANBERGENGFEEEFZES

Mr. LI Yang, being the chairman of our Board and an executive Director and the
father of Ms. Li and a Controlling Shareholder
FHEEE REFFIRFNTEERFTLRINNE - WAEBRKR

Mr. LIAN Songyong, being the chief executive officer and an executive Director,
and a Controlling Shareholder of the Company
BIAKELE  RERERTERATES YRR RRZEBAE

Ms. LI Fangyu, being a non-executive Director and daughter of Mr. Li and a
Controlling Shareholder of the Company
FHRRL RFATEFRFTEENRKRE  WRADAERER

Ms. WANG Li, being the late-wife of Mr. Li who passed away in 2006
THLL  FREEWMEF  N20065F Bt

the National Health Commission (FEAREMEBRREERRZE D)
FEAREKNMBEBRGELEEREZES

the National People’s Congress of the PRC (FEARKEAMBE2EARKREXRS)
REAREMEEZEARREARE

the option granted by us to the International Underwriters exercisable by the
Overall Coordinators on behalf of the International Underwriters under the
International Underwriting Agreement. On February 3, 2023, the Group allotted
6,080,000 Shares at a price of HK$19.32 per Share. The Company received
additional net proceeds of approximately HK$111.1 million from the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated January 13, 2023 and February 5, 2023, respectively
HAMERBHEE RO EARE - fTRERGAARKER S HERERERSH
BT - 20232 A3H - AREIREA19.328 A% 6,080,000/ A& {7 © A2 7]
BT BB ESREIIGFIEFENIMIABEREL - FEF2HARAR
B39 5 /202341 A13H k202352 A5H 2 A%

the prospectus of the Company dated December 30, 2022
RNABHEA2022F12 A0 BB ER
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“R&D"
[ % |

“Reporting Period”
[ ¥R & HAH

“RMB"” or “Renminbi”
[AR¥ ]

“SFO"

EH KA ERD]
“Share(s)"
[ %15

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 2 |

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 32 PR

“Subsidiary”
[ B &8 2 7]

“tri-beauty”

[=2%]

“United States” or “U.S.”

==

“United States dollars”,
“US dollars”, “USD"
or “US$”

[ZET]

%
[% ]

Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Research and development
it 2%

the year ended December 31, 2023
HE2023F12A31HILFE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR hBEEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)
EBEDIFEST BB LB G (G ARERT - 7 s A b 75 A& 20

ordinary share(s) in the capital of our Company with a nominal value of
US$0.000005 each
AN A B BE A FR AR T 1E.0.000005 35 7T MY 38 A%

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EEUESTEWN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBERSMABR AR

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

BB EmRBIRTHE T8 R E

cornerstone beauty and wellness services, aesthetic medical services and subhealth
medical services

EMERMRERT - BEREDTRS UK EERERRS

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject to
its jurisdiction

EHNRERE HEL HBEUWIAAXHEEENLE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

X XBDEEER

per cent
Aot
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